
----~------

\''[ 
"I 1 
1~ I 
, 1 
I i 
I J 

National Criminal Justice Reference Service ./ ________ ~r-v~~ __________________________________________________ jJ\ 

1 nClrs II 
" il 

This microfiche was produced from documents received for 
inclusion in the NCJRS data base. Since NCJRS cannot exercise 
control over the physical condition of the documents submitted, 
the individual frame quality will vary. The resolution chart on 
this frame may be used to evaluate the document quality. 

1.0 

Illil l
.
1 

~: 111112.8 11/1/2.5 

H~ 111/13-
2 22 

llP.l • 

D.:: ~~36 
I!l 
:: D.t:g 2.0 
'- ~ 
L"H~u 

111111.25 111111.4 111111.6 

MICROCOPY RESOLL!TION TEST CHART 
NATIONAL BUREAU OF STANDARDS·1963·A 

Microfilming procedures used to create this fiche comply with 
the standards set forth in 41CFR 101-11.504. 

Points of view or opinions stated in this document are 
those of the author(s) and do not represent the official 
position or policies of the U. S. Department of Justice. 

Nathtr_aI Institute of Justice 
United States Department of Justicle 
Washington, D. C. 20531 

12/13/82 

~ I 
i 
! 
I: 

10 

'4f;' 

,. 
,p •• ,' 

-, 
~ D ll1r-f ~ -" I 

~BOR MANAGEMENT RACKETEERING ACT OF 19S@ 

HEARING 
BEFORE THE 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON LABOR 
OF THE 

COMMITTEE ON 
LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES 

UNITED STATES SENATE 
NINETY-SEVENTH CONGRESS 

SECOND SESSION 

ON 

s. 1785 
-'JREASE THE PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE TAFT­
~EY ACT, TO PROHIBIT PERSONS, UPON THEIR CONVIC-
OF CERTAIN CRIMES, FROM HOLDING OFFICES IN OR 

LIN POSITIONS RELATED TO LABOR ORGANIZATIONS 
IMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS, AND TO CLARIFY CERTAIN 
.ESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 

FEBRUARY 3, 1982 

for the use of the Committee on Labor and Human Resources 

U.S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE 

WASHINGTON: 1982 

~-.~. 

\ 

, 
r 

If you have issues viewing or accessing this file contact us at NCJRS.gov.



o 

~; 

a 

COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES 

ORRIN G. HATCH, Utah, Chairman 
ROBERT T. STAFFORD, Vermont EDWARD M. KENNEDY, Massac?u~e~ts 
DAN QUAYLE, Indiana JENNINGS RANDOLPH, West VIrgInIa 
PAULA HAWKINS, Florida HARRISON A. WILLIAMS, JR., New Jersey 
DON NICKLES, Oklahoma CLAIBORNE PELL, Rhode I~land . 
LOWELL P. WEICKER, JR., Connecticut THOMAS F. EAGLETON, MIssourI 
GORDON J. HUMPHREY, New Hampshire DONALD W. RIEGLE, JR., Michigan 
JEREMIAH DENTON, Alabama HOWARD M. METZENBAUM, Ohio 
JOHN P. EAST, North Car0lina 

GEORGE W. PRITTS, Jr., Chief Counsel 
RENN M. PATCH, Staff Director and General Counsel 

LAWRENCE C. HOROWITZ, M.D., :Minority Staff Director 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON LABOR 

DON NICKLES, Oklahoma, Chairman 
ORRIN G. HATCH, Utah 
JOHN P. EAST, North Carolina 
ROBERT T. STAFFORD, Vermont 
DAN QUAYLE, Indiana 
PAULA HAWKINS, Florida 

HARRISON A. WILLIAMS, JR., New Jersey 
EDWARD M. KENNEDY, Massachusetts 
JENNINGS RANDOLPH, West Virginia 
DONALD W. RIEGLE, JR., Michigan 

RICHARD C. LAWSON" Cocounsel 
CHARLES T. CARROLL, Jr., Cocounsel 

GERALD B. LIN DREW, Minority Counsel 

(II) 

U.S. Department of Justice 
National Institute of Justice 

This document has been reproduced exactly as received from the 
person or organization originating it. Points of view or opinions stated 
in this document are those of the authors and do not necessarily 
represent the official position or poliCies of the National Institute of 
Justice. 

Permission to reproduce this88",..i§At~d material has been 
granted by 

Public Domain 
United States Senate 

to the National Criminal Justice Reference Service (NCJRS). 

Further repmduction outside of the NCJRS system requires permis­
sion of the o8!'J)pi!l~t owner. 

• 

CONTENTS 

CHRONOLOGICAL LIST OF WITNESSES 

WEDNESDAY, li'EBRUARY 3, 19R2 

Page 
Rudman Hon. Warren, a U.S. Senator from the State of New Hampshire ........ 4 
Nunn, Hon. Sam, a U.s. Senator from the State of Georgia................................... 6 
Ryan T. Timothy, Solicitor, Department of Labor.................................................... 40 
Jens~n D. Lowell, Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, Depart-

ment of Justice, accompanied by David Margolis, Chief of Organized Crime 
and Racketeering Section, Criminal Division ........ ............................ ..................... 64 

STATEMENTS 

Donovan, Hon. Raymond J., Secretary, Department of Labor, prepared state-
ment................................................................................................................................ 41 

Jensen D. Lowell, Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division, Depart­
ment of Justice, accompanied by David Margolis, Chief of Organized Crime 
and Racketeering Section, Criminal Division......................................................... 64 

Nunn, Hon. Sam, A U.S. Senator from the State of Georgia.................................. 6 
Prepared statement ................................................................................................. 16 

Rudman, Hon. Warren, a U.S. Senator from the State of New Hampshire ........ 4 
Ryan, T. Timothy, Solicitor, Department of Labor.................................................... 40 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Articles, pUblications, et cetera: 
Jurisdiction of Departments of Labor and Justice in Lqbor Area, memo­

randum from Eleanore Hill, chief counsel, to SenatvJ. Nunn, February 
2, 1982 ................................................................................................................... . 

Status Report on Labor Department-Criminal Divishm Investigative Re­
lationships, memorandum from Benjamin R. Civiletti, Assistant Attor­
ney General, Criminal Division, and John C. Keeney, Deputy Assistant 
Attorney General, Criminal Division, January 31, 1978 ............................ .. 

Communications to: 
Nickles, Hon. Donald, chairman, Subcommittee on Labor, from Robert A. 

McConnell, Assistant Attorney General, Office of Legislative Affairs, 
U.S. Department of Justice, February 9, 1982 .............................................. .. 

Nunn, Hon. Sam, a U.S. Senator from the State of Georgia, from George 
W. Lehr, executive director, Central States Southeast and Southwest 
Areas Health and Welfare and Pension Funds, December 17, 1981 ......... . 

(III) 

12 

30 

66 

24 
\ 



Q 

"1 

I) 

~ ; 

, l 
j 

I} 

'1 
I; 
j 
4 

01 
" 1 

i 

.;" 

L
l I 

J 

LABOR MANAGEMENT RACKETEERING ACT OF 
1981 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 3, 1982 

U.S. SENATE, 
SUBCOMMITTEE ON LABOR, 

COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES, 
Washington, D. C. 

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:05 a.m., in room 
4232, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Don Nickles (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding. 

Present: Senators Hatch and Nickles. 
Also present: Senators Rudman and Nunn. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR NICKLES 

Senator NICKLES. The subcommittee will be in order. 
Good morning. Today's hearing is on Senate bill 1785, the Labor 

Management Racketeering Act, the culmination of many years of 
oversight hearings in this area by the Permanent Subcommittee on 
Investigations. I was privileged along with Senator Hatch to join 
Senator Roth, Senator Rudman, and Senator Nunn at several of 
their hearings held last year. I am pleased that Senators Rudman 
and Nunn are joining us this morning. 

The need for this legislation has been clearly established. At the 
waterfront corruption hearings, I was appalled to learn that buying 
labor's favors is a common practice on our Nation's waterfronts. It 
is recognized that much of the problem is a result of the enactment 
of laws which seem to encourage crime. It is time we changed the 
course of this country's labor laws. It is time the laws reflect the 
high standards Americans expect of us. 

Other serious problems were uncovered during the hearings con-
ducted on the Teamsters Central States Pension Fund and the ac-
tivities surrounding that fund. The problems have been well publi-
cized and cast a shadow on both the Labor Department and certain 
aspects of the labor movement. 

There are other examples, but we are not here today to look 
behind us. Rather, we must look ahead. We need to explore what 
corrective actions have been taken and what needs to be done to 
insure that these same mistakes will not be repeated. 

The bill we will discuss today is certainly a step in that right di-
rection. 

Senate bill 1785 adds to and clarifies the list of crimes which dis-
qualify certain persons from holding positions of trust either with 
an employee benefit plan or in a labor organization. Further, the 
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bill increases the period of time for which such a person is not al­
lowed to serve in these positions from 5 years. t~ 10 years and 
begins running on the date of the trial court convlctlOn rathe~ than 
the date of the last appeal. This preclude~ someone found gUIlty of 
a felony from continuing to manage penSlOn I?lan funds or a labor 
organization until he has exhausted all of hIS appeals, a process 
which can extend for years. To so~ten thIS, all moneys .due such 
persons are paid into escrow and, If later found not gUIlty, such 
funds will be reimbursed. . ' . . 

Under current law, there is a loophole :vhlch permIts offIcers, d~-
rectors and other members of the governmg board ?f labor orgam­
zations' who have committed certain crimes to r~maln e~ployees ?f 
that labor organization in clerical or custodIal posltlons. T~llS 
allows a convicted felon to retain his same pay and power b:f bemg 
classified as a clerk for payroll purposes: These are the kmds of 
laws which have outraged the people of thIS country. . 

The perceived duty of the Labor Department t? actIvely purs~e 
potential criminal activities in the labor or penSlOn field has dIf­
fered over the years. I am pleased that Secretary Donovap has. al­
ready testified tJ:at. under ~j~ .dir~ction the Department wIll actIve­
ly investigate crImmal actIvItIes m the labor ~,rea. On. Octo~er 28, 
1981, Secretary Donovan stated, and. I quote: If we. fmd eVH~~nce 
of criminal wrongdoing, the matter wIll be pursued vIgorously. 

I look forward to further comments from the Labor Department 

~~ . -At these same hearings, AFL-CIO President Lane KIrkland told 
us, and I quote: ItU nion office is a calling, not a bus~ness. Those 
who enter that calling are, and should be, held to a hIgher stand-
ard." . 

We greatly appreciate Mr. Kirkland's endorsem~nt of our bIll 
with two narrow qualifications. I agree with Mr. KIrkland t.hat a 
person holding union office who takes an employer payoff, mIsuses 
the right to strike, or pilfers from a union treasury, .casts a dark. 
shadow on the efforts of men and women who are umon members 
~~y. . 

This subcommittee is willing to continue to work with all partIes 
interested in and affected by this legislation. We must set aside po­
litical differences, keeping in mind the Americans who will be af­
fected by our decisions today. 

I think it is critical, if we are going to be able to successfully 
clean up many of the abuses that have been brought out over the 
testimony before the Permanent Subcommittee ?n In~estigatio~s, 
that this legislation or legislation with some possIble mmor modIfi­
cations be enacted. 

I am very pleased that Senator Hatch as chairman of the Com­
mittee on Labor and Human Resources has shown his interest by 
his involvement in the hearing and also involvement with his staff 
in this legislation and other measures that we will be working on 
in the near future. 

It is our intention to hold a subcommittee markup, hopefully, on 
this bill if we can get all parties resolved by next Tuesday, Febru­
ary 9, in addition to markup of the Longshore Act before the full 
L,"~hor Committee by next Tuesday. 
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Senator Hatch, we thank you again for your cooperation and as­
sistance on behalf of the full Labor Committee. I appreciate your 
input and cosponsorship also of Senate bill 1785. 

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR HATCH 

Senator HATCH. Thank you so much, Senator Nickles. We appre­
ciate the leadership that you have shown as well as our colleagues 
who are going to testify here this morning. 

This hearing today is probably one of the most critical and im­
portant hearings which this committee will hold in this Congress. 
Without question, labor management corruption is one of the most 
sinister threats to the health and well-being of the trade union 
movement and of our industrial democracy and to the men and 
women who work within that movement. That is, after all, the 
bottom line as far as I am concerned. But it is not only a threat to 
the welfare and security of our Nation's working men and women. 
By siphoning off billions of dollars for bribes, payoffs, and kick­
backs, organized crime is gapping our economy of the strength and 
the resources vitally needed to increase productivity and create 
more employment. 

It is for this reason that I am both pleased and proud of our dis­
tinguished subcommittee chairman, Senator Nickles, for scheduling 
this hearing on the Labor Management Racketeering Act of 1981, a 
bill which both he and I have the privilege of cosponsoring. At the 
same time, I want to give special recognition and commendation to 
both Senator.s N unn and Rudman. It has been through their vig­
orous and tireless leadership of the Permanent Subcommittee on 
Investigations that we have a comprehensive record on union cor­
ruption as it exists today. 

Over the last several years, they have conducted exhaustive over­
sight hearings. Special atterrtion has been given to crime on the 
waterfronts. What has been so disturbing about their hearings is 
that they vividly demonstrate the reality and the pervasiveness of 
labor management racketeering. It remains perhaps as serious 
today as it was 30 years ago when Senator Kefauver, followed by 
Senator McClellan, led the historical investigations into union cor­
ruption. 

Equally disturbing is the apparent fact that the efforts by the 
Federal Government, especially the Department of Labor, to 
combat and root out such corruption has at times been disappoint­
ing. Indeed, the Permanent Senate Investigations Subcommittee in­
vestigations into the Department's handling of the Central States 
Teamster Pension case paint a picture of incompetence if not will­
ful and reckless indifference. However, it is very gratifying that 
the labors of the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations have 
borne fruit. The bill which we consider today is the result of PSI's 
work. It is especially pleasing to note that the AFL-CIO under the 
strong leadership of its distinguished president, Lane Kirkland, has 
endorsed this legislation. 

I also ca:re to mention that Doug Fraser of the United Auto 
Workers has expressed interest and support for this legislation. I 
think it bodes well for the labor movement when two of the top 
leaders can speak out and admit and can cooperate-admit that 
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there is corruption and speak out and try and cooperate in trying 
to stop any corruption that exists.. . . 

It always gives me a sense of satIsfactIOn. ~hen the .leadershIp C?f 
organized labor and I can agree on somethmg. I thmk that thIS 
bodes well for prompt passage of this ~egislation. . 

I am looking forward today to hearmg from our colleagues. LIke­
wise I am looking forward to hearing from the Department of Jus­
tice ~nd the Department of La~or ~or their comments, n?t only f?r 
their comments on the legislatIOn Itself but also for theIr commIt­
ment to enforce vigorously, both this measure and the criminal and 
civil laws already in force. 

Again, I want to tha~k Senator~ ~unn and Rudman for the le.ad­
ership that they have gIven on thIS Issue. I am proud to be aSSOCIat­
ed with both of them. I believe that, when this classic landmark 
piece of legislation finally pa3ses Congress, that the men and 
women the workers of America will be much better off. 

Senator NICKLES. Thank you, Senator Hatch. We appreciate your 
input. . . . 

I think, Senators Rudman and Nunn, If It would be all rIght, 
both of you can make your statements first, then we can addr~ss 
our questions to both of you. Senator Rudman, would you begIn? 

STATEMENT OF RON. WARREN RUDMAN, A U.S. SENATOR FROM 
THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 

Senator RUDMAN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and Sen­
ator Hatch. 

I appreciate the opportunity to testify before your Labor Subcom­
mittee today as you open hearings on S. 1785, the Labor Manage­
ment Racketeering Act of 1981. 

I want to say at the outset that I am privileged to sit here at the 
table with Senator Nunn, who has led the bipartisan effort of the 
Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations, chaired by Senator 
Roth, in a series of investigative hearings starting the year before 
last and contiuuing through last year that I think were extraordi­
nary based upon the amount of evidence adduced and the legisla­
tion that the hearings will, hopefully, produce. 

I first became involved with the issue last year when Senator 
Roth convened hearings before PSI to continue Senator Nunn's in­
vestigations into waterfront corruption. As a new Senator, I only 
became involved during the final stages of the investigations. How­
ever, as attorney general of the State of New Hampshire for 6 
years, I had firsthand experience with investigations and the activi­
ties of organized crime. As a former law enforcement official, I am 
pleased to be associated with this effort to eliminate the influence 
of organized crime in union affairs. I am particularly pleased to see 
that both the Teamsters control States' pension fund and the AFL­
CIO have stepped forward to endorse this legislation, which will 
benefit the rank and file as well as all other levels of this economy. 

Senate bill 1785 attempts to respond to the limitations in present 
law which have resulted in the frustration of the intent of previ­
ously enacted statutes. It is a product of the hearings last year on 
waterfront corruption which identified the insidious influence orga­
nized crime continues to hold over American business. Most of the 
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testimony dealt with the Department of ~Justice's Miami Organized 
Crime Strike Force investigation that began during October of 
1975. The investigation, known as UNIRAC, culminated in 22 in­
dictments and 9 convictions. Witnesses who were involved with 
UNIRAC testified that the large network of U.S. ports are con­
trolled by organized crime. Payoffs occur with such regularity that 
they have become a part of normal business operating costs. Larce­
ny, sabotage, and labor disruption are so prevalent that they are 
included as a part of the cost of doing business and, of course, are 
passed on to the consumer. Without question, when these condi­
tions prevail, free enterprise does not exist. Competition is stifled, 
making it impossible for legitimate business to operate. The result 
is a cancer on the economy; a parasite which feeds off consumers, 
legitimate businesses, and union members alike. 

It would be unfair to those involved in the UNIRAC investiga­
tion for me to say that no substantial gains were made. Unfortu­
nately, however, according to witnesses at our hearings, the corrup­
tion continues; it is business as usual on the docks. An unanticipat­
ed consequence of the legislation as presently written has occurred. 
During the pendency of their appeals, convicted union officials con­
tinue to operate in their former positions. The president of a 
Miami local who was tried, convicted, and sentenced as a result of 
the UNIRAC efforts was reelected president of his union. Other 
convicted union officials who exercised their fifth amendment 
rights during our hearings continue to hold and abuse their union 
positions. Racketeering and corruption continue, resulting in a nul­
lification of much of the effort of the UNIRAC investigation. 

The answer to the problem is simple and forthright. Under the 
provisions of S. 1785, union officials would no longer be able to con­
tinue in office once they had been convicted of crimes enumerated 
in this statute. Any such disbarment would last for 10 years in 
order to fully cleanse the union's ranks of the corruption of past 
officials. 

This is the meat of S. 1785. There are other provisions of great 
importance, but this one provision would insure that the efforts of 
law enforcement officials will not be in vain, that the corrupt influ­
ence of convicted union officials would in fact be terminated. 

Finally, Mr. Chairman, I want to make one further important 
point with respect to the provision of S. 1785 which clarifies the re­
sponsibility of the Secretary of Labor to investigate civil and crimi­
nal violations of the Federal pension law and related statutes. As 
you know, over the past 5 years the Permanent Subcommittee on 
Investigations has involved itself continuously in the oversight of 
the Department of Labor with respect to its commitment to crimi­
nal enforcement actions. During the last administration, this over­
sight developed into confrontation between the subcommittee and 
the Department of Labor as a result of our view that not enough 
was being done to insure that criminal as well as civil sanctions 
were being sought . 

Indeed, our subcommittee held hearings 3 years ago when the 
Secretary of Labor sought to withdraw Department of Labor sup­
port from the organized crime strike force program. Under this ad­
ministration, our subcommittee has listened to a new Secretary of 
Labor who professes a strong commitment to criminal investigative 
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actions. Yet, I am frank to tell you that I am troubled over what 
has occurred in the aftermath of the October 1981, hearings in 
which we were told of this new resolve at the Department of Labor. 
At least twice within the past 2 months, senior Department of 
Labor officials have met with senior Department of Justice officials 
to discuss the possible transfer or abolition of the approximately 90 
positions held by the Inspector General at the Department of Labor 
solely for the investigation of organized crime and its corruption of 
union benefit plans. This raises the very issue considered 3 years 
ago. 

It distresses me greatly to think that once again we may-and I 
emphasize may-we may have a Department of Labor which seeks 
to avoid the immense responsibility of insuring the integrity of the 
benefit plans which protect the working people of the United 
States. It concerns me further that the Department of Labor can 
even undertake preliminary discussions with the Department of 
Justice relating to the transfer or abolition of these 90 positions 
without the common courtesy of discussing the matter with the 
majority and minority members of the Permanent Subcommittee 
on Investigations, given the prior attention and history in this 
issue. 

When our hearings were concluded last October, a commitment 
was made to hold followup hearings to insure that the apparent 
commitment of the Secretary of Labor and the Department of 
Labor to institute aggressive investigative policies was, in fact, re­
flected by the Department's actions. Now, more than before, the 
need to analyze that commitment is apparent. To that end, I hope 
that our subcommittee can continue to work with members and 
staff of this subcommittee to insure not only a commitment from 
the Department of Labor in this regard but also, Mr. Chairman, 
tangible action. 

Senator NICKLES. I appreciate your comments. I can assure you 
that this subcommittee, and also the full Labor Committee has 
been very appreciative of the efforts of the Permanent Subcommit­
tee on Investigations for your input. We will continue to aggres­
sively work together to insure adequate enfo!'cernent by both Jus­
tice and Labor. We will certainly work together on that. Senator 
Nunn? 

STATEMENT OF HON. SAM NUNN, A U.S. SENATOR FROM THE 
STATE OF GEORGIA 

Senator NUNN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and Sena­
tor Hatch. I am delighted to appear here today with Senator 
Rudman at the opening of the Labor Subcommittee's hearings on 
S. 1785, the Labor Management Racketeering Act of 1981. As you 
know, I introduced that bill in the Senate on October 28 1981 to­
gether with several cosponsors. I am very pleased, Mr. Chair~an, 
that you are a cosponsor of that bill. To date, we have a total of 12 
cosponsors. I hope we will have others. All of us feel that this is a 
necessary an~ very important piece of legislation. I want to thank 
you, Mr. ChaIrman, as well as Senator Hatch as chairman of the 
full committee for your cooperation, for your prompt hearings on 
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this very important subject, and for the splendid cooperation that 
your staff has given to our staff. 

I alsu want to thank Senator Rudman and Senator Roth for the 
splendid and complete cooperation we have had between the major­
ity and the minority of Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations 
in working on this legislation and on the hearings. Having Senator 
Rudman on the subcommittee is indeed a great asset because he 
comes with a tremendous amount of experience in this area. Even 
though he has not been in the Senate very long, you would never 
know it because he has done a terrific job in this area. 

S. 1785 attempts to remedy serious problems concerning the infil­
tration of unions and employee benefit plans by corrupt officials 
who have no real concern for the well-being of the honest rank­
and-file union members they pretend to represent. This bill is a 
direct outgrowth of public hearings on waterfront corruption held 
before the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations in February 
of 1981. I know, Mr. Chairman, that you recall these hearings be­
cause you and Senate Hatch joined us in the hearings and made a 
real contribution at that time. You certainly effectively participat­
ed in our efforts to expose the corruption on our Nation's water­
front. We appreciated your knowledgeable concern and support 
then, and we continue to appreciate that. 

I am going to skip over a good bit of my prepared testimony. 
There are a lot of details here that are very important, but I know 
you have other witnesses. So, if you would indulge me, I will move 
over and ask that my entire statement be put in the record. 

Senator NICKLES. It will be put in the record. 
Senator NUNN. Mr. Chairman, the 2 weeks of hearings we con­

ducted in 1981 as a result of our extensive investigation presented 
a very dismal picture. We heard that the corruption bred by orga­
nized crime is still business as usual in many port cities. We heard 
that certain ILA officials have direct links to organized crime fig­
ures in the traditional mob families, and that payoff money was 
shared with known organized criminals. 

It was the position of such people in union office which gave 
them the power to perform these feats of corruption. And despite 
their convictions almost all of them, as Senator Rudman has indi­
cated, were still in union office when we held our hearings long 
after the convictions. 

The influence of these people is shocking, even in ports such as 
Savannah, Ga., in my home State. One of our key witnesses, a 
Miami shipping executive, told us under oath that he was able to 
expand his business to Savannah only by paying off ILA officials in 
Miami. Those officials arranged a lucrative stevedoring contract 
and promised him top-quality labor in Savannah in return for the 
payoff money. This situation brings home to all Americans the 
enormous control that organized crime, operating out of New York 
and Miami under the guise of union officers, has over the entire 
Atlantic seaboard. 

Again, Mr. Chairman, we found that most of the corrupt officials 
who derived this power from union office were still, long after their 
convictions, holding their union offices and perverting union 
strength, and I might add very strongly, taking advantage of the 
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ra:t;k and file, honorable and honest working people in those 
unIOns. 

Our hearings showed how workmen's compensation had been 
used to extort money from shipping company executives. I know 
y.ou are espec~ally concerned with this aspect of waterfront corrup­
tIon, Mr. ChaIrman, and I am proud to have cosponsored with you 
S. 1182, the Water Workers Compensation Act, which you intro­
duced last year. I also hope that that makes progress as we move 
down the legislative agenda. ' 

Witness after witness described the struggle for economic surviv­
al in ports riddled with a pervasive pattern of kickbacks and illegal 
.payoffs to union officials. My colleagues and I heard of payoffs to 
msure the award of work contracts, payoffs to maintain contracts 
already awarded, payoffs to insure labor peace, payoffs to allow 
~~nagement circumvention of ,labor strikes, payoffs to prevent the 
fIlmg of fraudulent workmen s compensation claims payoffs to 
expand busi~ess activity into new. ports, and payoffs t~ accord cer­
tam compames the freedom to CIrcumvent ILA contract require­
ments with impunity. 

Again, we found that the corrupt officials derived the leverage to 
extort these payoffs from their key positions as union officers. 
Agam, we found that most of those officers were still in office long 
after they had been convicted in court. 

Moreover, we. were t.old that. a payoff is commonly treated as a 
mere cost of domg busmess whIch can be, and is, routinely passed 
on ~s an added cost to t?e consumer. Our traditional and cherished 
notIOns of. free enterprIse have become nearly nonexistent in the 
ports of thIS country. 

These pa,yoffs, though illegal under current law, are punishable 
only as a mIsdemeanor. 
. In our ~earings we dis?overed problems which cry out for legisla­

tIve solutIOns. The JustIce Department's investigation we found 
was a perfect example of just how much effect law enfo;cement ca~ 
have on labor union corruption. The FBI and the Government's 
prosecut?rs have. done ~l~ the~ can to weed out that corruption, yet 
the convIcted ~mon o~fIC~als m most cases continued to hold office 
long after th~Ir convIctI?ns. Nothing more undermines the law 
thaI?- tha~, seemg. a .massIve FBI effort over a period of years pay 
off m umon convIctIons ~nd corruption convictions and then have 
that c?mplete~y undermmed. because the judicial system and our 
l~ws sIm!?ly dId not accomplIsh the purpose. Nothing can be more 
~Iscouragmg to law enforcement. Nothing can be more discourag­
mg to ~he ran~ and file .who believe that they are entitled to some 
protectIOn agamst thIS kmd of abuse. 

We caI?-not, ~s. Members of the Senate, Members of Congress, and 
as AmerIcan cItIzens expect the FBI and the Justice Department to 
devote huge re.s0l!rces to the waterfront on a perpetual basis. They 
have done theIr Job, a~d they have done it well. Unless, however, 
we ~ave a correspondmg effort by the Congress this cancer will 
contmue to grow. ' 
. The bill before this subcommittee, S. 1785, was designed to effec­

~Ively address the most ~lari~&, proble~s exposed by our 1981 hear­
mgs as well as by the mqUlrIeS and mvestigations of the last 30 
years. 

i 
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As I noted, payoffs by company officers to union officials are, 
under current law, punishable only as a misdemeanor. S. 1785 
makes any such violation involving an amount of money greater 
than $1,000 a felony punishable by up to 5 years imprisonment or a 
fine of up to $15,000 or both. 

Another problem I mentioned was the fact that convicted union 
officials remain in union office until all appeals from their convic­
tions have been exhausted, usually long after the origin.al convic­
tion. This bill attempts to rid labor organizations and employee 
~enefit plans of the influence of these corrupt elements by provid­
mg that they shall be barred from union or benefit plan office im­
mediately after their conviction, that is, as of the day of the guilty 
verdict, not as of the much later final appeal. In order to be as fair 
as possible, the bill provides that the salary which a convicted offi­
cial would receive shall be placed in escrow during his appeals and 
will be available for him or for her if the conviction is finally re­
versed. 

Current law provides that a union officer or an officer of an em­
ployee benefit plan sha.ll be prohibited from holding certain union 
offices for a period of 5 years. Our investigation and hearings 
compel us to the conclusion that this is not long enough. Many cor­
rupt officials have enough power to enable them to continue to 
exert adequate influence over unions and employee benefit plans so 
as to resume office after a 5-year lapse and continue on with the 
corruption. We concluded that a 10-year ban would provide enough 
time for a union to rid itself of the convicted official's influence. 

Current law enumerates those crimes for which conviction will 
result in removal from office and disbarment. S. 1785 leaves the 
list of crimes as they are presently written but adds to the end of 
the list a catchall phrase requiring removal if the individual is con­
victed of any Federal or State felony involving abuse or misuse of 
his official position. 

S. 1785 also specifies those employee benefit plan officials who 
are subject to removal and disbarment for conviction of an enumer­
ated offense. Current law merely refers to any person who has 
been convicted. S. 1785 specifies the particular officials subject to 
this provision. As written, the provision would apply equally to 
union as well as management representatives holding positions of 
trust as to employee benefit plans. 

Mr. Chairman, I think it is fair to point out that this is a two­
way street. This kind of corruption could not take place successful­
ly if management was not also involved. I might add here that, 
since our hearings, the National Association of Stevedores has 
adopted a code of ethics within their own ranks. I am doing all I 
can to try to encourage the Federal Trade Commission to approve 
that code of ethics without saying that it is a violation of antitrust 
laws. But that is the kind of tangle' we run into today: The steve­
dores adopting a code of ethics and having to get it approved by the 
FTC as a possible violation of antitrust laws. I would hope that the 
FTC would act on that in the near future. 

S. 1785 also enumerates the particular offices and positions 
which an individual is prohibited from holding if he has ever been 
convicted of an el1umerated crime. These offices and positions were 
listed after very careful consideration and were drafted. so as not to 
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inhibit the payment of union pensions or to prohibit union mem-
bership. .. 'l't d th . 

Finally, the bill clearly delineates tJ:e responslbl I y .an ~u or~-
ty of the Department of Labor to actIvely and effectIvely mvestI­
gate and refer for prosecution cri!llinal ~ctiviti~s. rel~tin&, to union 
or employee benefit plan corruptIOn. Thl~ prOVISIOn I~ dIrectlJ; ,re­
spo:msive to the many witnesses who du;rmg our hearmgs testIf~ed 
that th; Department of Labor had conslSten~ly over a long penod 
of time failed to act against labor racketeermg on the waterfront 
and elsewherE::. 

We heard from both Federal prosecutors and the FBI that the 
Department of Labor had taken no role in the fight against crimi­
nal corruption on the New York/New Jersey waterfront. A Federal 
prosecutor told us that the Department of ~ab?r had simpl~ not ad­
dressed the problem of waterfront corruptIOn m south Flonda. The 
chief investigator of the State attorney's office in Dade County, 
Fla. told us that no Federal agency, including the Department of 
Lab~r currently monitors criminal corruption on the Miami water­
front. 'A witness convicted in the UNIRAC investigation and famil­
iar with the scope of labor racketeering suggested that the Labor 
Department, given its failure to act in the area, should be com­
pletely abolished. 

Secretary Donovan, in our November hearings, promised a more 
active role by the Department in the criminal area. Nevertheless, I 
have only recently learned, as Senator Ru~man refe~red to a f~w 
minutes ago, that thG Department of Labor IS now senously consId­
ering transferring many, if not all, of its criminal investigators to 
some other Federal enforcement agency. Clearly, such action sug­
gests thc;.t; the directive set forth in S. 1785 is necessary to insure 
an active and effective role by the Department of Labor in the 
criminal area. 

I now undE::l'stand that there may be some opposition to this last 
section of the bill as a possible encroachment on the authority of 
other Federal investigative and prosecutorial agencies to pursue 
criminal allegations. Mr. Chairman and Senator Hatch, that argu­
ment ignores the specific provision of S. 1785 which we intentional­
ly included to avoid such a result. The bill expressly states, and I quote: 

Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to preclude other appropriate Feder­
al agencies from detecting and investigating civil and criminal violations of this sub­
chapter and other related Federal laws. 

So, when the Department representatives testify, I would ask, 
Mr. Chairman, that they be questioned as to how in any way this 
kind of provision, which is abundantly clear, would dilute the juris­
diction of the Justice Department. I simply do not understand it. 
Frankly, I am quite disappointed that neither your subcommittee 
nor our subcommittee were informed of the Department of Labor 
and the Department of Justice's position until shortly before these 
hearings. This matter has been pending for months and months 
and months and months and months. 

Senator HATCH. Would you yield, Senate., Nunn? I feel exactly 
the same way you do about that. I think it is pathetic. 'l'here is 
nothing that jnterferes or encroaches upon the Justice I 
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Department's right and its real obligat~on, as ~ matter of/act, to 
get in and do whatever it can about busmess Emon corruptIOn. ~ut 
I think it would be a travesty if the Department of Labor, whICh 
has direct jurisdiction, is not doing everything it can, even 
independently of the Justice Department, to try and resolve these 
conflicts. 

So I am with you. I personally believe that you have done this 
country a great service in raising this issue. We will ask those 
questions of the representatives of both agencies. 

Senator NUNN. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Just as a 
matter of interest while we are at a brief breaking point, I have 
asked the staff to 'come up with a sheet which I will furnish. That 
sheet shows the unique provisions of the law that give the Labor 
Department jurisdiction over the provisions, for instance, of the 
Labor Management Reporting and Disclosure Act. That is 29 U.S.C. 
504; 29 U.S.C. 1111 is the debarment r-rovisions of the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act, known as ERISA; and the Labor 
Management Services Administration, known as LMSA, is also 
under the jurisdict:. 1 of the Department of Labor. 

[The information referred to follows:] 

a 
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MEMORANDUM 

February 2, 1982 

TO: Senator Nunn 

FROM: Eleanore Hill 
Chief Counsel 

RE: Jurisdiction of Departments of Labor and Justice in labor area 

There are several areas of responsibility in the labor field which could 
theoretically be transferred to the Justice Department in addition to 
responsibilities for criminal investigations. Should the Justice Department insist 
upon all criminal responsibility in these areas, they could possibly be charged with 
various areas of reporting, disclosure and filing requirements as well. As you 
requested, those areas can be generally grouped as follows: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

EH/kd 

Enforcement of 29 U.S.C. 504 (debarment prOVisIOns of 
the Labor Management Reporting and Disclosure Act) as 
well as the numerous reporting and trusteeship provisions 
for labor organizations under that statute (29 U.S.C. 431-
482); 

Enforcement of 29 U.S.C. 1111 (debarment provisions of 
the Employment Retirement Income Security Act 
(ERISA» {criminal violations delegated to FBI by 
Justice/Labor memo of understanding} as well as the 
numerous reporting and disclosure provisions for employee 
welfare benefit plans now delegated to the supervision of 
the Labor Department under ERISA - Titles 1 and 3 of 
ERISA are generally under Labor's jurisdiction (with 
supervision of civil enforcement litigation delegated to 
Justice), while Title 2 of the Act falls within Treasury's 
jurisdiction; 

Lastly, the Labor Management Services Administration 
(LMSA) of the Department of Labor is responsible for the 
administration of innumerable other statutory labor 
requirements aside from those in LMRDA and ERISA (the 
statutes which S. 1785 amends). Attached for your 
information is a list provided by the Labor Subcommittee 
detailing all areas of statutory responsibility for LMSA. 
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AUTHORIZING LEGISLATIO~ 

Legislation 

Aut~orizing lesislation containing 
L~definite authority 

~rban ~ass Transportation Ace 
of 1964, as amended 
(P.L. 88-363) •••••••••••••••• ; ••• ~ ....•..•.•••• 

Rail Passenger Service Act 
of 1970, as amended 
(P.L. 91-518) ................................. . 

Federal Highway Aid Act of 
1974, (P.L. 93-87) ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Surface Transportation Assistance 
Act of 1978, (P.L. 95-599) ••••••••••..•.••••••• 

An act to create a Deuart~ent 
of Labor, (P.L. 62-426) ....... 0 ... 0 ............ . 

Labor-Management Reporting and 
Disclosure Act of 1959, as 
amended, (P.L. 86-257) ........................ . 

Civil Service Reform Act of 
1978, (P.L. 95-454) •••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Vietnam Era Veterans' Read­
justment Assistance Act of 
1974 (P.L.) 93-508 ••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

Employee Retire~ent Income 
Security Act of 1974 
(P.L. 93-406) .................................. . 

National Mass Transportation 
Assistance Act of 1974 
(P.L. 93-503) •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

High-Speed Ground Transpor­
tation Act of 1965, as 
amended, (P.L. 89-220) .................... , .. .. 

Redwood ~ational Park Act 
of 1978, as amended 
(P.L. 95-250) •••••••••••••••••••••••...•.•••••. 

Airline Deregulation Act 
of 1978, (P.L. 95-50 f.) ....................... .. 

Social Security Disability 
amendments of 1980, 
(P .L. 96-265) •••••••••••••••••••••••.•••••••••••• 

Health Planning and Resources 
Development Amendments of 
1979, (1'. L. 96-79) ••.•..•.•.••....•.....•.......• 

90-945 0-82-2 

Budget Recuest 
1981 1~i32 

5281,000 S303,000 

16,000 17,000 

13,000 14,000 

226,000 244.000 

1,901,000 2,050,000 

19,i58,OOG 20.591,000 

817,000 851,000 

3,246,000 3,419,000 

31,755,000 33,459,000 

-0- -0-

-0- -0-

265,000 285,000 \ 

77,000 82,000 

-0- -0-

-0- -0-
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Senator NUNN. We have had witness after witness after witness 
tell us that these provisions of the Code give the Labor Depart~ent 
the unique ability to have the records and the books and t~ be m a 
constant monitoring position as to violations of the penSIOn law, 
and violations of other relevant labor provisions. Now, if the Jus­
tice Department is coming here this morning and testifying that 
they oppose the Labor Department having criminal jurisdiction, 
then they are opposing what we understand is the existing law. We 
are trying to make it abundantly clear in this provision. 

Senator HATCH. If you would yield again, I agree with you on 
that, too. We have had a year of difficulties up until recently, when 
we have been getting, I think, quite a great degree of cooperation 
from the Department of Labor. We have had a year of difficulties 
in getting into some of these materials that I think have put us a 
year behind. I will be honest with you. I am sick and tired of it. If 
we have to write the law more explicitly, I am for doing that. 

I agree with you. I think you have done a great service in point­
ing that out here today. It is something that has really bothered us 
on this committee for this past year and, frankly, long before that; 
but there was not too much interest in getting into these things 
before that other than on your subcommittee. 

Senator NUNN. Thank you very much, Senator Hatch. 
I just want to inform both the Justice Department and the Labor 

Department that, if they are really serious about their position in 
opposing labor criminal investigations in this area, then what I 
would suggest is that we take a close look at transferring all of 
these responsibilities from the Labor Department in the pension 
area to the Justice Department. The Justice Department simply 
cannot do tht!ir job in this area without having more jurisdiction 
than they do now. So, if they want to have the exclusive jurisdic­
tion over the criminal side and keep Labor from getting involved at 
all, I say let us take a close look at turning all of this statutory 
responsibility over to them and taking that hunk of the Labor De­
partment, which is a huge portion of it, and putting it over in the 
Justice Department once and for all. That may result in the aboli­
tion of the Department of Labor; but, if that is the case, so be it. 

Senator NICKLES. I think the very idea of Justice receiving 
ERISA would scare them enough that they may change their posi­
tion. 

Senator NUNN. I would like Attor.ney General Smith to read 
through ERISA and then tell us if he really wants that. 

Senator NICKLES. I would agree wi.eh your statement wholeheart­
edly. We look forward to receiving their testimony. 

I am not wanting to interrupt Did you have some other state­
ments? 

Senator NUNN. Just briefly, I will skip over even my abbreviated 
section. 

I do want to close on this point, stating what we have heard from 
the Department of Justice in the past on this kind of capability. A 
Federal prosecutor testified, and this is, of course, a Justice Depart­
ment official, and I am quoting him. When asked whether the De­
partment of Justice is capable of continually policing the water­
front on the level of UNIRAC, the prosecutor testified, and I quote: 

• 
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It is impossible, Senator. What has happened is, for instance, the agents and at­
torneys who were first involved in this investigation and prosecution have gone on 
into other areas and we have other priorities. It takes an enormous amount of re­
sources to be committed to this matter in order to monitor and police the industry. 

The same prosecutor testified that the Department of Labor 
cou~d play an effectiv~ role in the ,~f:fort against labor racketeering, 
notmg that, and agam I quote: They have the authority" -and 
this is the key: 

They have the authority to monitor this better than the FBI can in terms of con­
stant monitoring. T~e FBI, I think, h~s t~ devote its resources to too many other 
areas and the notonety of the corruptIOn m the waterfront and in the ILA should 
catch the Department of Labor's attention to monitor what is going on in that in­
dustry. 

Mr. Chairman, we have had all sorts of testimony in this area, 
from Attorney General John Keeney to the Attorney General, Ben 
Civiletti. I will not go into details on it, but I will refer that to you 
and your staff for the record. 

I just want to close by saying that I am pleased that Lane Kirk­
land, president of the AFL-CIO, has endorsed S. 1785. I think that 
is a very, very significant step. I certainly want to ~hank Lane 
Kirkland for coming forward and making that kind of endorse­
ment, which I know required a great deal of discussion in his own 
group. I think it was an act both of integrity and courage. 

Also, S. 1785 was endorsed by George Lehr, the executive direc­
tor of the Teamsters Central States Pension Fund. After he made 
the endorsement himself, I asked him if he would get his board of 
trustees to consider the subject. I have a letter from him dated De­
cember 17, 1981, saying that the Central States Southeast and 
Southwest Area Pension Fund endorses S. 1785. I would like to 
make that a part of the record. 

Senator NICKLES. Without objection, th.e material you referred to 
will be inserted into the record along with your entire prepared 
statement. 

[The prepared statement of Senator Nunn and letter referred to 
follows:]. 

, -

--, 
-r l 

\ 



rJ 

16 

STATEMENT OF SENATOR SAM NUNN 

Before The 

Subcommittee on Labor 
Of The 

Committee on Labor &. Human Resources 

February 3, 1982 

Mr. Chairman, I am delighted to appear here today at the opening of the 

Labor Subcommittee's hearings on S. 1785, the "Lab:>r ~Ianagement Racketeering 

Act of 1981." As you know, I introduced that bill in the Senate on October 2&, 1931. 

I was ver)' pleased to have you join me as, a cosponsor on that bill. To date, we 

have a total of twelve cosponsors. AI! of us feel that this is a necessary and 

important piece of legislation, and I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, as well as 

the full Subcommittee and staff, for the prompt scheduling of these hearings. 

S. 1785 attempts to remedy serious problems concerning the Infiltration ol 

l!nions and employee benefit plans by corrupt officials who have no real concern for 

the well-being of the ~onest rank-an~-file union members they pretend to 

represent. The bill is a direct outgrowth of pu~lic hearings on waterfront 

corruption held before the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations in February, 

1981. I know that you recall those hearings, Mr. Chairman, because you and Senator 

. Hatch joined us at that time and actively and effectively partiCipated in our 

efforts to expose the corruption on our nation's waterfront. We appreciated your 

knowledgeable concern and support then as we do now. 

Our February, 1981, hearings were the latest in a series of Congrcssion'll 

hearings .which goes back 20 years to the time when the late Senator John L. 

McClellan chaired the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations. Many of us 

remember vividly the McClellan committee's investigation which ex:>osed a wide 

pattern of racketeering and organized crime infiltration of several labor unions, 

most notabiy the Teamsters. Those hearings lent considerable support for laws 

which were designed to assist in stamping OUt labor union corruption. 

Actually, the McClellan hearings followed the work of the Kefauver crime 

committee of the early 1950's and its successor, the Subcommittee on Waterfront 

Racketeering and Port Secuirty of the Senate Commerce Committee. 

The Kefauver committee touched on v:.aterfront, union corru;>tion and the 

Waterfront Subcommittee followed with an extensive investigatio'l in 1953. In its 

interim report on the New York-New Jersey waterfront, the Subcomrni ttee said of 

"the Nation's tough and trouble-ridden waterfront": 
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For many years these areas h'3.ve remained lawless 
frontiers, with segments that have consistently defied 
(organized crime) infiltration. Yet they are also bottlenecks 
for foreign and intercostal commerce. Here the mob is still 
entrenched, gorging itself on the flow of ship;>ing, and resi3ting 
al! attempts to break up what has been characterized as "the 
last business racket." 

The Subcommittee found that: 

Criminals whose long records beli~ any suggestion that' 
they can be reformed have been monopolizing controlling 
positions In the International Longsho~emen's Association and in 
local unions. Under their regimes, gambling, the narcotics 
traffic, loansharking, shortganging, payroll "phantoms," the 
"shakedown" in all its forms -- and the ultimate brutality of 
murder -- have flourished, often virtu::.lly unchecked. 

In 1975, more than 20 years later, the Justice Deprtment launched a 

nationwide investigation of racketeering on our waterfronts. This sweeping inquiry 

culminated in the criminal convictions of more than 100 high Iev'eI ILA officials and 

shipping company executives. 

These persons were charged w!th a variety of offenses, ranging from 

violating the Taft-Hartley Act to extortion, payoffs, kickbacks, threats, 

intimidation, obstruction of justice and incom~ tax evasion. 

The activities and associations of several of the convicted ILA officials 

apparently placed them within the recognized organized crime network. Some of 

their lU\ activities dated back to the time of the Watefront Subcommittee, year;; 

ago. 

The fact that a number of shipping company officia[5 were convicted 

Indicated that organized crime's influence still reaches right through the ILA to 

significant portions of the shipping industry. 

Despite the convictions, reports reaching the Permanent Subcommittee on 

Investigations indicated that corrupt ILA officials still controlled certain ILA 

locals and still exerted tremendous influence over the union's international 

structure. 

All of these factors were disturbing to me, and to other members of the 

Subcomrnitee, for they pointed to a continuation of the underWOrld's c:ontrol of our 

waterfronts that was revealed nearly 30 years ago. If so, had the work of three 

Senate committees and the tremendous e'fforts of the Ju.stice Department and the 

FBI gone for naught? 

In order to answer this disturbing question, I ordered a preliminary inquiry 

in 1980. I instructed the staff to go beyond the evidence introduced in the criminal 

tri.'ll~, \Iuch inform:l.ti:m rer;Mding orgilnized ::rille rnem!J~rshi:-> ;:Inri a:;~oci,\tions 

\ 



r) 

18 

often cannot be introduced in criminal trials because of the Federal Rules of 

Evidence, and I wanted the Subcommittee and the Senate as Ieoislative and poli(;y­

m.:lking forums to have the beneIit of more evidence than the Justice Depa~tment 

was able to introduce during the various prosecutions. 

Mr. Chairman, the two weeks of hearings we conducted in 1931 as a result 

of our extensive investigation presented a dls'11?1 picture. 

We heard that the corruption bred by organized crime is still "business as 

usual" in some port cities. We heard that .cenain IU\ ofIicials have direct lin!.:s to 

organized crime figures in the traditional mob "families," and that payoff mO:1"!y 

was shared with known organized criminals. 

We found that the pattern of organized crime control could be viewed as 

analagous to business. For years organized criminals controlled the waterfronts of 

New York and New Jersey, making tremendous profits. In the 1960's they saw new 

markets opening with the development of po~ts in the Southeast and along the Gulf 

Coast. They decided to get the jump o~ their potential competitors in these 

lucrative areas, so they sent a couple of their eX,ecutives to Miami and opened what 

we might analagous'lY call a wholly owned su:'sidiary. 

This new subsidiary would control the corruiltion rights 'to all ports below 

Norfolk, Virginia, while they retained control over the Northeast. The profits of 

the subsidiary would be shared with the parent organization back in New York and 

New Jersey. 

It was the position of such people in union office which gave them the 

power to perform these feats of c:orruption. And despite their convictions, almost 

all of them were still in union office when we held our hearings long after their 

convictions. 

The influence of tl)ese pe~r:!e h shocking, even in ports such as Savannah 

in my home state. One of our key witnesses, a Miami shipping executive, told us 

under oath that he was able to expand his business to Savannah only by paying off 

ILA officials in Miami. Those officials arranged a lucrative stevedOring contract 

and promised him "top quality" labor in Savannah in return for 'the payoff money. 

This situation brings home to all Americans the enormous control that organized 

crime, operating out of New York and Miami under the guise 01 union officers, has 

over the entire A tlantic seaboard. 

Again, ·\Ir. Chairman, we found that most of the corrupt officials who 

i .• ' 
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derived this power from union office were still, long after their convictio;'ls, 

holding their union offices and perverting union strength. 

Our hearings showed how workmen's compensation has been used to .extort 

money from shipping company execlltives. I know you are especially concerned 

with this aspect of waterfront corruption, \Ir. Ch.lirman, anr! I am proud to have 

cosponsored S. 1132, the U. S. Navigable Water Workers Compensation /\ct, which 

you introduced in the Senate last year. 

Witness after witness described the struggle for economic survival in 

ports riddled with a pervasive pattern of kickbacks and illegal payoffs to union 

officials. My colleagues and I heard oI payoffs to insure the award 01 work 

c~ntracts, payoffs to maintain contracts already awarded, payoffs to insure lahor 

peace, payoffs to allow management circumve'ltion of labor strikes, payoffs to 

prevent the filing of fraudulent workmen'S co:npensation claims, payoffs to expand 

business activity into new ports, and payoffs to. accord certain companies the 

freedom to circumvent ILA contract 'requirements with impunity. Especially 

disturbing is the fact that the evidence cle-=.riy suggests that, through that system 

of payoffs, recognized leaders of the traditional organizer! ~rime families influence 

and effectively dominate the Intern~tional Longshoremen's Association and large 

segments of the American shipping industry. 

Again, we found that the corrupt officials derived the leverage to extort 

these payoffs from their positions as union officers. Again, we found that most of 

tilo5e officers ,vert:: still in office long after ;:heir conviction:;. 

Moreover, we were told that a payoff is commonly treated as a mere cost 

of doing business which can be, and is, routinely passed on as an added cost to the 

consumer. Our traditional and cherished notions of free enterprise have become 

nearly non-existent in the ports of this cOllntry. 

These payoffs, though illegal under current law, are punishable only as a 

misdemeanor. 

In our hearings we discovered. problems which cry out for legislative 

solution. The Justice Department's investigation, we found, was a perfect example 

of just how much effect law enforcement can have on lahor union corruption. "the 

FBI and the Government's prosecutors have done all they can to weed out 

corruption, yet the convicted union officials in most cases continued to hold office 

long after t~eir convictions. 

'. , 
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We cannot, as Members of th~ Senate, Mt!mbers of Congress and as 

American citizens expect the FBI al1d the Justice Department to devote huge 

resources to the waterfront on a perpctu:J.1 basis. They have done their job and 

done it well. Unless, however, we have a corresponding effort by Congress, this 

cancer will continue to grow. 

The bill before this Subcommittee, S. 1785, was designed to effectively 

address the most glaring problems exp.:lsed by our 1981 hearings as well as by the 

inquiries and investigations of the last 3J years. 

As I noted, payoffs by company officers to union officials are, under 

current law; punishable only as a misdemeanor. S. 1785 makes any such violation 

involving an amount of money greater than $1,000 a feJony, punishable by up to 

five years imprisonment or a fine of up to $15,000 or both. 

Another problem I mentioned was the fact that convicted union officials 

remain in union offic~ until all appeals from their convictions have been exhausted, 

usually long after the original corlViction. This bill attempts to rid labor 

organizations and employee benefit plans of the influenc~ "f these corrupt 

elements by providing that they shall be barred from union or beneHt plan office 

immediately upon their conviction; that is, as of the day of the guilty verdict, not 

as of the much later final appeal. In order to be as fair as possible, the bi!! 

provides that the salary which a convicted official would receive shal! be placed in 

escrow during his appeals. If the conviction is finally affirmed then the escrowed 

salary will revert to the union; H, howev.~~, t;,e conviction i3 finally reversed, t!)en 

the escrowed salary will be paid to the official. 

Current law provides that a union officer or an officer of an employee 

benefit plan shall be prohibited from holding certain union offices for a period of 

five years. Our investigation and hea~ings compel us to the conclusion that toi;. i,; 

not long enough. Many corrupt officials have enough power to enable them to 

continue to exert adequate influence over unions and employee benefit plans so as 

to resume office after a five year lapse and continue 0:1 with their corruption. We 

concluded that a ten year ban would provide enough time for a union 1;0 rid itself of 

the convicted official's influence. 

Current law ~numerates those crimes for which conviction wili result in 

removal from office and disbarment. S. 1785 leaves the list of crimes as they arc 

presently written, but adds to the end of the list a catrh all ph .. - - rase requlrtng 

removal if the individu3.1 is convicted of any federal or state felony '1 I' b . nvo vlng a use 
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or misuse of his official position. We feel it is only appropriate that the misuse of 

a bbor office should result in disbarment from holding that same office in the 

future. 

S. 1785 also specifie-s those employee benefit plan officials who are 

subject to removal and disbarment for conviction of an enumerated offense. 

Current law merely refers to any person who has been convicted. S. 178.5 specifies 

the particular officials subject to this provision. The officials lbted include any 

employee benefit plan administrator, fi<;luciary, officer, trustee, custodian, counsel, 

agent, employee or representative of an employee bendit plan. As written, the 

provision would apply equally to union as wel! as management representatives, 

·holding positions of trust as to employee benefit plans. 

S. 1785 also enumerates the particular offices and positions which an 

individual is prohibited from holding if he has been convicted of an enumerated 

crime. These offices and positions were listed after very careful consideration and 

were drafted so as not to inhibit the payment of union pension~ or to prohibit union 

membership. The list accurately reflects those positions and offices of trust in 

unions and in benefit plans which corrupt officials should not only be removed from 

but should also be barred from holding for ten years. 

Finally, the bill clearly delineates the responsibility and authority of the 

Department of Labor to actively and effectively investigate and refer for 

prosecution criminal activi ties relating to union or employee beneHt plan 

corruption. That provision is directly responsive to the many witnesses who, 

during our hearings, testified that the Department of Labor had failed to act 

against labor racketeering on the waterfront and elsewhere. 

We heard from both federal prosecutors and the FBI that the Department 

of Labo: had tabn no ':lle ir, t~lt:. fight against criminal corruption on the New 

York/New Jersey waterfront. A federal prosecutor told us that the Department of 

Labor had simply not addressed the problem of waterfront corruption in South 

Florida. The Chief Investigator of the State Attorney's office ;n Dade County told 

us that no Federal agency, including the Department of Labor, currently monitors 

criminal corruption on the Miami waterfront. A witness convicted in the UNIRAC 

investigation and familiar with the scope of labor racketeering, suggested that the 

Labor Department, given its failure to act in the area, should be abolished. 

Secretary Donovan, in our November hearings, promised a more active 

role by the Department in the criminal area. Nevertt1'~Io!s~, [ have only recently 

.', 
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h'ilrnecJ that the Department of Labor is now seriously considering transferring 

milny, if not all, of its criminal investigators to some other feder;:!1 enforcement 
, 

agency. Clearly, such action suggests that the directive set Iorth in S. 17&5 is 

necessary to insure an ilctive and effective future role br the Department in the 

:riminal area. 

I now understand that there rnay be some o?position to this last section of 

the bill as a possible encroachment on the autr.adty of other federal investigative 

and prosecutorial agencies to pursue cdminal ali':gatioQs. Thu t argument ignores 

the specific proviso in S. 17&5, which we intentionally included to avoid such a 

result. The bill expressly states: 

Nothing in this subsection shall be construed to preclude 
?ther~. appropr.ia,te Fed~r~l a~enci-:s from detecting and 
InvesLlgatmg CIVil and CrIminal VIOlatIOns of this subchapter and 
other related Federal laws. 

Moreover, testimony before the Subcommittee on Investigations from 

representativ(:s of other law enforcemer.t agencies clearly supports the need for 

the assistance of the Department of Labor in this area. When asked whether the 

Department of Justice is capable of cOi1tinually policing the waterfront on the 

lcvel of UNIRAC, a federal prosecutor testified: 

, ••• It is impossible, Senator. What ha5 happened is, for 
Instance, the agents and attorneys who were first involved in 
this inVestigation and prosecution have gone on into other areas 
and we have other priorities. It takes an enormous amount of 
resources to be committed to this matter in order to monitor 
and police the industry. 

That same prosecutor testified that the Department of Labor could play an 

effective role in the effort against labor racketeering, noting that 

They have the authority to monitor this better than the FBI can 
!n terms of constant monitoring. The FBI, I think, has to devote 
Its resources to too many other areas and the notoriety of the 
corruption in the waterfront industry and in the ILA ••• should 
catch tl:-: D~Pdl'tmt'nt ~.f Labor's attention to monitor what is 
going on in that industry. 

In areas of labor racketeering beyond the. waterfront, the record of our 

1980 hearings on the InVestigation of the Team~ters Central States Pension Fund 

includes a Department of Justice memorandum from then Deputy Assi:;tant 

Attorney General John C. Keeney to then Attorney General Benjamin Civiletti. In 

that memorandum, Keeney states that problems in the Justice Department 

investigation had resulted from tlie Department of Labor's "failure to refer 

evidence of criminal misconduct to us." Given those facts S 1785 would' I • Insure an 

active and helpful role for the Labor Department in criminal'n t' . I yes Igatlons. 

A 
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Rdth..:r than in:libit enforcement by othar agent::i~s, the bill would assist their 

eHorts by n:lding the full resources of t:1C Department of Labor to the fi~ht against 

labor rack.: h:!.Jring. 

The gC'ncral principles that this !Jill is based uDon were the subjects af 

discussion at hearings held in October a~:1 Novrneber, 1931, by the Permanent 

Subcommittee on Investigations. I a'n \'ery pleased to state th:,\t during those 

hearings Lan'e Kir~land, President of. the ,\FL-CIO, generally end;:>rsed S. 17&5.:_ 

S.17&5 wa5 endorsed by Georg~ Lehr, tl)e Executive Director of the Teamsters 

Central States Pension fund. I have since been advised by letter from Mr. Leh..r 

that the Central States Southeast and Southwest Pension Fund has formally 

endorsed in principle S. 1785, At this ti-ne, ~\r. Chairman, ) would like to insert as 

part of the record of this hcaring a copy of that letter, dated December 17, 1981. 

In addition, Secretary of Labor Raymond Donovan, at our November hearings, 

generally endorsed the principles of S. 178.5. These endorsements are a great step 

forward in our efforts to help unions battle corru;Hion in their ranks. 

Mr .. Chairman, our 30 year history of hearings has made it abundantly 

clear that the vast majority of ';niorJ officers, employee benefit plan officials and 

the rank and file union members are hon.;:st, har d-working, law-abiding citizens. 

Our nation can and should be justifiably proud of the enormous contribution our 

unions have made to the economic and so::ial strength of the. United State5. But 

our hearings huve shown that a small gNup of parasites have fastened themselves 

onto the body of the labor movement. These parasites are perverting the true 

interests of the union members they claim to represent through a patte.rn of 

payoffs and extortion. The unions have labored to shed themselves of these people, 

but in many ca~~s thC'y have b('e:' unf\ble to do so alone. r believe that the unions 

need our help here in Congress. I b,elieve that this biU is a major step forward in 

providing the extra assistance needed for the unions to finally rid themselves of 

those corrupt officials who are motivated not by the welfare of the American 

worker but by their own greed. 

Mr. Chairman, I would li1(e to submit a copy of my full statement to this 

S'Jbcommittee for the record of these hearings. 1 thank you and the Subcommittee 

for this opportuni ty to disc'JSS the provisions of S. 17&5, and I would he pleased to 

an:;wer any questions you may have. 

" 
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Senator NUNN. Mr. Chairman, for over 30 years of hearings of 
the Permanent Subcommittee on Investigations and the committee 
which, Senator Hatch, you chair and your subcommittee, Senator 
Nickles, we have made it abundantly clear with this record that 
the vast majority of union officers, employee benefit plan officials, 
and the rank-and-file union members are honest, hard-working, 
law-abiding citizens. Our Nation can and should be justifiably 
proud of the enormous contribution our unions have made to the 
economic and social strength of the United States. But our hear­
ings have also shown that a small group of parasites have fastened 
themselves onto the body of the labor movement. These parasites 
are perverting the true interest of the union members they claim 
to represent through a pattern of payoffs and extortion. 

The unions have labored to shed themselves of these people, but 
in many cases they have been unable to do so alone. I believe that 
the unions and the rank and file need our help here in Congress. I 
believe that this bill is a major step forward in providing the extra 
assistance needed for the unions to finally rid themselves of this 
kind of corruption and rid themselves of these kinds of officials 
who are not motivated by the welfare of the American worker but, 
rather, by their own greed. 

Senator Hatch, I thank you. 
Senator NICKLES. We appreciate both of your inputs and hours 

that have been involved by yourselves and by your staffs in re­
searching this. I did participate and I can compliment both of you. 
It was my first experience in seeing Senator Rudman displaying 
his attorney general skills; he did those exceptionally well, I re­
member quite well. I think both of you have done an outstanding 
job as well as your staff. 

I might ask you a question. Senators, when did you first learn of 
the possibility that Labor was considering transferring 90 Inspector 
General positions to other departments? 

Senator NUNN. The first inkling I got of it was my former chief 
counsel, Marty Steinberg, and I cannot give you the time. This was 
a couple of months ago, called me in a state of almost total shock 
told me that, after all we had been through and Secretary Donovan 
had said they were really going to crack down in this area and so 
forth and so on, that the Labor Department was now considering a 
possibility of transferring all of their people over to the Justice De­
partment in this area. 

That was the first that I learned of it. But it was my understand­
ing because Marty told me that he had said that would be some­
thing that we would be very much opposed to unless, again, that 
we transferred all this other jurisdiction on the civil side. I under­
stood that they dropped it. And then I just found out very recently, 
the last 2 or 3 days, that they were talking about it again. In fact, 
Senator Rudman's statement went further than I had known they 
were going. I did not know they were seriously considering this. 
But, when they come in, as I understand they will this morning, 
and say they are opposed to Labor having criminal jurisdiction, 
then I suppose logically it flows if Labor is not, then transfer the 
people over. But they had better realize that, if they get that kind 
of transfer, they may get a lot more. 
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Senator RUDMAN. I would say that most of the information has 
been of recent vintage. 

I want to add one brief caveat here, and that is simply this. I can 
under~tand thes~ jurisdictional discussions that take place between 
~gen~Ies. It remmds me a lot of county sheriffs and State police 
fWh~IIW over the b~dy. in a homicide case, who is going to have ju­
rISdICtIOn. ~he fact IS there are enough criminals to go around. 

The JustIce Department naturally is jealous of its prerogatives 
but ~he la~ relatmg to la~or relations in this country and employ~ 
ee rIghts IS so vast that It seems to me that, if there is a place 
~he.re th~re ought to be at least some criminal oversight and juris­
dIctIOn wIth referral for major prosecution, it ought to be the De­
partment of Labor. 

It is. ~y prediction, looking at all of the laws that are involved 
that, If.m fact they !ire successful in carrying off this transfer; 
there wIll. be a lessenmg, not an increase, of the amount of crimi­
nal ?verslght and prosecution in this area because the FBI the 
JustIce. Department, and ~ll ?f i.ts ya~ious divisions are very, 'very 
busy 'Ylth a number of major JurIsdIctIOnal problems as it is. 

.1 thmk the Departm~n~ of Labo: i~ making a serious mistake if it 
trIes .to separate the CIVIl and crImmal sanctions involved in this 
amazI.ng~y ~r~ad plethora o~ Federal statutes over which they now 
h~ve.JUrIS~IctI~n. T~e fine lme between the civil violations and the 
crImmal vIOlatIOns IS not that easily discernible by most lawyers It 
take.s people working in the field at all times. . 

~ Just .h~pe that you will examine them very closely because I 
thmk thIS IS a very disturbing development. 

S.enator HATC~. It. is imp?rtant to note that we have had 16 haJor ca.ses allegmg ImprOprIety in the Public Integrity Section of 
t .e JustIce Department. As you know, we have a bipartisan com­
mIttee. that has been .appointed to look into that in the Judiciary 
C.ommlt~ee. I am chaIrman of that, and Senator DeConcini is the 
VIce chaIrman. 

There has be~n some real irritation around this town and around 
thIS count~y wIth some of these cases. I might add that there is a 
real questI?n whether either agency is really doing its job in this 
area. That IS one of the things that I am worried about 

Do you share that same fear and that same worry that same 
worry that I have? ' 

Senator RUDMAN. I certainly do. 
Senator NIC:I~LES. Given the review of all the investigatio~s that 

your .subcomm~ttee has performed, I think, Senator Nunn, you 
mentIOned that, :eally, Labor has contributed very very little in 
~~~~?al of the major investigations that were conducted. Is that cor-

Senato! NU~N. ~hat is correct. That is what we found in the wa­
terfront mvestIgatIOn. We even had a witness testify that th h d 
gone to. th~ Labor Departrpent tel1in~ them about that ext!nsi~e 
Arduf~IOL Ib theDworkmen s ~omp, whICh you are so familiar with. 
th

n eld da or h~partment. Just threw up their hands and said 
ey cou 0 not mg about It. 
~ t> not know how hi~h i~ went up in the Labor Department. I do 

r~de ~o~hw~sb attnntIOn It came to, but that is the general atti-
mea or epartment. And, of course, we have got the 
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most glaring example, which we have not talked about in this testi­
mony: the Teamsters Union investigation in which they just almost 
ignored and went to great extent to ignore the criminal violations. 
Also, the Labor Department decided by directive from people close 
to the top that they would not undertake third-party investiga­
tions. In simple terms, that means the people who derive the bene­
fit of the Teamsters loans were never investigated. And those were 
usually the people who were alleged to be organized criminals. 

Senator HATCH. Who made that decision? 
Senator N UNN. I will have to go back and get the record and 

send it to you. It gets a little bit nebulous, but it came from very 
high levels of the Department of Labor. It came after we had been 
assured that third-party investigations were going to be pursued. 

Senator HATCH. Was it in the Solicitor's office? 
Senator NUNN. I am sure that the Solicitor's office had a great 

deal to do with it. I think that probably was where it came from. 
Senator NICKLES. But is it not true, concerning the Central 

States investigation, that the Federal Government spent millions of 
dollars? I am just recalling this from participating in a minor 
degree with your committee. But they spent millions of dollars and 
compiled unbelievable evidence, et cetera, that basically was just 
not brought forth, was not executed, was not prosecuted, and basi­
cally allowed to be dissembled or disintegrate or to be lost or files 
detroyed. 

I am concerned about it. I am concerned about, one, Labor's past 
mistakes but, also, what we can do to move forward, not just to be 
looking at past mistakes. 

I would compliment both Senators Rudman and Nunn for the 
fact that, one, your legislation has brought this together. We will 
have Justice and Labor before us today. My concern is inactivity. I 
think it has to be frust.rating for the strike force to spend untold 
amounts of money and hours, in some cases in not too healthy or 
secure investigations involving organized crime, and compile quite 
a backlog of evidence, possibly have prosecutions, in effect, take 
place and yet still have those officials still serving in their same 
position on the union or in their same position receiving compensa­
tion, still running a particular local. I think that is deplorable and ) 
needs to be changed. 

I think the thrust of S. 1785 will be to make some of those 
changes. 

Back to the question of Labor versus Justice, the real important 
thing is that justice will be served. Under present law, the primary 
jurisdiction for Landrum-Griffin, for ERISA, is under the Labor De­
partment. 

Senator NUNN. That is correct, Mr. Chairman. I think it is im­
portant to stress again that the prosecution in these areas will still 
take place in the Department of Justice. It is the investigation that 
will take place in the Labor Department up to the stage where 
they decide it is time to turn it over to the Justice Department. In 
the past, every time you get to a criminal point they back away 
from it. They shy away from it, and then nobody investigates it. 
There is a huge void there. 

Senator Rudman stressed the point a few minutes ago that I 
think needs to be stressed again. That is that, if the Labor Depart-
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ment does not do this, nobody does it. Justice does not have these 
records. They do not have access to all the pension violations. 

Again, there is a certain logic that all of this should be in the 
Justice Department, but only if you transfer the civil responsibility 
the Labor Deparbnent" now has in these areas. Again, that prob­
ably would be tantamount to abolishing the Department of Labor. 

I would not exclude that possibility, but I do not know that it is 
the No.1 thing we ought to look at. 

Senator NICKLES. Senator Hatch? 
Sflnator HATCH. On this same point, do your colleagues feel that 

the Labor Department has cooperated with the Permanent Sub­
committee on Investigations during this past year? 
~~nator NUNN: Secretary Donovan came over and made very ex­

plICIt and very fIrm pledges about his intentions in this area And 
that is why I was so astounded to find that, as Senator Rudman 
said, they are now talking about transferring all of these investiga­
tors .over to th~ Department of Justice, which would directly con­
tradlCt everythmg I understood him to say. 

But I had been very encouraged about the new attitude of the 
Labor Department. I must say I have to reexamine that now. 

Senator HATCH. Where, in your opinion, have the problems 
emerged at Labor? 

Senator NUNN. In terms of--
Senator H~TCH. ~n t~rms of what we are trying to get to here, in 

terms of the mvesbgatlOn, the cooperation--
Senator NUNN. I think I would have to say, if I had to pinpoint 

one area-well, it is an attitudinal problem. It goes throughout the 
whole Labor Department. 

There are many good investigators. There are many people in 
the Labor Department who are willing to take on this area. There 
a~e many people who are frustrated because they feel like they are 
dIscouraged. It has come from an attitudinal problem that has per­
meated all the. way down from the top. If there is ever an area that 
we could say It has been a bipartisan kind of fault, it is in this 
area. It has been under Republican administrations. It has been 
under Democratic administrations. 
9~r i~:restig~tions primarily took place under a Democratic ad­

mmls~ratlOr; wIth a Democratic Secretary of Labor. But we overlap 
back mto otner areas, and I have been into those enough and read 
the record enough to know that there is one thing that does not 
chan~e .. And that is the behavior of the Department of Labor. And 
that IS mdependent of who is in the White House. ' 
Se~ator R~JDM~N. Senator Hatch, let me add my analysis of your 

ques~lOn WhICh IS, where is the problem. From listening to these 
hearmgs and reading the hearing records over the past year I 
would say that th~ pro~lem lies with the fact that responsibility 
seems to be very dIffuse m the Department of Labor for this partic­
ular problem. There seem to be many tentacles within the Depart­
ment. 

What I would like to see, what I would do if I were the Secretary 
?f Labor would be to find one tough, mean prosecutor and put him 
m ch.arg~ of that Depa~tment, give him the responsibility and say 
go wIth It: one man WIth the responsibility to decide what to do. 

,. 
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That is not the case there today. And tht:l.t in fact is not the case in 
most of our Government. 

Senator HATCH. Are you and Sam aware of the backlog problem 
in the Solicitor's Office on the pension cases? There appears to us 
to be a tremendous backlog problem with all kinds of other difficul­
ties surrounding that prl"blem especially on pension cases. Are you 
aware of those? 

Senator RUDMAN. I am aware of them. I am certainly aware of 
them. But I would say that one of the most salutary ways to have 
fewer cases is to have some successful, vigorous prosecutions with 
stiff penalties. 

Senator NUNN. I agree. 
Senator HATCH. Are you aware that the statute has run on a 

number of the cases? 
Senator NUNN. That Jas one of our--
Senator HATCH. When I talk about statute, I mean statute of 

limitations. 
Senator NUNN. That is the problem. It has run on most of the 

things that would be involvin£ third parties. 
Senator HATCH. And some of them are pretty serious problems. 

And some of them amount to wholesale ripoff of the working men 
and women of America, who have been paying into those funds on 
a good-faith basis. 

Senator NUNN. On the Teamsters investigation, it was almost as 
if the Labor Department-and I say almost because I never did 
find anything this direct. But it was almost as if they said, "Any_ 
time you fellows investigating out there get anywhere near orga­
nized crime, back off; we'll find a way to exclude that." 

It was almost that way. I do not allege that it was a conspiracy. I 
do not allege that, but I think it is an attitudinal problem that goes 
very deep and affects our very ability to control organized crime in 
the labor movement. 

I just want to read one thing into the record that we received. It 
is a January 31, 1978, memo from Benjamin Civiletti and John 
Keeney in the Justice Department. I think this is a little bit of his­
tory that needs to be emphasized. I quote from page 3 of that. It is 
in our hearing record: 

"With respect to the joint Teamsters investigation, the Criminal 
Division is designated as Justice Department's representative. 
Through the early stages of the investigation and continuing until 
August, September of 1977, the joint concept worked well. Labor's 
investigative staff was in daily contact with our people. Matters 
were referred to us for criminal investigation. We were kept ap­
prised in advance of any major civil remedy to be demanded by 
Labor. However, over the course of the fall and winter, the person­
nel and structure of Labor's efforts changed. Labor no longer has 
the investigative manpower or leadership that was originally avail­
able. We are not apprised of the current size or makeup of this 
staff or what it is doing. In fact, working members of the staff have 
been instructed not to discuss the investigation with us. Additional­
ly, we were advised only yesterday by Labor that over a month ago 
the pension fund trustees had resolved to deny the task force inves­
'tigators access to its records. This represents a complete turnar­
ound for the fund," so forth and so on, end of.quote. 

[The memo referred to follows:] 

90-945 0-82--3 
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C.,,:n.:::y .:;~sist2.nt Attorne)r General 
Crlrni~al'Divisio~ 

JAN 311918 

Typed: 1/31/78 
JCK:PH:DJS:t:ter 

St~tus ?e?ort on Labor Departrrent-Criminal Division 
Investica~ive Relation~hips 

Recent de veloppent5 in Our rel~tionshi?s with the 
ih'.7estigative <'no of tlJe Labor Department and with the 
Sol~cit;Jl:' c: f Labor's office prompt me to apprise you oJ; 
Wha.~ I oe~.l.eve ~ i5a deteriorating and potentia~.ly 
s~:l.O-..tE' :.l.b.1e.i;:_on~ As you know r our \.lo:::-kinq relation .... 
sn~?s ~i~n the Labor Dep~rtment arise fro~ the.SecretarY'B 
i:1.Vtst:v;at.iYe :responsibilities under the Labor u-n"''-''e=o. t: 

r • ..lie.;, H .. .i.':) ... t~Ti Re?OZ"t.l.l1g ane: Dl.sclosul:"e Act of 1959 ~ 29 U,SrC. ~Ol et 
seq. (L~?nA), the Employee Retire~ent Income SecU~ity 
~ct ot ~974, 29 UcSvCc lOOl et seqr (~RiSA)F ~wo ;'e~b­
r:nda 0_ ~nderstanding with respect ~o investig~tion5 
o~ 2cts nade.c~i~inal by these statutes and a ~~ird 
Pe?o:andu~ s~gned in r~cerrber.o~ l~J.?~ith respect to 
a.Jo~nt Justice Dep~rtma~t-Labor Dep~rtnent investicra_: 
t~or. __ Of t..'le Tea.'<lsters' Centr~ States Pension ~"'a H~alt.h, 
and rJ.;~lfa~e Plans. Until t.'le past year) our working 
re l.<:!·:::io~ships Under 't."'1ese tneloJOrandq have been ~ery 
satisfactory. however, during this period. three di~tinct 
proble~s have arisen whic~ present grave diffiCulties and 
~~iCh presently appear not to be resolvable at.the Opera­

. ~.J..onel J.ev~l. These probleJ;;!S":'ar~n. 

L Tbe ilSSi.griment-:Of-::investigati:ve:-.man-., 
pop-er to.-orq~ni:ied..:.crinie_.strike.~P-orces~ 

2.. The inabi iity..:. of~our~ve:cnment..'t:Re<!'.!i.~7 
tions and-'Labor -Section -LO=obbt:tn~ .' 
infon:a~ion indiC::Zi.ting P9tential. crimes 
or cr~~~nal misconduct'under.ERISA'from 
the L~,?r Depa.rtment •. , 

3. A total shutda~n of communications 
be~c:nou~ representatives on the :e.ams ~er i~vestig<!!ti v'e Task Force and' 
Lano:::- s represent~ti~5~ . 
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For t... ... e pz;st sc-"C!ral years1 the Lahor Department' s 
hu~aet h~s cant.ained provisions fOl:" the a~~ignDcnt of 
fro~ GS to 75 Co~~liance Officers (Labor's dCQignatio~ 
for ir:.'.'cstigators) to our strH:e Forces. For over a 
-'ea:::- r:~ have been conpl~ininq to Labor that i t h~s not hee~}provicing us ~ith anything like this kind of S~~­
po:::-t. O·.rer t .. e last six Donths) Cong~~sionr..l Oversight 
CO~Rittees have been looking into this rroble~ and 
c1u:::-ing !';"ove..~er and DQcer::oer same very sharp Giffcrcnces 
h'?;b,'r::en the b.ro De:?art~ents were aired during pu1)lic 
he<'lri n'iS - ·\-:0 hDve very recently learned that Lal:-or 
h~s bucget~d only 15 invcstig~tors to UFo ~or ~~e next 
fiscC'r.l· year a~d that: further Conc;ressional heC!rings 
~ill be held on the investigative jurisoiction and nan­
power'pro~lems, I believe steps should he t~ken to ~ron 
out this proble~ hefore we are forced to aiT it p.~ 
Cong:::-essiona~.he~rings. 

O~r two other ?roble~s arise onder the provisions 
of ~~SA, which contains broaa investigative a~d civ£l 
lttigative provisions. 7ne Act grants the Secreta~r Of 

·Labor authority to investig?te. ci-vil 2..!l..C'1. ~--cinal vio­
lntio~s·ana to file civil Ruits ~u~lect to ~ eirectidn 
of the :;;.ttornev Gene.:c:.a.1;. It also obliges the Secreta.ry 
to furnish the-Attorney Gene:Lal '"any e.vidence ... zhic.11 may 
be found to wa:::-rant considerationr. for cri~inal prosccu~ 
·tion. Our proble::'$ ari!>e from "\o,"hat we consioer La"bo;t-'.s 
failure to refer-evidence of crininal misconduct to ~s 
or, if it does refer infouu~tion to us which indicates 
not~ntial civil as well as criminal misconduct, our 
lna~ility to agree upon a course of conduct th~t will 
enable ~~e two Departm~nts to pursue their separate 
ren2Gies jointly. . 

Under the aus~iceg of operational gniaelines.~et 
forth in the memorandl..!m of unQerstan~ing res?ecting the 
Tea~ste:::-~ investigation,· a working group.he~oed hy Ti~ 
B~~er ~nd the Solicitor of Labor hns been trying to 
resolve these pro~lens as well as those related airectly 
to the Tea~sters project. At ~eetings of this ~orking 
group during Novemer llnd eCl:::-ly December, it was agreed" 
ric thought, thC!.t Labor "<ould t~ke ~.pP:::-O?riate step~ to 
insure ~~at '~e received pr0m....-ot notification of its civil 
inve~tig~tive finci~g5. This has not Oc~~rreo_ 
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~ith respect to the joint Teamsters i~vestiqntio~ 
t.~e C:::irnincl Di visior', is desic;rn;z ted 88 .Justice· 8' ):-EP::;:-e.~· 
sentative. lThrough the early stages of t..l)e: i:we:st1.g8.t~O:l 

'e-ud can tinuing until August or Septenoer of IS77) the ' 
joint concept worked \rel1. L~bOl:·r 5 investigr.;t~~ fit--r-.r. 

~ d i 1 +- i h . - r.:. - J, .:a 5.l.n a y con ~act w t. our pe::>ple; ~atters:; we::€: referred 
to Us for crir.linzl investigation;: :ticl we were· r.ept: nppri~cd 
in advance of any T.iajor civil z-erneoy to be dETT,ano(:c1 b>.r . 
La~o:::-. Uov.ever, oV"er the course of the fal.l. and \..rinf::er. 
t.'1e perso:1nel and structu:t'e of U"t>Ol:·r z effort:r:: chanar>-G . r 

Labor no longer hZlB the inve$tis.ative msnpo-..;oer. or l~~c;-I!­
shi? that was origir.ally ~v~il~~e. He ere not aporis -~ 

&: th .. ~ "L-;:= th S - C.u 0... • a curren ... s ..... ze ·or ma,.eup o.!. ).E staff or cr. ..... h-t ,,"-
i 'l' f .... ,C::: ....... 

s co~ng_ In act, working we~ers of the st~ff: have . 
l~ez: .. ~nstructe;d not to di~cug~ t.l)e invc=:st.igl!b.on ~"i til US~ 
had' ... :"oneliy £ we ~-ere adVl.sed only yeEter.day r.,y Labor tha.i: 
over a_m~nth ago ~~e Pension Fund Trnsteez ha6 ~esolvQd tc 
ceny t..~e tzsk force i~vestig~tors ccr-e~5 to F~G ~c~o-;n 
.' .1.1- ... ..... _v J...U_"l' 

. Th~s ::epresentg a co;n;:lete turn Z!!."ouna by the FI;;"a.
r 

aB "£.~E: 
hD.~<; nad co~.?lete access to its records since: "t:he in'Vl!:S;t.i~ 
ga ... ~on began ,and certainly shoUld he'i"'e been b"-m-a'-"- to _~ 
attent.ion at once.. . - ~ ~.~"... Ou.:. 

In Decero"'er £ We ';::'ere advised that t.."1e 'Sec:n?;ter; htH} 
orcered a 4S day review of the entire investigation eni J. 

t.."at 1;: would cetert:line at th(".t tiu>e v.hat cour:5~ the 
invas~lgation would take. During the 4S day period W~ 
",,"eTe not ci)le to ascertain \vho.t t.;as being revic\>.Ted or 
p.:D?osed. ~-te have been adviReG tbat the Secretl.:ry hap­
decl.ded .. upon a couree of conduct but we have not been 
appr.ised of its nature. Rat~er~ we were to1d the Seere~-y 
'Wouyl d~scuss it .... ith the Attorney C-..e.neraI a.nd. after ~ l ~: 
dec~sion h~d been re.e:ched at that le.rel we wau ... ..:l be 
i.c: a..t:: "'"h F .l.U. n ... o~e o~ ~ e resnlts_ We are at a loss ~e to h~~ any 
~ec~b~on re~chea.in this ~anner can be.~lleQ a joi~t 
aeC~6~on ~nd we:: F ... 0:: courser c~n not.:zP?r;,Re· the::' ~~1:torne~"­
~~r~;?l 0 ... rece~~ aevelopments so thct he may have the 
beneLit of our thoughts on any decision to be reuched •. 
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Senator NUNN. And then on top of all that they denied-at the 
top ranks of the Labor Department, Solicitor's Office-denied their 
own investigators subpena authority. 

Senator NICKLES. That was written when? 
Senator NUNN. January 31, 1978. 
Interestingly enough, the Justice Department might be asked if 

they are reversing the position taken by Civiletti at that time. I 
quote him again. On the question of ERISA, he says, and I quote: 

The act grants the Secretary of Labor authority to investigate civil and criminal 
violations and to file civil suits subject to the direction of the Attorney General. It 
also obliges the Secretary to furnish the Attorney General any evidence which may 
be found to warrant consideration for criminal prosecution. 

That is pretty explicit from a former Attorney General as to 
what the existing law does. 

Senator HATCH. We have found that there are in excess of 100 
cases down there, actually in excess of 120 cases down there that 
merit serious investigation, a number of which the statute of limi­
tations has been allowed to lapse and many of which involve very 
serious allegations. I think the first hearing we are going to hold 
on one of these cases will be toward the end of this month, Febru­
ary. At least we hope we can start into those about that time. All 
of them take a tremendous amount of effort, as you know, because 
of the work that you have been doing. 

We do not have nearly enough investigators up here on the Hill 
to follow through on these types of problems. 

Senator NUNN. Mr. Chairman, on that point I am informed that, 
when Senator McClellan had his investigations back in the early 
sixties, he had a combined force of close to 150 lawyers and ac­
countants. 

Senator HATCH. See, we have like six at the present time, the 
Labor Committee, and we just cannot hardly do the job that needs 
to be done. We might ask for your cooperation in going into the 
Rules Committee and asking for more help from an investigative 
standpoint. I think we can clean up some of this mess. 

I want to pay special tribute at this particular point to the pres­
ent Solicitor, Tim Ryan. We have had our difficulties over this last 
year, but he has come in and said he is going to fully cooperate 
with us and has been as of the last month or so. I am very pleased 
with that because it has taken us a long time to have them realize 
down there that our goals and motivations are good goals and moti­
vations to try and protect the workers of this country. 

I suspect you went through that give-and-take period as well in 
trying to get some of the materials that you were able to get. 

Senator NUNN. We subpenaed the Labor Department to get a 
particular record which we could not get any other way, being the 
first time we ever had to subpena a governmental agency . 

Senator HATCH. Was that Kotch-Crino? 
Senator NUNN. That was the Kotch-Crino report. Until we sub­

penaed it, there was nobody in the Department of Labor that could 
find it. 

Senator HATCH. I went through a similar problem with that. Of 
course, the reason they could not find it is because, as I understand 
it, much of it was destroyed by a representative down there at the 
Department. Is not that correct? 
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Senator NUNN. It was so sensitive it could not be discussed 
within the Department of Labor, and it could not be turned over to 
our subcommittee. And we later found that it was put in a trash 
can. 

Senator HATCH. As a matter of fact, some of the people criticized 
very dynamically in the Kotch-Orino report, without getting into 
the classified nature of that report-some of the people who were 
the most criticized are still down there at the Department of Labor 
and at least one in a policy position. Are you aware of that? 

Senator NUNN. I am not aware of the particular individual, but I 
am aware of it in general, yes. 

Senator HATCH. Are not you concerned about that? 
Senator NUNN. Yes. 
Senator HATCH. I am very concerned about it. 
What I am finding, I had a major cabinet-level official tell me 

not too long ago that, other than the top 25 people around him­
and he is talking about thousands and thousands of people that 
work under him-that he just could not trust almost anybody else 
in the Department. They would get mail that should go out within 
a few weeks at the very latest, and it would be 2, 3, 4 months; and 
then they would give him blank stares rather than do the job that 
should be done. 

Have you found that also as you have been working with the bu­
reaucracy? 

Senator NUNN. We have run into a good bit of that. The most 
incredible thing we ran into on the Teamsters investigation was 
the particular individual who headed that investigation for about 2 
years was under the impl'ession that the Department of Labor top 
officials had entered into a, "phantom agreement," with the Team­
sters Union excluding huge areas of the investigation from Labor's 
jurisdiction. And he operated his team of investigato-rs under that 
premise for approximately 2 years. 

It later turns out that all of that about the phantom agreement 
was denied. But whether there ever existed an agreement or not is 
not the point. The top man investigating thought there was. 

Senator HATCH. I might add that that man is still there at the 
Department of Labor, and no change has really been made as far 
as we can see. 

As serious as the allegations are in Kotch-Orino-and you and I 
both know they are quite serious because I have read the full 
report myself. Again, I guess it was Mr. Ryan and the Justice De­
partment gave that to me to read as committee chairman but 
would not allow me to keep it. But, as serious as those allegations 
really were, I do not see any real effective resolution of those alle­
gations. 

Senator NUNN. Mr. Ohairman, I think it would be interesting to 
ask Justice in even a closed hearing or perhaps an open hearing as 
to what has happened to the allegations on that because we sent 
the whole .Kotch-Orino report to the Justice Department, or we 
asked that It be sent. Labor sent it. 

Senator HATCH. That is one thing I want to get into because I am 
aware that you did that. I am aware that you have done a tremen­
dous statesman-like work with regard to Kotch-Orino. Yet, as seri­
ous as those allegations are, a number of the people who were criti-
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cized-and I mean seriously criticized-in that report are still just 
doing business as usual down there at the Labor Department. I 
might add we have not received a heck' of a lot of response from 
the Justice Department as of this date. 

I have to admit it is overwhelming to come in with all the prob­
lems they have and in 1 year be able to respond to everything, but 
it is getting down to rent-cutting time on Kotch-Orino as far as I 
am concerned. 

Senator NUNN. It has been a long time. 
Senator HATCH. Has the name of Monica Gallagher come up in 

the Solicitor of Labor's office in your investigation? 
Senator NUNN. Yes. Ms. Gallagher was in the Solicitor's office 

and participated very vigorously in the Teamsters investigation. 
She came up in the context of our hearings. In fact, she testified 
before our subcommittee. 

Senator HATCH. I have some other questions, but I just wanted to 
interrupt for a minute to get through that line of questioning. I ap­
preciate our subcommittee chairman allowing me to do that. 

Senator NICKLES. I think there is a lot of value in the legislation 
that we have before us today. Hopefully, since there has been a cer­
tain lack or inactivity of the Labor Department for some time to do 
what many of us felt they should concerning Landrum-Griffin en­
forcement and enforcement of ERISA laws, that we bring those to 
light and let it be known, as you have done in your subcommittee 
that you expect action. We can also let it be known that we expect 
some results. 

There are a couple of other things on the substance of the mate­
rial legislation before us today. Senator Rudman, you mentioned in 
your statement part of the legislation is to increase the amount of 
time that a person would be disbarred from holding office from 5 
years to 10 years. Lane Kirkland mentioned, I think, some idea to 
have some flexibility in that to where it would not be a mandatory 
10 years. 

Do you think that should be definitely held to the 10 years or 
possibly anything up to 10, I think, as he recommended? Right now 
it is a mandatory 5 years. 

Senator RUDMAN. Well, of course, I was present for his testimo­
ny. He made an analogy to criminal sentencing, where you have a 
sentence of up to so many years. I do not agree with that in this 
particular case. I think we have a history replete with abuse, re­
plete with corruption continuing after conviction. I think that the 
punishment in this case fits the crime. 

I think the 10 years is not too much to ask. In fact, in my view it 
might be too little. 

Senator NICKLES. Senator Nunn? 
Senator NUNN, I think Lane Kirkland makes a vaHd point that 

is worthy of consideration. At this juncture, I do not agree with 
that point though because I think there have been too many cases 
where persons who were finally convicted, put in jail and debarred 
for 5 years, let it be known through associations, consulting firms, 
and so forth, that they were going to come back. The fact that they 
were going to come back gave them a great deal of de facto power. 
That period of time of 5 years is a pretty brief time. 
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I also think we have not seen a whole lot of vigorous enforce­
ment from the benches of America and the judicial branch of 
America in terms of sometimes meeting out sentences that fit the 
crime, where people who have been given a ,~reat deal of authority, 
responsibility, and trust by the rank and hIe have abused that. I 
think this is an area of gross abuse of trust. 

So I think it is a point worthy of consideration. He is talking 
abou't really making it something the judge can decide rather than 
having it written into law as a mandated 10 years. But at this 
point in time, I would stick with our recommendation. 

Senator NICKLES. Also, in S. 1785 we call for increasing the mis­
demeanor, if convicted, to a felony if a person is convicted of trying 
to buy labor peace. That would be increased to a felony. I believe 
we will receive testimony from the administration that should be 
handled under the criminal code. 

Do you have any comments? 
Senator N UNN. In this area, I really came down pretty strong on 

this jurisdiction question because I feel strongly about it. I find it 
incredible that Justice, seemingly to me, has now reversed their po­
sition. I think they are really bowling over the Labor Department 
on this one. I think that the agreement that has been reached has 
been Justice's position, from what I understand. But on these other 
recommendations, for instance the one you just talked about, these 
are in the area of technical changes in the statute, and I think we 
ought to be flexible on that. I would get my staff to look into that 
and work with yours. At this stage I do not know enough about 
that recommendation to be able to give you a definitive answer. 

Senator NICKLES. There will be a need for our staffs to work with 
Justice and the Labor Departments. We are amending Landrum­
Griffin, and ERISA and we will be cleaning up the technical parts 
of these acts. I do not know what the outcome will be in the Crimi­
nal Code bill that will shortly be before the Senate, or what its pos­
sibilities are. This would be a minor amendment to a very massive 
bill. I am somewhat concerned it might be lost in the shuffle if we 
are not careful. 

Senator NUNN. I agree with that. 
Senator NICKLES. We will have to watch it. 
Did you have any additional questions, Senator Hatch? 
Senator HATCH. I would like to just ask a couple more. I know 

both of you have to get to your very busy duties. 
In the course of your investigations, did you find that the 

department's handling of the Teamsters case was not unique but 
reflected a general reluctance not to pursue criminal investiga­
tions? 

Senator NUNN. I think that is a fair statement, Senator Hatch. I 
think it is a historic position. The Teamsters investigation, unfortu­
nat~ly, fit into that historic pattern. The thing that was so discon­
cert~ng to me about that Teamsters investigation, though, after we 
got mto the multitude of problems in our oversight hearings last 
year was the fact that I was here when Senator Robert Griffin 
from ~ichig~n made an effort to have a special McClellan-type 
commIttee, eIther the PSI or another committee, that would be 
fully staffed. He had several million dollars that was going to be in 
the resolution, lawyers, accountants, and so forth. And we deferred 
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that because we were given firm assurances by the Labor Depart­
ment in 1975 and 1976 that they were going to have the kind of 
investigation that had never before taken place at Labor. 

It was against that background of assurances and then failed per­
formance that made it so disconcerting. 

Senator HATCH. To what really precisely do you attribute DOL's 
reluctance to pursue criminal investigations? A lack of legal au­
thority? Lack of manpower and budget resources? Or just an indif­
ferent attitude by the DOL leadership? 

Senator NUNN. Probably a combination but I would say more an 
attitudinal problem that anything else, and it goes way back. It is 
just as if the Labor Department-you see, the Labor Department is 
in a position of trying to arbitrate and trying to have good relation­
ships with organized labor. They just seem to think that, if you try 
to root out corruption in organized labor, you offend organized 
labor. I do not agree with that. I think the rank and file of this 
country want the corruption to be weeded out. 

Senator HATCH. I do, too. I think they are sick and tired of it all 
across this country and sick and tired of seeing their pension funds 
eaten up, and that is only one area, by people who really should 
not be doing what they are doing with them. 

I have to admit there are many honest unions and thelre .are 
many honest union leaders who are trying to do what is best to 
magnify those funds and benefit them. But it is some very outra­
geous cases that we are starting to find where there have been 
some tremendous ripoffs of the rank-and-file men and women!'s con­
tributions to those pension funds and what should have been done 
with them. 

Senator NUNN. I get letters every day and every week from rank­
and-file people who are thanking me and the subcommittee for the 
efforts we have made. 

Senator HATCH. We are having union leaders, local union leaders 
coming into our office and saying thank goodness somebody is get­
ting into this because we are really concerned and giving us .infor­
mation for the first time in years. I think that that is a good thing, 
too. 

Both the Department of Justice and the Department of Labor 
recommend in their testimony that the bill's sections which give 
the Secretary of Labor responsibility to direct and investigate 
criminal violations be deleted. Now, you have alluded to that. But 
what was the reason for including this provision in the bill, one 
more time? 

Senator NUNN. That goes to the very heart of the bill because of 
this historic reluctance of the Labor Department to get involved in 
these. 

This memo, I think I mistakenly said it was a Civiletti memo, it 
is a John Keeney, Deputy Assistant Attorney General memo to Ci­
viletti that I would hope we will put in the record. As it points out, 
the law already gives the Labor Department that kind of authority. 
But every time you have a question, every time you have a hear­
ing, they come up and say: We really don't think the Congress in­
tended for us to get into this. 
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This bill is really not a departure from what I read in the exist­
ing law, but it is a strong emphasis that we want the law to be fol­
lowed. 

Senator RUDMAN. Senator Hatch, if I might add to follow on to 
that. Anyone who has done any amount of investigations into any 
corrupt areas at all will first find that the trail is led by civil viola­
tions. It is the civil violations that tend to lead you to criminal vio­
lations. This is quite often the case, not the other way around. 

Now, if you start to have inefficiency, the best way you are going 
to have inefficiency is to have essentially different agencies follow­
ing different tracks, which in many cases really ought to be very 
close together and parallel. 

It seems to us that what we have here is a situation where these 
investigations should be done by the Labor Department. Obviously 
when you discover something that looks like it is going to lead t~ 
indictment, it goes to the U.S. attorney in the appropriate jurisdic­
tion or to a strike force if that is the case. 

I do not really understand the rationale, the logic from an inves­
~igativ:e point of view, .from !l pr:ose~ution point of view, of separat­
mg thIS authonty for mvestIgatlOn m these two areas. We think it 
is critical. And that is why it is there. 

Senator HATCH. The PSI investigation was quite critical of DOL's 
refusal to pursue third-party investigations against people who ob­
taI~ed loans from the Teamsters fund, for just one illustration. 
ThIS apparently was the result of the action by the solicitor's office 
or at least that is the way we read it. ' 

Could you elaborate how such investigations would have aided in 
the preparation of criminal and civil cases? Under the current ad­
~inist.rati?n has the department changed this policy on third-party 
m vestIga tIons? 

Senator NUNN. Let me get right to the heart of the matter, Sena­
tor ?at~h. ~hen you exclude third-party investigations from an in­
yestIgatIOn lIke the Teamsters Central States Fund, you are exclud­
mg the people who got the loans. You are excluding the people who 
got the money. If there is going to be any kind of recovery against 
peopl~ who have abused the pension fund on behalf of the

U 

rank 
and file, you have got to go after the people with the money. And 
the people with the money were excluded. 

Senator HATCH. I might add, to a degree I think we on the Hill 
~ave been excluded from our investigations up until recently. It is 
tIm~ that that changes around, too. 

I Ju~t want to pers.onally express my gratitude on behalf of our 
commIttee and, I thmk, the people of this country for the good 
w<?rk that you p~opl~ have been doing on the Permanent Subcom­
mIttee on InvestIgatIOns. I could not be more proud of the number 
of Senators tha~ I am of you people. I can tell you that what you 
ha,ve done, I thmk, has helped everybody in this country. It cer­
~amly has been of help t~ us in trying to get into the investigator­
Ial area that we are trymg to do, and that is the whole, broad­
based area of the Department of Labor. I can tell vou it has been 
one heck .of a y,ear trying to get that opened up ~o that we can 
start lookmg at It on behalf of the people of America and on behalf 
of the wo.rkers of America. We have just had one heck of a bad 
tIme. I wIll say that at least we believe it has changed, but this 
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next year is going to tell the truth whether it has changed or 
whether it has not. 

We have uncovered enough information that if we had 150 in­
vestigators, I think it would take us somewher~ between 3 and 10 
years to be able to just resolve some of the issues that we have 
been able to find as of right now, either for good or for bad. 

Do you thmk that is an exaggeration or just the tip of the ice­
berg that you have uncovered? Would not you say there is an awful 
lot out there for us to investigate? 

Senator NUNN. I think there is an awful lot out there. I think 
this is primarily an executive branCh responsibility. I have been 
very disappointed the executive branch of government has not ful­
filled their responsibility in this area. At some point in time we 
may have to undertake the kind of massive investigation that Sen­
ator McClellan did. But it would not be because that was the most 
desirable place to have that kind of investigation. It would be be­
cause of a default, a continuing default on the part of the executive 
branch of government. 

Senator HATCH. What is your opinion? My personal opinion is we 
are there, that that has to be done. 

Senator N UNN. I have kept hoping that we would be able to turn 
the departments around. In the Congress of the United States we 
can hav~ a one~time investi.gati?n and we perhaps can clean it up 
for a whIle, but eventually It WIll come back unless there is a vigi­
lance on the part of the executive department which has the people 
on a permanent basis. So, I still would hold out some hope they 
would undertake their own responsibilities. But I must say, based 
on ~hat Senator Rudn:an said this morning and based on my infor­
matIon abo.ut the attItudes <?f Labor and Justice that I thought 
were changmg, that I am havmg second thoughts about it. We may 
very well have to go in that direction, Mr. Chairman. 

Senator HATCH. Thank you. I want to compliment both of you for 
the work you have done and other members of your committee and 
particularly Senator Roth for the efforts you have all put forward. 

I hope that our two committees can cooperate together because 
you have done some very good and interesting things, and we hope 
to continue to do the same. 

Senator NICKLES. Thank you very much for your cooperation. 
Senator NUNN. Thank you very much. 
Senator NICKLES. Our next witness will be Tim Ryan represent­

ing the Department of Labor. 
Mr. Ryan, as Solicitor, you appear before this subcommittee. We 

appreciated your appearing before the Permanent Subcommittee 
on Investigations earlier last week and certainly for this statement. 
As I am sure you are aware, your ears were open, there has been 
some discussion about the inactivity in the Labor Department in 
the past. I can also state with some pleasure that having discussed 
at different times with Secretary Donovan a resolve and this cer­
tainly was found to be the case at the Permanent Subcommittee on 
Investigations, a very strong resolve to do everything within the 
Labor Departm~nt'~ legal authority to see if we could not clear up 
labor racketeermg m any way, shape or fvrm. And I compliment 
him for that and for his statement, and appreciate your input 
before this subcommittee today. 
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STATEMENT OF T. TIMOTHY RYAN, SOLICITOR, DEPARTMENT OF 
LABOR 

Mr. RYAN. I am pleased to appear before the committee and to 
present to you the views of the Department of Labor on S. 1785. I 
request that the Secretary's statement be entered into the record. 

In his statement, the Secretary notes his strong support for legis­
lation which will strengthen our abilities to rid employee benefit 
plans and labor organization of corrupting influences. The millions 
of people who either belong to unions or are participants and 
beneficiaries of plans or both should be secure in the knowledge 
that their affairs are being managed by honest, trustworthy indi­
viduals. 

Therefore, we urge the Congress to pass legislation to strengthen 
the provisions of the laws which disqualify people convicted of var­
ious crimes from serving in certain positions relating to benefit 
plans and labor organizations. 

S. 1785 is a solid piece of legislation. The Secretary, in his state­
ment, highlights some sections which we believe should be modi­
fied. The Department of Justice will discuss other provisions which 
are of concern to them. 

But, all in all, I can tell you that the administration strongly 
supports the basis of S. 1785, and we stand ready to work with you 
to fashion the most effective legislation possible. 

To my left I have with me Bob McGee, the Deputy Inspector 
General of the Department of Labor. He and I will be glad to 
answer any questions you or Senator Hatch have at this time. 

[The prepared statement of Secretary Donovan follows:] 
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STATEMENT OF RAYMOND J. DONOVAN 
SECRETARY OF LABOR 

SUBCOMMITTEE ON LABOR 
COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HU~~N RESOURCES 

UNITED STATES SENATE 

February 3, 1982 

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee: 

--- ---- ---- ---

I am pleased to be able to present to you the 

views of the Department of Labor on S. 1785, the "Labor 

Management Racketeering Act of 1981," which I ~onsider 

to be one of the most important pieces of reform legislation 

affecting American workers to be considered by the 

Congress in a number of years. 

The labor movement is an essential element of 

the American society, and the day-to-day lives and 

futures of American workers and their families depend 

on the integrity of officials of labor organizations 

and employee benefit plans. We, as responsible government 

officials, must insure that there are stringent enforceable 

and enforced provisions of law which afford protections 

to members of unions and participants and beneficiaries 

of plans. Our laws must be obeyed. If pension plan 

and union officials do not obey them, these people 

should not be allowed to continue in their positions 

of responsibility. 
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s. 1785 is intended to greatly enhance the ability 

of the Department of Labor to assure members of labor 

organizations and participants in employee benefit 

plans that the extremely important matters affecting 

their dailY working lives and their retirement years 

are managed by people who are worthy of the trust 

placed on them and who will make decisions without 

regard to their own personal benefit. 

The millions of participants and beneficiaries 

of employee benefit plans in this country should have 

no reason to doubt that their funds will be invested, 

controlled, and used by individuals who will not compro­

mise the trust and responsibility placed on them. 

In like manner, the mUltitude of workers who belong 

to labor organizations should have no reason to doubt 

that union matters are being handled by people who 

have the interests of the workers in mind, without 

thought of personal profit. I believe it is imperative 

that we put any existing doubts to rest. 

The people of this country have every right to 

expect that contributions made to labor organizations 

and employee benefit plans will be used solely for 

intended purposes, to defray legitimate labor organiza-

• 
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tion expenses and to provide benefits and administrative 

costs of employee benefit plans. Employees should 

have certain knowledge that contributions will be 

put to no other purpose., 

Mr. Chairman, as a general statement, S. 1785 

would amend the Employee Retirement Income Security 

Act (ERISA) and the Labor-Management Reporting and 

Disclosure Act (LMRDA) to strengthen their prohibitions 

on individuals who have been convicted of certain 

crimes from serving in positions of trust or influence 

relating to employee benefit plans and labor organiza­

tions. The Administration strongly supports legislation 

to effectuate this goal. 

I would like to discuss some of the most important 

features of S. 1785 and highlight some of the bill's 

strengths and weaknesses as viewed by the Department 

of Labor. However, b~fore doing so, I would like 

to note that our review of the predecessor to the 

pending legislation, which was numbered S. 1163, 

identified a number of significant problems. We believe 

that the redraft of the legislation, S. 1785, has 

resulted in a far superior product from both legal 

and enforcement standpoints. There remain a few areas 

of concern, some of which I will discuss. The Department 

Ot/ ' .~. 
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of Labor, and I am sure other appropriate Federal 

agencies, will work with this subcommittee in order 

to develop the most effective legislation possible 

to ensure that labor unions and employee benefit plans 

are rid of corrupting influences. 

One of the most important features of the legisla­

tion is that the disqualifications on the individuals' 

participation take place at the time of conviction. 

under the present relevant sections of ERISA and LMRDA, 

the disqualification occurs on the date of conviction 

or the final sustaining on appeal, whichever is later. 

AS I am sure the Hembers of this Subcommittee are 

well aware, the appeals process can consume a lengthy 

period of time. Two years is not unusual. Under 

the present statutory formulation, convicted individ­

uals--people convicted of robbery, burglary, fraud, 

embezzlement--can continue to exercise great influence 

over benefit plans and labor unions and their funds 

in their formal capacities for months, even years, 

until the appeals process is exhausted. I believe 

that this is intolerable and should not be allowed 

to continue. 

Mr. Chairman, inherent in our judicial system 

is the principle of presumption of innocence until 

, 
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there is a finding of guilt by a court of law. An 

individual should not be disqualified by law from 

a union or benefit plan position because of mere accusation. 

However, once a conviction is obtained, the presumption 

of innocence disappears. The person is entitled to 

use all avenues of appeal available; however, during 

that time he should not be allowed to serve, having 

been found guilty by a judge or jury of a disqualifying 

crime. 

Let me give you an example of what has occurred 

in the past due to the present loophole in the law. 

There is a man in Florida who at one time was 

the President of one union local, the manager of another, 

president of the District Council, and also a trustee 

of a benefit plan fund. He was convicted of embezzling 

funds from six labor organizations and funds. While 

these matters were on appeal, he remained in a number 

of the positions until the convictions were eventually 

sustained. He was later further convicted of illegally 

transferring funds and has since been indicted for 

still other allegedly illegal acts occuring during 

the appeals period. It is estimated that $1 million 

was taken during this period • 

90-945 0-82--4 
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Unfortunately, this is not an isolated case. 

We could document others for you. They stand as testimony 

to our conclusion that the statutory disqualification 

should begin immediately at the time of conviction 

so that further intolerable instances such as these 

can be avoided. 

S. 1785 retains the present lists of crimes under 

both ERISA and LMRDA for which convictions result 

in the statutory disqualifications. We do not agree 

with this approach. The list under ERISA is much 

broader than under LMRDA. People convicted of a number 

of crimes would be disqualified from serving employee 

benefit plans, but not labor organizations. 

We believe that if a crime is considered to be 

of sufficient gravity to disqualify a person from 

serving an employee benefit plan, it should also disqualify 

the person from a labor organization position. The 

need for honest, trustworthy people in important union 

positions is equal for positions under both statutes. 

Therefore, we recommend that all the specific crimes 

which presently appear in eitherstntute should be 

combined in a single list and made to apply to both. 

We also suggest the addition of conviction for _~come 

tax evasion and the giving of false information to 

----------
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government agencies. We believe that disqualification 

for all of these crimes are relevant to the effective, 

honest operation of a union and the administration 

of a benefit plan. 

In addition to the specific lists of disqualifying 

crimes, the bill includes language which would further 

disqualify an individual convicted of "any other felony 

involving abuse or misuse of such person's labor organiz­

ation or employee benefit plan position or employment." 

Such disqualifying crimes should not be limited to 

felonies; misdemeanors should be included as well. 

Many crimes char~cterized as misdemeanors are of a 

sufficient serious nature as to justify disqualifications. 

Also, use of the term "felony" could very well result 

in an uneven application of the law because states 

differ as to their classifications of crimes. What 

is a felony in one state could very well be a misdemeanor 

in its adjoining neighbor. A person convicted in 

one state of a certain crime may be disqualified while 

another in the next state convicted of the identical 

crime, involving the identical facts, may not ,be. 

We also question whether the unspecified crimes 

should be limited to the individual's union or plan 

position or employment. A person convicted of an 

-, 
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unspecified crime would not be disqualified from ser­

ving--no matter how heinous or how related to that 

person's activities for the plan or union that crime 

may be--if it did not directly involve the individual's 

position or employment. 

Therefore, in addition to the bill's unspecified 

crimes provision, we would favor language providing 

for the disqualification of an individual convicted 

of "any crime involving the abuse or misuse of a fiduciary 

responsibility related to a person's labor organization 

or employee benefit plan position or employment." 

We believe that this framework is of sufficient breadth 

to disqualify those individuals who rightfully should 

be prohibited from serving employee benefit plans 

and labor organizations, while protecting those to 

whom disqualification should not attach. 

S. 1785 considerably broadens the union and benefit 

plan positions from which convicted individuals would 

be disqualified. LMRDA is presently narrowly drawn 

and prohibits these people from serving labor organiza­

tions in only limited, although important, capacities. 

ERISA has a broader list, but nor as broad as S. 1785. 

Embodied in the new legislation is the recognition 

that people other than administrators, trustees, and 

49 

consultants of plans, and officers and directors of 

labor organizations, for example, exert considerable 

influence over their operations. 

For example, S. 1785 recognizes that companies 

providing goods and services can be extremely influential 

and can be in a position to manipulate funds or to 

make very important decisions concerning them. S. 1785 

would disqualify an individual who is an officer, 

executive, or administrative employee of a business 

entity which provides substantial goods or services 

to a plan or union as well those whose positions entitled 

them to a "share of the ~roceeds" of such an entity. 

It would further disqualify individuals who are in 

capacities which involve decisionmaking authority, 

custody, or control over the funds of a union or plan. 

We believe there are some problems w: h the drafting 

of the relevant provisions. However, these additional 

disqualifications would be important changes in the 

laws, and we wholeheartedly support their intent. 

We also note that the bill deletes the "clerical/cus-

todial" exception from LMRDA. .~ stories are legion 

of how this exemption has been used as a ruse by labor 

organizations to hire otherwise disqualified individuals 

as clerks or janitors but who actually serve in decision-
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making capacities, and at extremely high salaries. 

such practices cannot be allowed to continue, and 

we therefore support the deletion of the exception 

from LMRDA. 

It is important that the bill be clear that any 

individual who has been convicted of a disqualifying 

crime prior to the date of enactment would be covered 

by the bill. The millions of people who are presently 

covered by plans and who are members of unions should 

be afforded the immediate protections of the legislation. 

And this is a point which I made before the Permanent 

Subcommittee on Investigations when I testified in 

october and which I think is important to reiterate. 

We do not consider this legislation punitive in nature. 

We are not imposing additional penalties on convicted 

people. It is up to the courts to fix fines and/or 

imprisonments for their crimes. This legislation 

is protective in nature. It is intended to increase 

the ERISA and LMRDA protections for the people whose 

day-to-day lives are controlled by union officials 

and whose futures are dependent on the actions and 

decisions of benefit plan officials. 

One further important aspect of the legislation 

is the extension of the time of the disqualification. 
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LMRDA and ERISA now provide for a five year ban on 

the covered activities. This is a relatively short 

period of time, and our experiences have shown that 

it encourages disqualified individuals to stand by--sometimes 

using the LMRDA "clerical/custodial" exception if 

it is a union position, sometimes not--but often exerting 

substantial direct or indirect influence with the 

expectation that they will be able to assume or reSUme 

a posi Hon. 

S. 1785 would double the disqualification period 

to ten years under both statutes. We believe that 

a period of ten years, or longer, would discourage 

such behavior and expectations. 

We are aware of a case in which a union officer 

was convicted of embezzlement, and as a result, he 

was disqualified from serving 'in the positions which 

are now covered for five years, the present ban. 

During his period of disqualification, he was hired 

by the union as a chauffeur, and drove the union officers 

about. Upon the expiration of the disqualification, 

however, he was immediately appointed as an organizer 

for the union and was able to begin exercising great 

official authority. Had the ban on activities been 

longer, it is doubtful whether this person would have 

\ 



o 

-----------~ ---- ------- -----------

52 

continued to serve as a chauffeur and then step ric,t 

into a responsible position. 

There is one aspect of the bill which we believe" 

should be deleted. This is the provision that requires 

that the salary of a convicted individual be escrowed 

pending appeal. This will force labor organizations 

and plans to make double payments--one to the account 

for the benefit of the disqualified person and the 

other to the person who is actually performing the 

work. We believe that this is an inequity, especially 

in light of the fact that of 983 LMRDA criminal cases 

between 19- 0 and 1978, fewer than one percent were 

reversed on appeal. Although an employee benefit 

plan probably could not establish such an escrow account 

voluntarily under the present ERISA statute, we know 

nothing in the law which would preclude a :abor organiza­

tion from doing this on its own. However, we do not 

believe that the establishment of an escrow account 

should be mandated by the legislation. 

I would like to discuss one other aspect of the 

legislation. This section provides the Secretary 

of Labor wi th the authority to detect and investigate 

criminal violations of ERISA and "other related Federal 

laws." The Congress authorized the Department to 

1"-' 
I 

I ~ 
I 

! 
I 

1 
! 

I 
J 

,,! 
f 

I 

I 
I 
f 
! 

I 
I 
l 
, . 
I 
I .. , 

53 

conduct criminal investigations under both LMRDA and 

ERISA. However, in 1960 the Department delegated 

much of the responsibility for these investigations 

under LMRDA to the De};artment of Justice through a 

Memorandum of Understanding, and the same was true 

under ERISA pursuant to a 1975 Memorandum. 

During my appearance before the Permanent Subcommittee 

on Investigations I stated that it was my intentior 

that our investigators pursue criminal violations 

discovered in the course of their civil investigations. 

That remains my policy. 

However, the Administration at this time does 

not support additional statutory authority to augment 

the Department's responsibilities in this regard. 

We and the Department of Justice though have been 

charged by the Administration to review the Hemoranda 

of Understanding to see if they could or should be 

modified to achieve more efficient criminal investigations 

under LMRDA and ERISA. We will also study the unique 

functions of our Inspector General's criminal investigators 

who support Justice's Organized Crime Task Forces. 

We will undertake this review immediately. 

Mr. Chairman, let we reaffirm to you, this Subcommittee, 

the Congress, and most importantly to the American 
\ 
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people, the Department of Labor's unwavering commitment 

to protect workers and benefit plan participants. 

We are working closely with the Department of Justice, 

the Internal Revenue Service, and other Federal agencies 

to insure that plans and unions are rid of corrupting 

influences. We will use every tool presently available 

to us to safeguard the integrity of labor organizations 

and benefit plans. And we would welcome the additional 

tools that would be given to us by legislation such 

as S. 1785 whLch will greatly enhance our ability 

to achieve these goals. 

I want to reiterate our desire to work with you 

to develop stringent enforcable and enforced provisions 

of law which afford needed protections to all members 

of labor organizations and all participants and bene-

ficiaries of employee benefit plans. 

Senator NICKLES. Thank you, Solicitor. We appreciate your ap­
pearance and also Mr. McGee. I was pleased to see you join us. 

We heard Senator Rudman mention the possibility of the 90 per­
sons from the Inspector General's office being transferred to Jus­
tice. Can you bring us up to date on what is the case? 

Mr. RYAN. Yes, Senator. I will be glad to discuss from my stand­
point, where it is, and Bob may want to add something. 

We have had discussions with high ranking officials of the De­
partment of Justice on the placement of the IG strike force person­
nel. I think there are between 85 and 90 individuals now presently 
assigned. At present, our discussions have gotten to a point where I 
do not think anything is going to come of them. Basically the situa­
tion is that individuals working for the IG's office, that is paid and 
supervised administratively by the Inspector General, work for the 
different strike forces around the country. They take most of their 
directives from the director of the strike force in any geographical 
area. The only thing we have is basically a personnel function with 
them. We investigated with the Department of Justice the possibil­
ity of closing this employment loop, that is, direct assignments of 
the IG strike force personnel to the strike force. That proposal is 
probably not going to come to fruition because of administrative 
and personnel problems that exist within the Department of Labor 
and at the Department of Justice. 
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We, however, have agreed, as Secretary Donovan's statement 
states, to sit down with the Department of Justice to review specifi­
cally the memoranda of understanding wh:ch we have now dealing 
with investigatory activities with the hope that we can specifically 
identify the areas where we have authority and where they have 
authority so we can minimize the type of problems that Senators 
Nunn and Rudman mentioned and that Senator Hatch, I know, is 
very concerned about. 

Senator NICKLES. I would certainly think that would be in order 
to communicate. We need to work together and coordinate activi­
ties. There would certainly be some concern on behalf of many 
Members of Congress if it would be interpreted that this transfer 
would be in any way, shape, or form an advocation or resolve pros­
ecution of this type of activity. 

Mr. RYAN. Senator, I can assure you, and I am sure Bob can, too, 
as well as Lowell Jensen, the head of the Criminal Division, our 
intent in reviewing this matter was to strengthen the labor racke­
teering enforcement activities, not to diminish those activities. 

Mr. MCGEE. Senator, Mr. Ryan has described the status, as I un­
derstand it now, but I think it would be helpful to put the refer­
ence to these 90 some positions or people in specific context. 

Within the Office of the Inspector General, there is a separate 
distinct component to which the 90 people, of about whom 79 are 
special agents, criminal inve3tigators, are assigned and dedicated 
exclusively and consistently to the Justice Department strike 
forces. These are permanent assignments and they differ from the 
special agents that handle the fraud investigations assigned to all 
Inspectors General. It is that relatively small group of people 
within the total investigative capacity of the Department that we 
are addressing these issues right now. The Inspector General as­
sumed this responsibility after the passage of the Inspector General 
Act in October of 1978. 

Mr. RYAN. Senator Nickles, if I could add to that some specific 
numbers. 

It appeared from Senator Rudman's and Senator Nunn's testimo­
ny that, at least from their standpoint, they understood that we 
were discussing the movement of all investigators to the Depart­
ment of Justice. That is not the case at all. It was just the individ­
uals who were assigned directly to the strike forces. There was 
never any discussion about the other LMSA investigators who are 
in the LMSE and ERISA areas. We feel they should be in the De­
partment of Labor. We feel they should be conducting activities on 
not only civil investigatory matters but also criminal. 

Senator NICKLES. There is no advocation to move this away from 
the Labor Department certainly as far as investigating violations 
or corruptions in pension funds? 

Mr. RYAN. No, Senator, not at all. There is some limit to the in­
vestigations that take place of pension plans through the strike 
force activities, but most of that investigatory activity is directly 
within the pension welfare benefit program. That function will stay 
there. There has never been any discussion about that moving. 

Senator NICKLES. Earlier we heard about the Central States' in­
vestigation, and I alluded to the fact that millions of dollars have 
been spent with very little actual movement from the Labor De-
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partment. Senator Nunn mentioned the lack of interest ~n the 
Labor Department during the past years. I am not speakIng so 
much of last year as I am in the past. 

What have you found to be the case? Why has there. been a 
shortage of initiative or effort to investigate and prosecute In areas 
such as that or waterfront corruption cases coming from the Labor 
Department? 

Mr. RYAN. I am reluctant to armchair quarterback what took 
place during the last administration. I do not know why there was 
any reluctance, if there was. 

Senator NICKLES. Let me turn that question around. 
Did you find that possibly under p~st inves~igati~ns, ,Particularly 

concerning the waterfront corruptIOn or InvestIgatlOns of the 
Teamsters Central States Fund, that the Labor Department was 
aggressive in investigation and proceeding with prosecution? 

Mr. RYAN. I would like to separate the issues because the office 
that I run the Solicitor's office, has nothing to do with the investi­
gatory aspects of the longshore area. So I cannot speak directly. t? 
that. I can speak directly to Central S~ates because from .bo~h. a lIti­
gation and an investigatory standpom.t, most ~f th.e. m~IvIduals 
working on that matter work for me In a specIal lItigation task 
force. The Central States litigation and investigation h~s been the 
subjp.ct of oversight by the Senate Permanent SubcommIttee on In­
vestigations. There is also very definitive interest on the part of 
Senator Hatch vis-a-vis how the Labor Department has handled 
Central States. Without casting any qispersions on anyone who .w~s 
involved in this in the past, my own sense is 'chat the past admInIS­
tration probably did not know what they had on their hands as .far 
as Central States investigation and litigation was concerned. It IS a 
massive piece of litigation dealing with millions and millions. of 
documents, with opposition provided by some of t~e finest tr.lal 
lawyers in the country, and it was a matter that dId not receIve 
the type of priority that I think it should have received. 

We have attempted to change that by the direct involvement of 
high level political appointees, myself and other Presidential ap­
pointees. We have not left this to the career people. I can assure 
you today that I have direct knowledge of what is going on and 
every major decision that is made, I am making it, and we are co­
ordinating those decisions with representatives of the IRS, Treas­
ury, and Justice Department. We really do not do anything unless 
we all sign off. I feel that at present-although it continues to be 
frustrating, very frustrating because it was a massive piece of liti­
gation-we have a pretty good hold of both the pension case and 
the health and welfare case and the related investigations that are 
involved with Central States. 

Senator NICKLES. You say the Labor Department now, or your 
Solicitor's office, is aggressively pursuing these cases. We are not 
looking 3 years or 4 years from now and have to say, yes, the Labor 
Department has been ineffective as far as movement in prosecution 
of those cases? 

Mr. RYAN. I would like to be able to say that there is a direct 
correlation between our being aggressive and things moving for­
ward quickly. Unfortunately, there is not. We are being aggressive. 
Any time we have a question of whether or not there have been 
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violations of ERISA, we move quickly to either voluntary compli­
ance or we bring suit. As far as the timing is concerned, we unfor­
tunately do not have control over that totally. There is a Federal 
district court judge in Chicago that has control over that, and there 
are so many lawyers involved in this case, either representing indi­
vidual trustee defendants or third-party defendants, that it is diffi­
cult to project when this will move to finalization. 

Senator NICKLES. You mentioned as Solicitor you do not have ju­
risdiction over some of the waterfront corruption cases, and I am 
assuming that would be under the Labor Management Services Ad­
ministration. 

Mr. RYAN. That is correct. Some of it is under the LMSE func­
tion. Some is also under the Inspector General's office. In fact, I 
know they have participated directly with the strike force in New 
York, with the New York State-or New York City Organized 
Crime Bureau in a very successful investigation involving the 
Fulton's Fish Market recently. 

As far as the Solicitor's office is concerned though, we are not 
involved in any investigations. The only matters that we are in­
volved with involving the ILA are civil cases in Savannah and in 
Miami. 

Senator NICKLES. Mr. McGee, does the Labor Department have a 
hands off policy on some of the water corruption as we had heard? 

Mr. MCGEE. Senator, I have to respond in the context of criminal 
investigations, which are associated with organized crime intrusion 
into the labor union or pension benefits area which is the only area 
that we are involved with. As Mr. Ryan said, all of the cases that 
are developed in this context, the thrust of the investigations, the 
targeting are accomplished between our special agents and the 
strike force attorneys. In fact, the components of this group are 
physically situated at the same location with the strike force. 

So I would have to respond to you there is no lack of aggressive­
ness. The last 6 months of the last fiscal year brought 69 indict­
ments secured by strike force prosecutors growing out of investiga­
tions, either exclusively by IG agents assigned to those strike forces 
or by those agents acting in concert with other Federal agencies 
but always under the direction of the strike force attorneys. So the 
bottom line there is with the dedication of this group of people who 
perform nothing but these investigations and do it within the 
framework of the Justice Department strike force. There is no lack 
of aggressive investigative attention to priority items. 

Senator NICKLES. I might ask a couple of general questions. 
As Solicitor, how many attorneys would you have working in this 

area, Mr. Ryan? 
Mr. RYAN. In the pension area, we have presently 51 lawyers. In 

the LMS program, which is a decentralized program, there are 15 
lawyers in Washington and then given the day-to-day require­
ments, the use of 250 plus lawyers in the field. However, as far as 
litigation is concerned, the chief responsibility under the LMRDA 
statute is with the Justice Department. They redelegate cases back 
to us as they feel the need. So under the normal situation-but for 
the four major metropolitan areas four SMSA's-we handle all 
that litigation also. But it is decentralized. 
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Senator NICKLES. Are you opposed to the s~atem~nt of ~ecreta~y 
Donovan, regarding the last section of the bIll whIch basIcally, m 
my opinion, would somewhat reauthorize you to enforce these stat­
utes? Is that correct? 

Mr. RYAN. The administration's point, Senator, is that there is 
no need for that provision in the statute. However, both the De­
partment of Labor and the Department of Justice have been dir~ct­
ed by the White House to review t~e .n:emor~nda of understandmg 
to specifieally set forth the type actIvItIes whIch the Department of 
Labor should and should not accomplish in the ERISA and the 
Labor Ma.nagement Reporting and Disclosure Act areas. 

Senator NICKLES. I would concur with the need to review it. How 
much of Bl backlog do you have? 

Mr. RYAN. In which areas, Senator? 
Senator NICKLES. As Solicitor, how much of a backlog did you in­

herit and how much do you have today? 
Mr. RYAN. Well, we enforce 108 statutes and have 30,000 plus 

cases each year within the Solicitor's office. In the area tha~ I 
know Senator Hatch is interested in, and we have been workmg 
with him to provide what I think is a needed oversight of the 
ERISA area, I can give you the case numbers in that area. I cannot 
give you the actual case numbers in the actual LMRDA area. In 
the ERISA area at present, we have 77 cases in active litigation. 
We have :26 matters awaiting disposition. That is where we are 
either trying to evaluate the prospects for voluntary compliance, 
decide whether to try to work out some type of settlement agree­
ment or determine whether we should bring suit and against 
whom. In the last year, we have closed 163 cases. Of the 163 cases 
that we have closed, 66 were returned to PWBP, and PWBP initiat­
ed action to secure voluntary compliance. That is, the potential de­
fendant that was involved could agree to settle the case on a basis 
which we found acceptable. I understand that 33 were referred to 
the Internal Revenue Service. Two were referred to the Justice De­
partment. One was referred to the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corp. 
Nineteen were closed because we did not feel that there was a vio­
lation of ERISA stated in the report of investigation. Fourteen 
were referrlad back to the field for additional investigation, and 28 
were closed because of a specific change in the situation, or because 
they were very technical type violations which we felt were not 
suited for litigation. In some cases the violations were actually re­
medied, in others the plans had been terminated, and in others we 
did not have active trustees that could be named as defendants. We 
did identify during 1981 approximately four cases, I believe maybe 
five-and I am still working through this now in anticipation of 
Senator Hatch's oversight hearings-where in specific areas the 
statutes of limitation may have run. I hope we do get into this in 
the future, Senator Hatch. 

The area of determining when a statute of limitation has run, 
which in some cases is 3 years under ERISA, is very difficult be- ' 
cause we have to figure out when a report of the information was 
first filed with the Government, and when the Department first ob­
tained actual knowledge of the violation, either in the form of a 
5500 annual report or some other information we may have re­
ceived such a.s through administrative deposition, information de-
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livered in response to a subpena, interrogatories and the like. I 
think that also when we finish our own internal investigation, 
which is ongoing now, we will probably find that in some of the 
cases whel-e the statute of limitation ran, they ran,Abecause this 
program was not given the type of emphasis that -L think it de­
serves. The prior administration did not spend the money, did not 
invest the time, and did not invest the personnel in the ERISA pro­
gram which it deserved, and we have recently decided to change 
that and change that radically. We are moving immediately about 
25 percent more lawyers into this program. We are also reviewing 
and have ongoing a pilot project in our western region in San 
Francisco to see if this whole program can be decentralized because 
my personal feeling is that every time the pension welfare benefit 
program gives us a case, we should have essentially no reason not 
to bring suit if we cannot come up with a voluntary compliance. 
That is the general feeling. 

Obviously there is some prosecutorial discretion, but the people 
we have in the field doing ERISA investigations are very able and 
there is no reason to pick and choose cases because we are trying 
to make good law. This should be an enforcement program. The 
people out there violating ERISA should know we are not going to 
put up with that. 

Senator NICKLES. When we conduct those oversight hearings, we 
will actually find that your office has been more-I do not want to 
say aggressive-selective in trying to prosecute those cases where 
we have found violations of law? 

Mr. RYAN. I hope so. If not, I think it would be a very uncomfort­
able hearing for me. 

Senator NICKLES. You mentioned that the Solicitor's office has ju­
risdiction under Landrum-Griffin. Could you shed some light on 
this? 

Did we have that same type of philosophy concerning ERISA vio­
lations as with Landrum-Griffin violations? 

Mr. RYAN. I could not really answer that question. I can only re­
flect back on my past activities as a labor lawyer for management 
and say at least my perception then was that the Department of 
Labor was not too interested in actively pursuing violations of 
LMRDA where they involved labor unions. 

Senator NICKLES. We heard today from Senators who also heard 
hours and hours of testimony, and certainly it is this 
subcommittee's position that we want to see a more responsive 
Labor Department and not one that is not inte~ested in carrying 
out the law. This has really been the case. The Labor Department 
has a tremendous black eye and one that needs to be remedied im­
mediately. Hopefully this hearing today, plus the amount of con­
cern that has been expressed by the Senators involved, w~ll get the 
attention of both Justice and Labor to do a more effectIve and a 
more thorough job in carrying out the work that has been put 
forth by the IG's office and the strike force to actually see some 
results from all the efforts. We can change the statute. Since we 
received the testimony late, we have not had a time to review it, 
but I assume you are in favor of inc~easing .the 5 years to 10 yea,rs? 

Mr. RYAN. At a minimum. We thmk 10 IS acceptable as a mIlll­
mum, but the bill as drafted is acceptable to us. 

--~--- ----
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Senator NICKLES. Do you think we s~o.uld have s~me flexibility, 
up to 10 or should we go 5 to 10 or a mlnlmuJ? of 10. 

Mr. RYAN. We think a minimum of ~O IS acceptable and we 
would be mo~ than willir:g to sit .d?w~ wIth the staff of your com-
mittee to disG~sS any possIble .modlflcatIO:t;ts of th~t. . . 

Senator NICKLES. Are you m favor of mcr~asmg fmes lor vlOla-
tion of payoffs for anything over $1,000 becomm.g a felony. . 

Mr. RYAN. Yes, Senator, we are. But the JustIce ,Department wIll 
be discussing that vis-a-vis the title XVIII reWrIte and I would 
defer to the Justice Department on that. ., 

Senator NICKLES. The administration is in supp.or~ of mcreasm~ 
that to 10 but not under S. 1785, but under the CrImmal Code reVI­

. ? 
SIOns. . h It . . Mr. RYAN. I will let Mr. Jensen dISCUSS t at area. IS more In 
his area than mine. . ? 

Senator NICKLES. Senator Hatch, do you hC!-ve any questIOn~. 
Senator HATCH. You joined with the JustIce DepC!-rtme~t m rec­

ommending that section 14 of the bill be deleted. T~IS sectIO~ seeks 
to affirm, if not reaffirm, the Department <;>f ~abor S ~~thorIty and 
responsibility to detect and investigate. crImma~ C!-CtIVlty. Yet the 
PSI hearings clearly demonstra.te th;;tt, m .my OpmH?n, the D9L, at 
least under the previous adminlstratIO~, dId ,not be:heve thC!-t It had 
sufficient authority under ERISA to mvestIgate mformatIOn of a 
criminal nature. , 

Could you precisely identify what the nature of DOL s legal au-
thority is today? . 

Mr. RYAN. Yes, Senator. We feel that the bill as draft~d, wh1.ch 
essentially ties in a catchall other related crimes, is .~ot m tl:~ m­
terest of the administration. We feel that the specIfIC prOVISIOns 
now set forth in the United States Code provide us with the au­
thority to investigate crimes under ERISA and under LMRDA. 

As far as the Department of Labor's legal authority, we feel ~hat 
our job is to primarily investigate the civil side of ERISA vlOla­
tions. That is not to say that we will not move forward on an .ag­
gressive basis to review and investigate criminal activity. If we fmd 
that we have an actual criminal viola.tion or something that we 
feel is close to a criminal violation, so we will immediately refer 
that matter to the Department of Justice. The difference between 
this administration and the last administration is that, as I under­
stand the statements of Secretary Marshall before PSI, we disagree 
with his position that we do not have authority to move aggressive­
ly forward in identifyil!~g and investigating criminal ma~ters up to 
a point where we feel It. should be referred ~o the Jus~ICe :qep.art­
ment. We will not walk m and say, oh, that IS a potentIal crImmal 
violation, so we will not look at it. That is not what we are about. 
We have made specific changes in that area and I can assure you 
that there are a number of investigations which could relate to 
criminal violations which are ongoing right now. 

Senator HATCH. Do you believe or agree that the memorandum 
of understanding with DOL entered into with the Justice Depart­
ment by which DOL relegated or delegated its authority to the 
latter is in any need of revision? 

Mr. RYAN. We think it is in need of review to determine wh~t 
the Department of Justice's position is and what our position IS. 
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We are dealing with memoranda of understanding which are quite 
old and it is important that we sit down and let everyone under­
sta~d what is expected of us because it is clear, just from today's 
hearing, that some very influ~ntial Members of the Senate ~aJQt ~s 
to be quite aggressive, that IS, the Department of Labor m thIS 
area and we are quite willing to please you in that regard. 
Se~ator HATCH. How many pension cases involving the ILA did 

you find? 
Mr. RYAN. I could not give you the exact number, Senator. I 

know that we had a pension strike force in Miami which involved 
the ILA. We have one going-two or three cases in Savannah 
which I would not characterize as corruption, but they do involve 
ILA. That is on the civil side. 

The IG strike force people have been actively involved with the 
Justice Department strike force units in the criminal side. 

Senator HATCH. Has the statute of limitations run on any of the 
ILA cases, to your knowledge? 

Mr. RYAN. I could not give you a definitive answer on that. 
Senator HATCH. Do you know if the statute of limitations has run 

on any of the Teamster cases? 
Mr. RYAN. Again I could not give you an answer on th~t . .If YO.ll 

want, I will get back to you on both of those matters wlthm thIS 
week. 

Senator HATCH. I would appreciate that. 
Could you give us any reason why our committee was not noti­

fied with regard to the transfer of the 90 IG's? Is there any reason 
for that? 

Mr. RYAN. Let me give two answers to that. 
The first reason is that it was not at a point where we actually 

thought that something was going to take place. If we had gotten 
to a point where within the administration we had ironed out all of 
the numerous problems that existed or exist with that proposal, 
then, of course, we would have come to your committee and also to 
PSI. Senator Nunn mentioned that a couple of months ago a De­
partment official contacted his counsel to talk about that item. I 
was the person who contacted Mr. Steinberg and talked with him 
about this. We, at that time, had not even decided to go over to the 
Justice Department and talk with them about it. In retrosp~ct, this 
is probably one of those matters that we probably should SIt down 
and talk with you about, and at least as far as I am concerned, 
before we do anything in this area in the future, I pledge that I 
will do that with you. 

Senator HATCH. Thank you. 
The PSI investigation was critical of the Labor Department's fail­

ure to monitor the benefits and administration account of the 
Teamster funds. 

Is the Department still monitoring this account or is it monitor­
ing this account? 

Mr. RYAN. I did not hear the first part. 
Senator HATCH. I was referring to the criticism by the Perma­

nent Subcommittee on Investigations. The criticism was that the 
Labor Department failed to n;onitor the benefits. an~ administra­
tion account of the Teamsters fund. So the questIOn IS, Is the De­
partment monitoring this account now? 

90-945 0-82-5 
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Mr. RYAN. Not only the Department of Labor but also the Inter­
nal Revenue Service. 

Senator HATCH. What actions has the Department of Labor 
taken to gain access to all appropriate Teamsters' documents? 

Mr. RYAN. We have, over the last 2 years, been engaged in litiga­
tion to provide us with all of the relevant documents. From the 
pension case side, which is captioned Donovan v. Fitzsimmons, we 
have had access to almost all the documents we need, verging on 2 
million. 

In the other case which involves the health and welfare case 
which is captioned Donovan v. Robbin::), we have not been as suc­
cessful as we would have liked receiving documents from Amalga­
mated Insurance, which was the provider to the health and welfare 
fund. I am pleased to inform the committee though that within the 
last 2 weeks we have received a final decision from the Seventh 
Circuit Court of Appeals ordering Amalgamated Insurance and the 
health and welfare fund to produce all documents up until July of 
1981. We are now in the process of production of all of those docu­
ments. 

This, by the way, is the first time that the Government has had 
access to all of the documents dealing with Amalgamated Insur­
ance. 

Senator HATCH. That is great. But where precisely, to the best of 
your ability to define it, does the Teamsters fund inquiry by the 
Labor Department stand today? 

Mr. RYAN. I would have to refer to the fact that we have multi­
ple pieces of litigation going on. There are two primary cases, the 
pension case and the health and welfare case. We are still in dis­
covery. We are in, I would say, more advanced discovery right now 
in the health and welfare case than in the pension case because the 
judge who is handling the case in Chicago, Judge Moran, has or­
dered discovery in the pension case suspended pending his determi­
nation of a proposed settlement agreement submitted by the Cen­
tral States and a number of plaintiffs' lawyers in a case captioned 
Douchek v. Sullivan. We have moved to intervene in that case. 

We have also asked the court to disapprove the settlement agree­
ment. We expect some resolution of that issue within the near 
term. In fact, a hearing was set before Judge Moran on Thursday. I 
believe it has been delayed to next week because counsel for the 
Central States found themselves snowed in in different locations. 

Senator HATCH. Questions were raised by PSI that Labor Depart­
ment officials working on the Teamsters inquiry are still working 
in this area. 

Are any or all of those officials still working in this area, and I 
am talking about the people that were mentioned in the PSI testi­
mony? 

Mr. RYAN. Yes, Senator. I am not familiar with all of the individ­
uals that testified at PSI. As far as the individuals who were work­
ing in the Solicitor's office in the special litigation operation} we do 
not have at present any of the prime individuals who were working 
on the Central States case working on it now. We still have some 
individuals assigned to our office. They have been moved, however, 
to other sections of the Department working on details. 
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Senator HATCH. What kind of backlog involving the labor union 
and pension abuses did you find when you took over as Solicitor of 
Labor? 

Mr. RYAN. When we came in, we had 54 cases in litigation and 
185 awaiting disposition. As I said before, we now have 77 in litiga­
tion and 26 awaiting disposition. 

From my own pe)"co;-:''lal standpoint-and I have mentioned this to 
you on a number of occasions, Senator Hatch-the pension area 
was not gi.ven the type of enforcement or personnel really neces­
sary to do the job. We need more people. We need to spend more 
time. We need for the participants in these pension and health and 
welfare plans to know that the Federal Government will do every­
thing in their power to make sure that when they retire, their 
funds are there with a reasonable amount of investment and inter­
est. 

Senator HATCH. Just one final question. 
Why have you folks down at the Labor Department kept on sev­

eral people in pOl!,:y areas, as I brought up with Senator Nunn, 
just to mention Kotch-Crino, who have been directly accused of 
being responeible for past abuses and fE.:l ure, and the one in partic­
ular I can think of, there is an awful lot of evidence in Kotch-Crino 
that there is an awful lot of impropriety. 

But as I view it, he is still down there in a policymaking position. 
Mr. RYAN. As you know, and you mentioned in your testimony, 

the Kotch-Crino report has been the subject, and currently is the 
subject, of review by the Justice Department. And I think the ques­
tion of what is happening with that review is best posed to Mr. 
Jensen who has the Criminal Division. As far as to my knowl­
edge--. 

Senator HATCH. You have read the report? 
Mr. RYAN. Yes, Senator, I have, and I can--. 
Senator HATCH. You admit that the serious allegations are seri­

ous allegations against certain employees of the Department of 
Labor? 

Mr. RYAN. The most serious allegation, as far as I am concerned, 
vis-a-vis the Kotch-Crino report, is the allegation that someone had 
the audacity to try to destroy't. 

Senator HATCH. That is serious enough. But there were other al­
legations of improper conduct, improper administration, improper 
delays, improper interference with Labor Department investiga­
tions and other investigations, what appear to be absolute overt ac­
tions that anybody in his right mind would call improper. 

Mr. RYAN. I will not defend those types of activities. 
Senator HATCH. But you agree those allegations are there? 
Mr. RYAN. They are serious allegations. 
Senator HATCH. And I described it accurately? 
Mr. RYAN. With serious allegations one should conduct a serious 

investigation to determine if there really is any merit to those alle­
gations. And I believe that that is ongoif15' at present. 

Senator HATCH. But is it not true that I have described these al­
legations and accusations against certain individuals quite accu­
rately without going into their names or precise allegations? 
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Mr. RYAN. That is correct. And I can assure you that any individ­
ual specifically mentioned in that report has been at least removed 
from any involvement with Central States case. 

Senator HATCH. That is the problem. This one person is right 
there making policy and he has had serious allegations of interfer­
ence, if not obstruction of justice. 

Mr. RYAN. I am not aware of any individual that would be in 
that situation, Senator. 

Senator HATCH. One man involving the Teamsters inquiry, for 
instance, was brought to the District of Columbia and was even 
promoted. 

Mr. RYAN. I am not aware of that, Senator. I can assure you that 
that individual does not work for the Solicitor's office, and if he 
works for another operating entity of the Department, I am not 
aware of it. 

Senator HATCH. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Senator NICKLES. Thank you, Mr. Ryan. We appreciate your co­

operation, also that of Secretary Donovan in providing insight and 
input into Senate bill 1785. We'will continue to work with you and 
your staff to see if we cannot resolve some of the other disagree­
ments we mayor may not have on the legislation. Hopefully, we 
can come up with something in the not too distant future which 
will basically ac"ieve what WI} are after. 

There may be additional questions that myself or Senator Hatch 
may wish to ask you for the record, to tie up some of the loose 
ends, particularly between Labor and Justice, and also between the 
branches of Labor, Mr. Dotson's office and your office, in coordina­
tion, in resolving what jurisdiction should be open to which. 

Mr. RYAN. Would you want me to wait until the Justice Depart­
ment testifies? 

Senator NICKLES. I would apprecia.te it if you would. We are 
under some time constraint and we will have to move fairly rapid­
ly. But if you would, I would appreciate it. 

Thanks very much. 
Our next witness will be Lowell Jensen, Assistant Attorney Gen­

eral of the Criminal Division. 
Your entire statement will be incorporated in the record. 

STATEMENT OF D. LOWELL JENSEN, ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GEN· 
ERAL, CRIMINAL DIVISION, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, ACCOM­
PANIED BY DAVID MARGOLIS, CHIEF OF ORGANIZED CRIME 
AND RACKETEERING SECTION, CRIMINAL DIVISION 

Mr. JENSEN. I had undertaken an effort to do a summary but I 
will try to summarize even that. 

On my right I have with me David Margolis, who is head of the 
organized crime strike force operation in the Department of Jus­
tice, and on my left is Jerry Toner, who is head of the labor unit, 
should there be any need for specific inquiry. 

Senator NICKLES. Mr. Margolis is what? 
Mr. JENSEN. Chief of the organized crime force operations within 

the Department of Justice. 
So all of the strike force activities that have been alluded to al­

ready would be within his direct supervision. 

.. 
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I am pleas~d to be here today to present the views of the Depart­
ment of JustIce on S. 1785, a bill entitled the "Labor Racketeering 
Act of 1981." Because ~he bill affects the Federal regulation of 
la~or-management relatIOns and the internal operation of labor 
um~ns ~nd .of ~m'pl?yee benefit plans and changes the current in­
vestIgatIve J~rISdICtIOn of the U.S. Department of Labor I shall 
separately dI~CUSS each of t~e bill's three major proposal~. I note 
that the ~ ustIce .pepartment s comments on S. 1785 are more fully 
set forth In a wrItten statement and in a letter to you, Mr. Chair­
man! an~ that would be forwarded to the committee. I would ap­
precIate If that statement would also be made a part of the record 

Senator NICKLES. It will. . 
[The letter referred to follows:] 
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Dear ML. Chairman: 
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U. S. Department of Justice 

Office of Legislative Affairs 

Washington, D.C. 20530 

FEB 09 1982 

This is a response to your request for the views of the 
Department of Justice on S.1785, a bill entitled the "Labor Managerrent 
Racketeering Act of 1981." 

For the reasone discussed below, the Department of 
Justice recommends against enactment of Section 2 of the 
bill which would increase the maximum penalty to five years' 
imprisonment and a $15,000 fine for any violation of 29 
U.S.,C. 186 where the amount of money or thing of value 
exceeds $1,000. However, because the Department of Justice 
supports the elevation of what is now a violation of 29 
U.S.C. 186 to a felony in certain cases, the Department 
recommends that a "labor bribery" statute be enacted as part 
of Title 18, United States Code, which would impose felony 
penalties in cases involv,ing a high risk of corruption in 
labor-management relations and which would uniformly 
prohibit corrupt payments in all industries now covered by 
the Taft-Hartley and Railway Labor Acts. 

The Department of Justice recommends enactment of those 
prov:'.sicns of the bill which would amend Sections 504 and 
1111 of Title 29, United States Code, with respect to the 
prohibition of persons holding offices in and certain posi­
tions related to labor unions and employee benefit plans 
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upon conviction of cert,lin crimes. However, the Department 
of Justice further recommends that the bill be amended, as 
suggested below, with respect to the inclusion of certain 
crin~:;>,; and positions, procedures concerning the prohibition 
of service by corporations and partnerships, the prohibition 
in 29 U.S.C. 504 on service by members of the Communist 
Party, the level of scienter required under 29 U.S.C. 504, 
and the effect of any amendment on outstanding convictions. 

Finally, the Department of Justice does not support the 
blanket conferral on the Department of Labor, concurrently 
with the Federal Bureau of Investigation and other 
investigative agencies, of the responsibility and authority 
to investigate all criminal violations related to employee 
benefit plans, including those of offenses contained in 
Sections 664, 1027 and 1954 of Title 18, United Stated Code. 
Therefore, the Department of Justice recommends against the 
enactment of Sections 12, 13 and 14 of the bill. 

DISCUSSION 

Proposed Elevation of 29 U.S.C. 186 
To a Felony in Certain Cases 

Recent convictions involving labor-management corrup­
tion on the waterfront and in other industries have 
demonstrated the continuing need for strong federal legisla­
tion to deter the use of extortion, bribery, and payments 
involving conflicts of interest among the parties to collec­
tive bargaining. However, the current penalty for the 
substantive offense under 29 U.S.C. 186, a misdemeanor, is 
limited to a maximum fine of $10,000, imprisonment for not 
more than one year, or both. Although a violation of 
Section 186 also can be a predicate offense for purposes of 
the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RICO) 
Act (18 U.S.C. 1961-1968), prosecution under the latter 
statute requires a pattern of racketeering activity, whereas 
Sectio\:" 196 is aimed at. singular criminal acts. In our 
view, the gravity of the penalty for an isolated payment or 
receipt, which may reflect a significant corruption of 
labor-management relations and which mayor may not involve 
a substantial amount of money, is not always sufficient for 
the crime. 

--------~ - --
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Therefore the Department of Justice recommends that 
legislation be'enacted which would impose felony sanctions 
on any employer or person acting in the interest ~f an 
employer who offers, gives, lends, or agrees to g~ve or lend 
anything of value to' a labor organization, or to an officer 
or agent of a labor organization fo: or because of the . 
recipient's conduct in any transact~on or ma~ter concern~ng 
such labor organization. The statute would ~mpose 
equivalent sanctions on anyone who solicits, demands, 
accepts or agrees to accept anything of value, the offering 
of which constitutes an offense by the employer or person 
acting in his interest. Legislation of this kind has been 
considered by the Congress in connection with proposals for 
a uniform criminal code. !I 

We believe that such a statute would more appropriately 
focus the imposition of felony sanctions on the corrupt 
nature of the payment in conformity with existing federal 
statutes which cover bribery and graft in other contexts. 2/ 
We further recommend that the penalty for a felony violation 
include imprisonment for not more than five years, a maximum 
fine of $15,000 or three times the monetary equivalent of 
the thing of value, whichever is greater, or both a fine and 
imprisonment, in a manner similar to the felony provisions, 
under lS U.S.C. 20l(a)-(e) (bribery of public officials). 
Because the proposed offense would in effect supplant the 
only provision of 29 U.S.C. 186 which requir~s a nexus 
between the payment and the recipient's office, 29 U.S.C. 
IS6(a) (4), we further recommend that Subsection l86(a) (4) be 
repealed. 

On the other hand, we believe that the malum prohibitum 
violations with respect to payments to and receipts by union 
officials in violation of Subsections 186Ca) (1) and (a) (2) 
should continue to be treated as misdemeanors in Title 29, 
United States Code. Under current law, criminal liability 
under 29 U.S.C. 186 is not limited to situation", involving 
bribery or extortion, tiut also extends to payments and 
receipts which might potentially affect the union official's 
loyalty. to the employees whom he does or could represent. 

1/ See, ~ S.1630, 97th Cong., 1st. Sess. (1981), 
Section 1752 (Labor Bribery): S.1722, 96th Cong., 1st. Sess. 
(1979), Section 1752 (Labor Bribery); S.1437, 95th Congo 2nd 
Sess. (197S), section 1752 (Labor Bribery) as passed by the Senate. 

2/ See,~, 18 U.S.C. 1954 which imposes felony 
sanctIOns ~n regard to payments made in connection with 
matters relating to employee benefit plans; see also IS 
U.S.C. 201 and the distinction between penalties-rDr 
"bribery" and the payment of unlawful "gratuities." 
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The statute prohibits all knowing payments, loans, and 
deliveries of things of value, or agreements for the same, 
from an employer, or a person acting in the interest of an 
employer, to a labor union or union official whose status is 
covered by Subsections l86(a) (1) or (a) (2) regardless of 
whether or not the payment or receipt is made because of the 
union official's status and because of some corrupt purpose. iI 
Only those payments which are specifically excepted in 
Subsection lS6(c) may lawfully be made and received. 

The continuing presence in Section 186 of a general 
prohibition against employer payments to labor organizations 
and representatives of employees is necessary for purposes 
of the criminal and civil enforcement of restrictions in 29 
U.S.C. 186(c) on an employer's withholding and payment of 
union members' dues, contributions to union-sponsored 
pension and welfare benefit trusts, etc. Moreover, because 
conviction for the unlawful receipt of or demand for any 
payment prohibited by Subsections 186 (a) (1) or (a) (2), 
regardless of its amount, is fully consistent with convic­
tion for conduct equivalent to bribery or extortion, 4/ the 
misdemeanor offense will continue to be a useful vehicle for 

3/ See, e.g., United States v. Ricciardi, 357 F.2d 91, 
99-10o-T2nd Cir.), cert. denied, 384 U.S. 942 (1966), which 
holds that the receipt of payments motivated by personal 
friendship is not exempted from prosecution under subsec­
tions (a) (1) and (b) (1): United States v. Pecora, 484 F.2d 
1289,1294 (3rd Cir. 1973), which upheld an indictment under 
subsections (a) (1) and (b) (1) of a union official who 
received part of the proceeds from a testimonial dinner to 
which he knew employers had contributed despite the absence 
of the evidence showing the union official's solicitation of 
contributions, exercis~ of influence on behalf of the con­
tributing employers, or other "corrupt purpose"; and United 
States v. Thompson, 466 F.2d 18 (W.D. Pa.), aff'd witnout 
opinion, 588 F.2d 825 (3rd Cir. 1978), where the union 
official's acceptance of unsolicited Christmas gifts from an 
employer resulted in conviction under SUbsections (a) (1) and 
(b) (1) • 

4/ See, e.g., United States V. Kramer, 355 F.2d 891, 896 
17th Cir.)~cated in part ~ other grounds. 384 U.S. 100 
(1966) • 
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plea bargaining and for prosecution w~ere the coerciv~ 
element of extnrtion cannot be establ~shed as a pract~cal 
rna tter because of the em:ployer-victim' s unwillingness to 
admit that the unlawful payment was made under dure.3s. 

In addition to brinsring labor bribery a~d graft into 
conformity 'With other fed.eral statutes cover~ng corrupt 
payments, a felony offense in Title,18~ united st~tes Code, 
~as the advantage of closing the ex~st~ng gap, wh~ch one 
~ourt has characterized as "illogical and inequitable," 5/ 
bebleen the criminal penalty for employer payments to laSor 
representatives in the railway an~ airli~e indu~tries and 
the penalty for similar payments ~n all ~ndustr~es covered 
by the Taft-Hartley ~ct. Emplo~er,pay~ents t~ labor re~re­
sentatives in the ra~lway and a~rl~ne ~ndustr~es are not 
prohibited by 29 U.S.C. 186, but rather are prohibited by 
section 2 Fourth of the Railway Labor Act (45 U.S.C. 152) 
which car~ies a maximum penalty of imprisonment for 6 
months $20 000 fine, or both. 45 U.S.C. 152, Tenth and 45 
u.S.C.'181.' Enactment of Section 2 of the bill and 
elevation of 29 U.S.C. 136 to a felony would have the effect 
of further widening the gap in penalties. By including the 
railway and airline industries within the definitional terms 
of a new felony offense in Title 18, the gap can be closed 
with respect to prohibited payments without disrupting other 
regulatory provisions contained in each Act. ~ 

Therefore, we further recommend that the felony offense 
described above include the definition of the term "labor 
organization" used in Section 3 of the Labor-Management 
Reporting and Disclosure Act of 1959 (29 U.S.C. 402), which 

5/ United States v. Davidoff, 359 F. Supp. 545, 547 
TE.D.N.Y. 1973), dismi9s~ng for lack of jurisdiction an 
indictment under 29 U.S.C. 186 which charged a union 
official with the receipt of payments from an airline 
employer. 

6/ See, e.g., United States v. Winston, 558 F.2d 105 (2d 
Cir. I977);-a-prosecut~on of an employer under the Railway 
Labor Act for the alleged willful exercise of influence and 
coercion of employees in matters involving employee 
representation, subject matter which would be an unfair 
labor practice in industries not covered by the Railway 
Labor Act. Both 29 U.S.C. 186 and the 45 U.S.C. 152 also 
provide for civil enforcement. 
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expressly includes labor unioHs in the railway and airline 
industries. We suggest that the felony offense generally 
follow the definit~onal format of S.1630, 97th Cong., 1st 
Sess. (1981), Sect~on 1752 insofar as the definitional terms 
are relevant to the proposed felony offense. 11 

General Con~ent on the Amendment of 29 U.S.C. 
§§504 and 1111: (S.1785, Sections 3 through 11) 

Because the Department of Justice believes that labor 
unions and employee benefit plans must be free of the 
~ontrol or influence of persons who pose a danger to the 
~ntegrity of such organizations, as demonstrated- by their 
conviction,of significa~t cri~es, the Department supports 
those port~ons of the b~ll wh~ch would strengthen Sections 
504 and ll~l of Title 29, United States Code, and bring the 
two compan~on statutes closer to conformity as to the crimes 
and positions covered. Therefore, the Department of Justice 
supp~rts those portions of the bill which would amend both 
Sect~ons 1111 and 504 and 1) elevate each statute to a 
felony with the uniform result that violatiqn of either 
s~atute will carry a ~aximum sentence of imprisonment for 
f~ve years, $10,000 f~ne, or both (Sections 5 and 9 
respectively, of the bill); 2) extend the period of' 
prohibited,service under each statute from five to ten years 
after conv~ction, or after the end of imprisonment 
whichever is later (Sections 4 and 8 of the bill ' 
~espectively)! and,3) impose the disability of e~ch statute 
~n all cases ~mmed~ately upon conviction in the trial court 
from date of judgment, regardless of whether the judgment 
remains under appeal (Sections 6 and 7, and Sections 10 and 
11, respectively, of the bill) • 

, Wi~h respect to ~he issue of whet~er compensation, 
'''h~ch m~ght be otherw~se due a convicted person should be 
placed in escrow pending the outcome of any such appeal the 
Departm~nt of Justice defers to the Department of Labor: We 
acre adv~sed that the Labor Department objects to the escrow 
provisions of the bill by reason of their possible conflict 
with existing law. 

7/ S.1630, Section 1752 contains a specific definition for 
vlabor organization" which also includes federal employee 
unions within its coverage. 

\ 
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On the other hand, although the Dep~rtment ?f Ju~tice 
supports the bill's enlargement,of the l~st ?f d~sabl~ng 
crimes in each statute to also ~nclud7 certa~n of~ens:-s 
involving abuse or misuse of t~e conv~cte~ ~erson s ,labor 
organization or employee benef~t pla~ ~os~t~on,or 
employment we believe that such add~t~onal cr~mes sh?uld 
not be limited to felonies (Section~ 4 and 8 o~ ~he b~ll). 
We also recommend that the ~arge~ l~st ?f spec~f~cally 
enumerated crimes nO\,l conta~ned ~n .,ect~on ll~l be added to 
Section 504. We comment below on what we bel~eve sh~uld be 
an appropriate for~at fo~ b~ingin~ the two statutes ~nto 
conformity as to d~squal~fy~ng cr~mes. 

The Department also ?PPOS7S 7nactm7n~ of particular 
provisions of the bill wh~ch, ~n ~ts op~n~on, would unduly 
expand the scope of the statutory prohib~tions at the 
expense of union members' control ?f the~r own , 
organizations, the principle of un~on democra~y wh~ch is 
embodied in the federal labor laws, and the r~ghts of 
persons who. do not occupy positions,of real influence with 
respect to unions or employee benef~t plans. We comment 
below on each new position added by Sections 4 and 8 of the 
bill. 

Disqualifying Crimes 

There is presently a disparity be~ween the,list,of 
crimes in Section 504 and the larger l~st of c~~me~ ~ncluded 
in Section 1111 despite the complementary appl~cat~on of the 
two statutes in certain cases which involve union-affiliated 
benefit plans. An individual convicted of perjury, for 
example, is forbidden to admin~ster or be employed by an 
employee benefit plan, but he ~s free to occupy a 
responsible position in a union which is affiliated wi~h the 
same plan and to bargain with employers about the fund~ng of 
that plan. This disparate result also occurs whenever,a 
person is convicted of/one of the federal statutory cr~mes 
listed in Section· 1111 which does not equate to any of the 
generic crimes listed in Section 504. ~ T~is ano~~ous 
treatment results despite the fact that a un~on off~c~al and 

8/ For example, any conviction under 29 U.S.C. 186 
covering prohibited payments from employers to union 
officials is a disabling offense under Section 1111. 
Because 29 U.S.~. 186 is not expressly enumerated in Section 
504, however, disqualification under Section 504 requires 
that the crime be equivalent to or a predicate for one of 
the generic crimes listed in that statute. See,~, 
Hodgson v. Chain Service Restaurant, Luncheonette, and Soda 
Founta~n Employee~ Union, Local 11, 355 F. Supp. 180 
(S.D.N.Y. 1973). 

• 
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an 7m~loye7 bene~it plan o~ficial both occupy fiduciary 
pos~t~ons ~n the~r respect~ve organizations and may 
sometimes owe fiduciary responsibilities to an identical 
class of individuals who as union members participate in 
benefit plans sponsored in whole or part by their union. 

Therefor7 we :ecommend that the list of specifically 
enumerated cr~mes ~n both statutes be identical. We believe 
that the larger list of crimes in Section 1111 generally 
reflects a more adequate basis of protection for union 
members equal to that which they already hold as pension and 
welfare benefit plan participants. Inclusion of the Section 
1111 list of crimes ~n Section 504 would afford additional 
protection against potential abuse by persons convicted of 
t~e generic ~r~mes ?f fr~ud, ki~naping, and perjury. The 
l~st of spec~f~c cr~mes ~n Sect~on 1111 would also provide 
new ~rotection under Se~tion 504 with respect to persons 
conv~cted of the follow~ng statutory crimes: 

1) those misdemeanor violations of 29 U.S.C. 186 for 
payments to union officals which could not 
otherwise be characterized as bribery; 

2) th?se pa~e~ts to benefit plan officials, 
un~on off~c~als, employers, and service 
providers in violation of 18 U.S.C. 1954 which 
could not otherwise be characterized as bribery; 

3) those deprivations of union members' rights 
through the threatened use of violence in 
violation of 29 U.S.C. 530 which could not 
otherwise be characterized as murder assault 
with intent to kill, or assault which inflicts 
grievous bodily injury; 

4) those mail arid wire fraud schemes in violation of 
Title 18, United States Code, Chapter 63 which 
could not otBerwise be characterized as grand 
larceny or embezzlement; 

5) the falsification of records and reports required 
by Title I of the Employee Retirement Income 
Security Act of 1974 (hereafter referred to as 
"ERISA") (18 U.S.C. 1027); 

6) the misdemeanor for coercive interference with 
plan participants' rights under ERISA (29 U.S.C. 
1141) ; 

-, 
-r ! 
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the reporting and record keeping misdemeanors 
under ERISA (29 U.S.C. 1131); 

the misdemeanors under the Labor Management 
Reporting and Disclosure Act of 1959 (hereafter 
referred to as "LMRDA") which relate to the 
bonding of union officials (29 U.S.C. 502), 
prohibited loans from unions (29 U.S.C. 503(a», 
and payments of criminal fines by unions and 
employers (29 U.S.C. 503(b»; 

those felony violations relating to all controlled 
drug substances described in Title 21, united 
States Code, which could not otherwise be 
characterized as violations of "narcotic laws"; 

any crime described in 15 U.S.C. 80a-9(a) (1) 
relating to the Investment Company Act of 1940, 
as amended; 

a violation 18 U.S.C. 874 relating to kickbacks 
on federally financed public works; 

12) obstruction of justice in violation of 18 U.S.C. 
§§1503, 1505, 1506 and 1510; 

13) a conviction under 29 U.S.C. 504 or 29 U.S.C. 
1111; and 

14) conviction for any attempt to commit the 
specifically enumerated crimes. 

Accordingly, the Department of Justice recommends that 
Section 8 of the bill be amended to prohibit service under 
Section 504 by reason of conviction for all the crimes 
currently listed in Sec~ion 1111 which are not listed in 
Section 504. 

Although we support the bill's prohibition against 
service by convicted felons if their crime involved the 
abuse or misuse of labor organization or benefit plan 
position or employment, we believe that conviction for 
crimes involving an abuse of such positions generally 
carries a grave risk to the integrity of unions and benefit 
plans regardless of whether the particular crime was 
punished as a felony or misdemeanor. Persons convicted of 
misdemeanors under federal and state law are currently 
disqualified by reason of the generic nature of the crimes 
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now listed in both statutes 9/ and without regard to union 
or benefit plan affi1iation.-10/ Therefore we believe that 
any new class of convictions wnich directly focuses on an 
abuse of union or benefit plan position should continue to 
include misdemeanor and felony convictions in a manner 
consistent with treatment given specific crimes listed in 
both statutes. We see no reason why a person who commits 
any crime specifically involving an abuse of his union or 
benefit plan position should be regarded as less of a 
potential threat to the integrity of his organization than 
the person who has been conv:lcted of a specifically 
enumerated felony or misdemeanor which in no way involved 
his union or benefit plan employment. Accordingly, we 
recommend that Sections 4 and 8 of the bill be amended 
further to provide for disqualification under both Sections 
504 and 1111 bY,reason of conviction for "any crime 
involving the abuse or misuse of such person's labor 
organization or employee benefit plan position or 
employment; or conspiracy to commit such crimes; or attempt 
to commit any such crimes, or a crime in which any of the 
foregoing crimes is an element ••.• " 

Enlargement of the Class of 
Persons Prohibited from Service 

Although we support the concept of bringing Sections 
504 and 1111 into conformity with respect to positions which 
have substantially equivalent responsibilities, we believe 
that labor organizations and employee benefit plans should 
continue to be treated independently in view of the separate 
definition of certain positions and terms by the Labor 
Management Reporting and Disclosure Act (LMRDA) and the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act (ERISA), 
respectively. Indeed, the bill does not purport to 
consolidate the two statutes. Therefore, we suggest that 
all treatment of positions in labor organizations be 

9/ United States v. priore, 236 F. Supp. 542 (E.D.N.Y. 
1964) (state misdemeanor for conspiracy involving extortion 
results in disqualification under Section 504). 

lO/ See, e.g., Lippi v. Thomas, 298 F. Supp 242, 248 
(M.D.Pa. 1969) (bank larceny under 18 U.S.C. 656 which did 
not involve union conduct results in bar from union 
position); Viverito v. Levi, 395 F. Supp. 47 (N.D.Ill. 
1975) (embezzlement from a federal savings and loan 
association results in a bar from benefit plan position) • 

\ 
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eliminated from Subsections 4(a) (1) through 4(a) (6) of the 
bill which amend 29 U.S.C. 1111. This would require 
omission of references to "any labor organization" in 
Subsections 4 (a) (2), (5), and (6) in addition to deletion of 
Subsections ~ (a) (3) and (a) (4). Similarly, we suggest that 
all treatmen~ of positions in employee benefit plans be 
eliminated from Subsections Sea) (1) through Sea) (6) of the 
biJ.1 wl':ich amend ~9 U.S.C. 504. This would require omission 
of reft!re!lces to "any employee benefit plan" in Subsections 
Sea) (2), (5) and (6) in addition to deletion of Subsection 
S(a)(l). 

. Because the disqualification of service in regard to 
employee benefit plans would be confined to Section 1111 
under the format which we recommend above, there would 
clearly be no need to recite the list of benefit plan­
related positions in Section 3 as well a~ in Section 4 of 
the bill. That is, there would be no need to separately 
describe the class of persons holding employee benefit plan 
positions apart from the clas~ of persons holding union 
positions under our suggested format for purposes of an 
amendment of Section 1111. Moreover, we note that the 
recitation of benefit plan-related positions in Section 3 of 
the bill is not coextensive with the list of benefit 
plan-related positions in Section 4. Section 3 only recites 
the positions listed in Subsections 4(a) (1) and (a) (2) and 
omits the benefit plan-related postions specified in 
Subsections 4(a) (5) and (a) (6). 

In any event, we oppose the enactment of Section 3 of 
the bill inasmuch as it may give rise to the argument that a 
convicted person who is barred from service in the positions 
listed in Section 4 must have been a benefit plan 
administrator, etc., prior to or at the time of his 
conviction or imprisonment. That is, Section 3 of the bill 
would amend Section llll(a) to read "No person who is an 
administrator [etc.] who has been convicted of, or has been 
imprisoned as a result ~f his conviction of [the enumerated 
crimes] shall serve or be permitted to serve (1) as an 
administrator [etc.] •••• " Because the Section 1111 
disability currently applies, and will continue to apply 
under the format of the bill, to certain specifically listed 
crimes which have no connection to benefit plan employment, 
any such interpretation of the statute, as amended, would be 
contrary to the remedial purposes of Section 1111 as 
originally enacted and a significant retreat from current 
law. Section 1111 currently states Wlequivocably that "no 
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I?erson" \~ho has ~een convicted of certain crimes shall serve 
~n certa~n benef~t plan-related positions. 11/ In our view 
any person who has been convicted of bank embezzlement for' 
examl?le! and who ~as not,persuaded the United States P~role 
Comm~ss~on that h~s serv~ce would be in accord with the 
purl?oses of ERISA Title,I should b7 barred for the statutory 
per~od from later enter~ng a benef~t plan-related position 
regardless of whether he has ever held such a position 
befo:z;e. Therefore, we recommend against enactment of 
Sect~on 3 of the bill. 

Representative of an Employee Benefit Plan: 
Section 4 (a) (1) 

We endc;>rse,the bill's ~nclusion of the term "any 
repr7sent~t~ve ~n any capac~ty" with respect to disqualified 
s7rv~ce w~t~ 7mployee benefit plans. Although the current 
;~st of"pos~t~ons ~n 29 U.S.C. llll~a) (1) includes the term 
agez:t, ,th~s amendment should clar~fy the statute's broad 

appl~c~t~on to any person who deals on behalf of the plan 
even w~thout express authority or compensation. 

Consultant to a Labor Organization: 
Sections S (a) (2), 10 (c) (2) 

~e support t~e iz:clusion within 29 U.S.C. 504 of the 
term, consul~ant, wh~ch currently applies to compensated 
serv~ce prov~ders of employee benefit plans under 29 U.S.C. 
~lll(c) (2). ~ecause,of the fiduciary responsibilities 
~ml?osed on ~~c;>n off~cers and employees by the LMRDA, we 
~h~nk that ~t ~s reasonable for a union official, just as it 
~s reasonable for az: employe7 benefit plan fiduciary 
c~rrently, to exerc~se care ~n selecting the persons who 
w~ll a~v~se, represent, or otherwise provide assistance to 
the un~on <;:once:z;niz:g, i t!s establishment or operation wh,en he 
kz:ows thC'.t t~e ~nd~v~dual or entity will be compensated, 
d~rect1y or ~nd~rectly, from union funds. The bill imposes 
a pez:alty c;>n I?e:z;sons who knowingly employ or retain a 
conv~cted ~nd~v~dual or entity. 

117 , ~he legisla~ive"history of ERISA speaks of the 
p';"~\V~s~on,a~ barr~ng all persons convicted of certain 
l~sted cr~m~nal offenses." H. Rep. No. 93-533 on H. R. 2, 
93d Cong., 1st Sess. 11 (1973). 
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We suggest that ftny reference to a "la~or org<;inization" 
in the definition of consultant be omitted ~n Sect~on 
6(c) (2) of the bill and that any reference to any "employee 
benefit plan" be omitted from Section 10(c) (2) of the bill. 

Adviser to any Labor Organization or Employee 
Benefit Plan: Sections 4(a) (2) and 8(a) (2) 

Because the term "adviser" is listed separately from 
the term "consultant," we infer that one may be prohibited 
from being an adviser on any subject matter to a benefit 
plan or labor union regardless of any arrangement with 
respect to compensation for services rendered. Because of 
their special expertise, insurance consultants and financial 
advisers, for example, have considerable influence on 
employee benefit plans and their affiliated l<;ibor 
organizations regardless of the source of the~r . 
compensation. Therefore, the Department of Just~ce supports 
the inclusion of the term "adviser" in 29 U.S.C. §§504 and 
1111. 

Employee or Representative of Any Labor 
Organization: Section 8(a) (3) 

We strongly endorse the bill's elimination of the 
lilxception for exclusively clerical and custodial employees 
Ii/hich is currently found in 29 U. S. C. 504. Frequently, the 
I~lerical exception is used as a vehicle for the rehiring, 
some times with substantial salaries, of convicted 
individuals who have vacated union office, but who continue 
to exercise the influence and control formerly enjoyed by 
virtue of the vacated office. 12/ Because a union official 

12/ See~, United S~ates v. Ronald Scaccia, 74 Cr. 136 
TN.D.~Y., order filed Nov. 5, 1980), where the district 
court revoked the defendant's probation, following his 
conviction for embezzlement of employee benefit plan monies, 
on a finding that the defendant had violated the terms of 
his probation by exercising the powers which he formerly 
held as business manager of his union, while purportedly 
serving as a union clerk, and thereby Violating Section 504. 
The defendant was later convicted of racketeering 
conspiracy, the receipt of unlawful payments from employers, 
embezzlement of union funds, and obstruction of justice in 
connection with his activities as a union clerk. The latter 
conviction is currently pending appeal. 
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who us~s his Position. corruptly may often wield great 
e~onom~c po~er o~er h~s fellow members and the employers 
w~th whom h~s un~~n deals, it is sometimes difficult to 
prove that <;i conv~cte~ individual is in fact exercising more than exclus~vely cler~cal duties. 

Similarly, the Department of Justi.ce strongly SUpports 
the added coverage of persons Who serve as a "representative 
in any capacity" of a labor organization. For example, 
although sh~p stewards are clearly defined as 
represen~a~~ves of labor. organizations (29 U.S.C. 402(q)), 
hold pos~t~ons of trust ~n relation to the union and its 
me~bers (29 U.S.C. 501(a)), and must be bonded when handling 
un~on fun~s (29 U.S.~. 502), frequently they are not 
chara~ter~zed as ~£f~cers by their union constitutions, do 
not.s~t on execut~ve boards or otherwise function as 
off7cers and may be com~ensated for their union work by 
t~e~7 regular shop employers. Therefore, it is som~times 
d~ff~cult to successfully characterize a convicted shop 
steward <;is an.off~ce7 ~r employee for purposes of Section 
504 desp~~e h~s s~gn~f~cant responsibilities under the LMRDA 
as the un~on's representative who is closest to the working union member. 

Labor Relations Consultant or AdViser; 
Employee of Employer Associations' 

Section 8(a) (4) • 

.S~b~ection 8~a) (4) substantially restates the existing 
proh~b~t~on cover~ng labor relations consul~ants in 29 
U~S.C. 504(a) (2). However, because the term "adviser" is 
17

sted 
separately from "labor relations consultant," tve . 

b~ll appears to cover uncompensated advisers to labor unions 
and employers. Compare 29 U.S.C. 402(m) (definition of 
l~bor r~l<;itio~s consultant). Because we support the hill's 
~~squal~f~~at~on of uncompensated advisers to labor unions 
~n ~ubsect~on 8(a) (2), we Similarly endorse the bill's 
equ~val~nt treatment of advisers to employers in this 
SUbsect~o~. We als~ sUJ?port the elimination of the clerical 
or custod~al except~on ~n 29 U.S.C. 504(a) (2) with respect 
to employees of employer associations. 

,. 
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Shareholder, Officer, Executive or 
Administrative Employee of ~y Entity Devoted 

In Whole or Part to Providing Goods and 
Services to Any Employee Benefit Plan or 

Labor Organization: Sections 4(a) (5) and B(a) (5) 

Entities and individuals who provide goods and services 
to benefit plans a.nd labor unions for compensation appear to 
be covered by the bill under the broad definition of 
"consultaht," which includes any person "who provides other 
assistance to such (labor] organization or plan, concerning 
the establishment or operation of such [labor] organization 
or plan" (Sections 6 (c) (2) and 10 (c) (2) of~l:le bill). 
Insofar as each shareholder of s&rvice pr ... ·; ... der entities may 
not be personally engaged in the provision of such goods and 
services or. be charged with the responsibility for their 
provision, we oppose enactment of these particular 
subsections of the bill 1.n their present form as unduly 
broad. On their face, these subse~tions would disqualify 
arLY shareholder of an insurance company, for example, which 
issues policies or provides other administrative services to 
labor unions or benefit plans despite the absence of any 
personal responsibili t~l on the part of such shareholder in 
connection with such labor union or benefit plan-related 
business. 

Accordingly, we suggest that the committee may wish to 
consider a formula which would limit disqualification to 
shareholders whose interest is sufficiently great that the 
exercise of their influence would substantially affect the 
operations of the provider entity. For example, the 
Committee may wish to consider the application of a formula 
similar to that which determines status as a "party in 
interest" under Title I of ERISA, namely, p~rsons holding at 
least ten (10) perce,:~ of the sr.ares in a corporation or ten 
(10) percent of the capitaJ, ~:nd profits in a partnership or 
joint venture which provides services to benefit plans. See 
29 U.S.C. 10G2 (14) (B), (H), and (I). 

r. 
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Any Capacity that Involves 
Decision Making Authority or Custody 

or Control of the Moneys, Funds, 
Assets, or Property of Any 

Labor Organization or Employee 
Benefit Plan: Sections 4(a) (6) and B(a) (6). 

Although the exercise of control over labor union and 
benefit plan property is generally limited to those 
positions already covered by 29 U.S.C, §§504 and 1111 
together with the organizations' consultants, adviser~ and 
repr~sentatives, we support the enactment of these ' 
subsections insofar as they operate to deter the de facto 
exercise of such control by convicted persons who-otherwise 
do not hold the de jure status of those positions. 13/ 
However, the general members of a labor organization-are 
entitled to exereise decision making authority, at least 
indirectly, with respect to th('> moneys, funds, assets and 
property of labor organizations. We do not think that the 
benefits which flow to a convicted individual by reason of 
his affiliation with a union purely as a result of 
liiembership ordinarily present so clear a danger to the 
integrity of the organization that the individual should be 
denied the opportunity to affiliate with other employees who 
have won the right to bargain collectively with their 
~mployer. Therefore, we recommend that the Co~mittee 
consider the inclusion of language which would exclude the 
operation of these subsections as to any person whose 
decision making authority is limited solely to the exercise 
of rights which he enjoys as a member of a' labor 
organization under the Labor Management Reporting and 
Disclosure Act. 

131 See e.g:, Labor,un~on Insurance Activities of Joseph 
Hauser and H~s Assoc~ates: Report of ~he Senate Committee 
on Governmental Affairs by its Permanent Subcommittee on 
Investigations, S. Rep. No. 96-426, 96th Cong., 1st Sess. 
(1979) 44-51, 52-53, and the .~iscussion of the influence 
over certain benefit plans held by persons who might Dot 
currently be considered as fiduciaries or p~rties-in­
interest in all cases under ERISA. 
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Service Connected t'lith a Labor Organization, 
Association of Employeers or Labor Relations 
Consultant By Member of the Communist Party: 

29 U.S.C. 504 (a) 

The Department of Justice recommends that the 
prohibition against service by a member of the Communist 
Party be repealed in 29 U.S.C. 504 in view of the Supreme 
Court's decision in United States v. Brown, 381 U.S. 437 
(1965) which struck down this particular provision as an 
unconstitutional bill of attainder. 

Disqualification of Corporations and Partnerships 

Recent prosecutions of widespread corruption on the 
waterfront and in other industries have demonstrated that 
convicted individuals may continue to hold union or benefit 
plan office for several months or years while their 
convictions are pending appeal. Therefore, we support the 
bill's disqualification of convicted individuals immediately 
upon their conviction in the trial courts. In the case of ~ 
convicted partnerships and corporations, however, 
disqualification also adversely affects innocent third 
parties such as fello,", employees, stockholders, etc. 
Therefore, we recommend that the procedures which are 
currently in force in 29 U.S.C. llll(a) be retained by 
Section 4 of the bill and added to 29 U.S.C. 504 as part of 
Section 8. Currently, corporations and partnerships may not 
be disqualified unless the United States Parole Conunission 
determines after notice a>1d opportunity for hearing, that 
service to a benefit plan would be inconsistent with the 
intention of 29 U.S.C. 1111. 14/ 

Intentional Violation: Section 9 

Because of the remedial purposes for Which both 
Sections 504 and 1111 were enacted, the Department of 
Justice further recommends that 29 U.S.C. 504 be amended to 
insure that the element of mental culpability conform to 

14/ See, Presser v. Brennan, et ~, 389 F. SuPp. 808, 
814-1s-{N. D. Oh~o 1975), for a d~scussion of the ERISA 
statute's treatment of corporations and partnerships as 
distinguished from ingividuals. 
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, 29 USC I'll We suggest that the 
that ~l:eady fO~fn ~~ectio~ 9 ~f ~.he· bill be change~ to read 

~~~~en~~~;!~gr. thereby obvic;-tir,r:; any sc;:ienter d r~~~~~::~nt 
predicated on an intent to d~sc, . .)ey or d~sregar 

Effect of the Propo~ed,Amendments on 
Prior Conv~ct~ons: 

Sections 6(c) (1) and 10(c) (1) 

In order to ensure the immedia~e 7ffect of thi~ of 

legislation on all o~:~~:~~i~i ~~~~~~;~~~~o~e~~: ~~:~ 
its ~assage, the De~ 10(c) (1) of the bill include a clause 
Sect~ons 6(c) (1) an f din 29 C.S.C. 504(c) namely 
similar to that h cu~~e~;l~ee~~~ to have been 'convicted' and 
that a "person sa, " e ardless of 
under the disability of 'conv~ct~on •• ; ~ffer the date 
whether such conviction occurred before 0 t d " 15/ 
this section or any amendment thereto was enac e. __ 

Proposed Authority of 
Investigate Violations of 

the Secretary of Labor to 
Title 18, United States Code 

d 14 f the bill essentially impose 
Sections 12, 13 an 0 res onsibilit:r and authority 

on the Departm7nt of,La~or i~ecrimlnal violations inVOlving 
to detect and,~nvest~ga e a benefit plans. By its broad 
employee pens;on and w7;f~~: of this subchapter (Title I of 
reference to the P~o~~d Federal laws," Section 14 of the 
ERISA) and other re a e rtment of Labor's 
bill purports to ext7nd the Depa tl with other federal 
invest~gat~ve autho:~~y't~O~~~~~~~on~ of Sections 664, 1027, 
invest~gat~ve,agen~~esu ited States Code which relate to 
and 1954 of T~tle , n lawful a~ments involving 
theft, false s~atements'a:~d ~~nceivabiy, to violations o~ 
employee,benef~t Plans fl licability, as for example, ma~l 
other cr~messo~ g~~~~) i:~~lVing employee benefit p~ans. 
fraud (18 U. ',' urrent arrangements govern~ng the 
Because we b71~eve,tha~ c onsibilities are appropriate 
division of ~nve~t7ga~~ve ~7S~tive responsibilities already 
in vie\'l of the c~v~l ~nv~s ~g Labor we recommend against imposed on the Departmen 0 , 
enactment of Sections 12, 13, and 14. 

~~--~~-Y~~'~-"~~I5n~tbearrnnaational Brotherhood of Teamsters, 
15/ See, Pos\,ma v. Cir 1964) and Presser v. 
LOcal 294, 337 F.2d 60~0~2d814 (N. D. Ohio 1975), which 
Brennan, 339 Fi,suil~n of'Sections 504 and 1111, 
upheld ~he app ~ca 'tions occurring prior to the respect~vely, to conv~c 
statutes' enactment. 
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Uncer existing arrangements, the Department of Labor is 
primarily responsible for the investigation of criminal 
conduct involving a willful violation of the reporting and 
disclosure provisions relating to employee benefit plans 
under Title I of ERISA (29 U.S.C. 1131). Pursuant to a 
memorandum of understanding promulgated by the Departments 
of Justice and Labor in February 1975, thE! Federal Bureau of 
Investiga'tion has been delegated primary investigat,ive 
authority over crimes involving disqualification from 
employee benefit plan employment (29 U.S.C. 1111) and 
interference with the rights of employee benefit plan 
participants and benficiaries by fraud or coercion (29 
U.S.C. 1141). Because Title I of ERISA only amended 
Sections 664, 1027, and 1954 of Title 18 with respect to 
those statutes' jurisdictional predicate, namely employee 
benefit plans subject to Ti·tle I of ERISA after January 
1975, the Federal Bureau of Investigation retained its 
existing primary authority to investigate violations of 
those statutes. See 28 U.S.C. 533; 28 C.F.R. § 0.B5. 

The memorandum of understanding expressly provides, 
however, that the above division of investigative responsi­
bilities is subject to spe,::ific arrangements agreed upon by 
the t,.,o Departments on a case-by-case basis. Accordingly, 
current guidelines for United States Attorneys' offices 
provide that where a Labor Department investigation of 
reporting offenses discloses a theft of employee benefit 
assets in violation of 18 U.S.C. 664, the United States 
Attorney may, at his option, authorize Department of Labor 
investiga.tors to complete the theft investigation in order 
to minimize unnecessary expense and duplication of investi­
gative efforts. Noreover, current arrangements with the 
Department of Labor's Office of the Inspector General permit 
a wide ra.nge of criminal investigative assignments to agents 
of that office who are detailed' to the Justice Department's 
Organized Crime and Rack'eteering Strike Forces. 

Furthermore, we recognize that the Department of Labor 
has significant responsibilities with respect to the civil 
enforcement of those provil;-ions relating to fiduciary viola­
tions and prohibited transa,ctions under Title I of ERISA. 
Because of the limited statute of limitations governing 
civil actions, a civil investigation frequently must be 
conducted simultaneously with the investigation of over­
lapping Title 18 offenses. Although the criminal and civil 
investigations may proceed in parallel, a civil investigator 
who assiElts in the criminal investigation may lose his 
ability t:o effectively assist in the civil action because of 
restrictions on the dissemination of information gained by 
access to grand jury proceedings. Therefore, the imposition 
of broad criminal investigative responsibilities on the 
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Department of Labor with respect to employee benefit plans 
may very well ~equire the creation of a compone~t of, , 
criminal invc!:;';igators separate and apart from ~ts c~v~l 
investigator5. Yet, the expertise of the c~vil i~vestigat~r 
who is repeatealy exposed to complex cases ~nvolv~ng benef~t 
plans is frequently the precise qualification that the 
criminal prosecutor seeks. 

The Federal Bureau of Investigation is strongly com­
mitted to its investiga~ive program concerning employee 
benefit plans and has develope~ s~~tantial exper~ise in 
this area with the result of s~gn~f~cant prosecut~ons and 
convictions in both its white collar and organized crime 
programs. We believe that the Department of Labor is 
committed to t.he prompt referral to the Department of 
Justice of evidence, developed during the course of its 
civil investigations, which may warrant criminal prosecu­
tion. Therefore, we recommend that 29 U.S.C. 1136 not be 
amended at this time. 

However the prompt referral of criminal matters 
disclosed du~ing the course of civil investigations and the 
vigorous discharge of those criminal enforcement, 
responsibilities which are currently held by var~ous 
components of the Department of Labor are matters of 
continuing interest and concern to the Department of 
Justice. Therefore, we are gratified to know that the 
Secretary of Labor has formed a task force to study methods 
of giving greater prioritY,to the enforcement of ~he 
criminal laws governing un~ons and employee ~enef~t ~lan~ 
generally and to improve procedures whereby ~nformat~on ~s 
exchanged between the component agencies of the Labor 
Deoartment and the organized Crime and Racketeering Program 
of·the Inspector General's Office in particular. 

The Office of Management and Budget has ~dv~sed this, 
Department that there is no objection to subm~ss~on of th~s 
report from the standpoint of the Administration's program. 

~ef;q-7AA 
~~do~~11 
Assistant Attorney General 
Office of Legislative Affairs 
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Mr. JENSEN. Recent convictions involving labor-management cor­
ruption on the waterfront and in other industries have demonstrat­
ed the continuing need for strong Federal legislation to deter the 
use of extortion, bribery, and payments involving conflicts of inter­
est among the parties to collective bargaining. Most cases of out­
right extortion on the parties to collective bargaining may current­
ly result in the imposition of felony sanctions under the Hobbs Act 
(18 U.S.C. 1951). However, the current penalty for a substantive of­
fense under section 302 of the Taft-Hartley Act (29 U.s.C. 186), 
which is the only Federal criminal statute which expressly outlaws 
bribery and the payment of graft to labor union officials, is limited 
to a misdemeanor. Although a violation of section 186 also can be a 
predicate offense for purposes of the Racketeer Influenced and Cor­
rupt Organization (RICO) statute, prosecution under the latter stat­
ute requires a pattern of racketeering activity, whereas section 186 
is aimed at singular criminal acts. In our view, the gravity of the 
penalty for an isolated payment or receipt, which may reflect a sig­
nificant corruption of labor-management relations and which may 
or may not involve a substantial amount of money, is not always 
sufficient for the crime unck-r present law. We believe that the 
highest risk is demonstrated where the payment is specifically di­
rected at affecting the recipient's conduct as an official of his union 
or as a representative of employees regardless of the total value of 
any consideration paid. 

Therefore, the Justice Department proposes that the committee 
consider the enactment of a labor bribery statute similar to that 
which is being considered by the Congress in connection with pro­
posals for a uniform Federal criminal code: The current proposal in 
S. 1630 would substitute a new felony in title 18 of the United 
States Code for the particular portion of the Taft-Hartley Act 
which specifically requires a nexus between the payment and the 
recipient's office, 29 U.s.C. 186(a)(4). We believe that such a statute 
would more appropriately focus felony sanctions on the corrupt 
nature of the payment in conformity with the penalty format of ex­
isting Federal statutes which cover bribery and graft in other con­
texts. 

Moreover, the statutory format which we propose would leave 
intact the gene ... al prohibitions against employer payments to labor 
organizations and representatives found in section 186 whose con­
tinuing operation is necessary for purposes of the criminal and 
civil enforcement of restrictions on an employer's payment of con­
tributinns to union sponsored pension and welfare trusts, et cetera. 
I understand that Lane Kirkland, president of the AFL-CIO, has 
articulated his concern in a hearinq before the Senate Permanent 
Subcommittee on Investigations that section 2 of this bill, as it is 
presently structured, would create confusion as to whether the 
latter kinds of proscribed payments, which do not ordinarily in­
volve employer payoffs to union officers, could be punished as felo­
nies. We believe that the statutory format which we propose would 
allay those kinds of concern and make clear that a felony sanction 
is appropriate only in cases clear:')' involving corruption of labor­
management relations. 

Let me digress for just a moment from the prepared remarks, 
Mr. Chairman, and respond to a concern that you expressed, and 
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that is that ~>ur position is that we agree with the, in effect, raising 
of the sanctIOn to the felony level. We think that it could be even 
stronger and our effort is to make it stronger by using the concept 
presently in th~ Criminal Code. If ~he concern you expressed, how­
ever, was ~hat It may be deferred mto a larger bill and it may be 
lo~t, . that IS not our pu~pos~. Our purpose is to use that concept 
wIthm 1785. Our suggestIOn IS not that the restructuring of the bill 
and the r~ising of the misdemeanor to felony should be deferred at 
all. W.e thInk t?a~ the concepts we are expressing, that are articu­
lated In the CrImInal Code, are actually stronger and more consist­
ent, and you should be looking at using those concepts in S. 1785. 
We do not think it would be deferred to the Criminal Code. 

Senator NICKLES. I appreciate your explaining that. 
Mr. JENSEN. It makes a difference. 
Senator NICKLES. Plus we are getting ready to take up the Crimi­

nal Code and it is a massive piece of legislation. 
Mr. JENSEN. That is absolutely correct. We do not wish to defer 

this in any way. We think this is an important piece of legislation. 
We agree with these concepts. We are offering our observations. 

Senator NICKLES. Is the bill you alluded to S. 1630? 
Mr. JENSEN. Yes. That is the Criminal Code. Within the Criminal 

Code are the definitions of a labor bribery statute that we think 
should be used in S. 1785. 

Senator NICKLES. Is that presently in the Criminal Code bill that 
is before the Senate? 

Mr. JENSEN. Yes, it is. 
Because the Department of Justice believes that labor unions 

and employee benefit plans must be free of the control or influence 
of persons who pose a danger to the integrity of such organi.zations, 
as demonr-trated by their conviction of significant crimes, the De­
partment supports those portions of the bill which would strength­
en sections 504 and 1111 of title 29, United States Code, and bring 
the two companion statutes closer to conformity as to the crimes 
and positions covered. Therefore, the Department of Justice sup­
ports those portions of the bill which would: One, elevate each stat­
ute to a felony; two, extend the period of prohibited service under 
each statute from 5 to 10 years after conviction, or after the end of 
imprisonment, whichever is later; and three, impose the disability 
of each statute in all cases immediately upon conviction in the trial 
court from date of judgment, regardless of whether the judgment 
remains under appeal. 

Senator NICKLES. I caught the first and last. Would you repeat 
the second part? 

Mr. JENSEN. We agree with the extension from 5 to 10 years. 
Senator NICKLES. With a mandatory 10? 
Mr. JENSEN. That is correct. We agree with the elevation of the 

statute to a felony, and we agree that the impact should take place 
upon conviction and judgment rather than waiting for the period of 
appeal. 

Although the Department of Justice supports the bill's enlarge­
ment of the list of disabling crimes in each statute to also include 
certain offenses involving abuse or misuse of the convicted person's 
labor organization or employee benefit plan position or employ­
ment, we believe that such additional crimes should not be limited 
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to felonies. Persons convicted of misdemeanors under Federal and 
State law are currently disqualified by reason of the generic nature 
of the crimes now listed in both statutes and without regard to 
union or benefit plan affiliation. We see no reason why a person 
who commits any crime specifically involving an abuse of his union 
or benefit plan position should be regarded as less of a potential 
threat to the integrity of his organization than the person who has 
been convicted of a specifically enumerated misdemeanor which in 
no way involved his union or benefit plan employment. 

We also recommend that the larger list of specifically enumer­
ated crimes now contained in section 1111 be added to section 504. 
There is presently a disparity between the list of crimes in section 
504 which is applicable to labor unions and employer associations 
and the larger list of crimes included in section 1111 with respect 
to employee benefit plans, despite the complementary application 
of the two statutes in certain cases. Anomalous treatment results 
despite the fact that a union official and an employee benefit plan 
official both occupy fiduciary positions in their respective organiza­
tions and may sometimes owe fiduciary responsibilities to an iden­
tical class of individuals who as union members participate in 
benefit plans sponsored in whole or part by their union. 

Therefore we recommend that the list of specifically enumerated 
crimes in both statutes be identical. We believe that the larger list 
of crimes in section 1111 generally reflects a more adequate basis 
of protection for union members equal to that which they already 
hold as pension and welfare benefit plan participants. Inclusion of 
section 1111's list of crimes in section 504 would afford additional 
protection to union members against potential abuse by persons 
convicted of the generic crimes of fraud, kidnapping, and perjury, 
as well as 14 categories of statutory crimes which we have set out 
in our written comment on the bill. 

We support the concept of bringing sections 504 and 1111 into 
conformity with respect to positions which have substantially 
equivalent responsibilities. However, I would direct the committee 
to our written comment on section 3 of the bill which, in our view, 
may give rise to the argument that a convicted person who is 
barred from service in the positions listed in section 4 must have 
already been a benefit plan office holder, prior to or at the time of 
his conviction or imprisonment. Section 1111 currently states une­
quivocably that "no person" who has been convicted of certain 
crimes shall serve in certain benefit plan-related positions. In our 
view, any person who has been convicted of bank embezzlement, 
for example, and who has not persuaded the U.S. Parole Commis­
sion that his service would be in accord with the purposes of 
ERISA title I, should be barred for the statutory period from later 
entering a benefit plan-related position regardless of whether he 
has ever held such a position before. Therefore, we recommend 
against enactment of section 3 of the bill. . 

Sections 12, 13, and 14 of the bill essentially impose on the De­
partment of Labor the responsibility and authority to detect and 
investigate all criminal violations involving employee pension and 
welfare benefit plans. By its broad reference to "the provisions of 
this subchapter (title I of ERISA) and other related Federal laws," 
section 14 of the bill purports to extend the Department of Labor's 
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investigative authority, concurrently with other Federal investiga­
tive agencies, to violations of sections 664, 1027, and 1954 of title 
18, United States Code, which relate to theft, false statements, and 
unlawful payments involving employee benefit plans, and, conceiv­
ably, to violations of other crimes of general applicability as, for ex­
ample, mail fraud (18 U.s.C. 1341) involving employee benefit 
plans. 

Under existing arrangements, the Department of Labor is pri­
marily responsible for the investigation of criminal disclosure pro­
visions relating to employee benefit plans under title I of ERISA 
(29 U.s.C. 1131). Pursuant to a memorandum of understanding pro­
mulgated by the Departments of Justice and Labor in February 
1975, the FBI has been delegated primary investigative authority 
over two other misdemeanors in ERISA relating to employee bene­
fit plans. Because title I of ERISA only amended sections 664, 1027 
and 1954 of title 18 with respect to those statutes' jurisdictional 
predicate, namely employee benefit plans subject to title I of 
ERISA after January 1975, the FBI retained its existing primary 
authority to investigate violations of those statutes. 

The memorandum of understanding expressly provides, however, 
that the above division of investigative responsibilities is subject to 
specific arrangements agreed upon by the two Departments on a 
case-by-case basis. Accordingly, current guidelines for U.S. attor­
neys' offices provide that where a Labor Department investigation 
of reporting offenses discloses a theft of employee benefit assets in 
violation of of 18 U.S.C. 664, the U.S. attorney may, at his option, 
request Department of Labor investigators to complete the theft in­
vestigation in order to minimize unnecessary expense and duplica­
tion of investigative efforts. Moreover, current arrangements with 
the Department of Labor's Office of the Inspector General permit a 
wide range of criminal investigative assignments to agents of that 
office who are detailed to the Justice Department's Organized 
Crime and Racketeering Strike Force. 

We recognize that the Department of Labor has significant re­
sponsibilities with respect to the civil enforcement of those provi­
sions relating to fiduciary violations and prohibited transactions 
under title I of ERISA. Because of the limited statute of limitations 
governing civil actions, a civil investigation frequently must be con­
ducted simultaneously with the investigation of overlapping title 18 
offenses. Although the criminal and civil investigations may pro­
ceed in parallel, a civil investigator who assists in the criminal in­
vestigation may lose his ability to effectively assist in the civil 
action because of restrictions on the dissemination of information 
gained by access to grand jury proceedings. Therefore, the imposi­
tion of broad criminal investigative responsibilities on the Depart­
ment of Labor with respect to employee benefit plans may very 
well require the creation of a component of criminal investigators 
separate and apart from its civil investigators. Yet, the expertise of 
the civil investigator who is repeatedly exposed to complex cases 
involving benefit plans is frequently the precise qualification that 
the criminal prosecutor seeks. 

Finally, let me say that the Federal Bureau of Investigation is 
strongly committed to its investigative program concerning employ­
ee benefit plans and has developed substantial expertise in this 
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area with the result of significant prosecutions and convictions in 
both its white collar and organized crime programs. We believe 
that the Department of Labor is committed to the prompt referral 
to the Department of Justice of evidence, developed during the 
course of its civil investigations, which may warrant criminal pros­
ecution. Therefore, we recommend that 29 U.S.C. 1136 not be 
amended at this time. However, we are willing to review the cur­
rent memorandum of understanding regarding the allocation of in­
vestigative responsibilities between our b;vo Departments in this 
area. If we conclude that changes in the existing division of respon­
sibilities are required by way of legislation, we will advise the Con­
gress of the need for appropriate legislative measures. 

In summary, for the reasons which I have discussed, the Depart­
ment of Justice recommends that S. 1785 be enacted with the 
changes and amendments which we have suggested. It is the 
Department's view that the bill and the proposed revisions which 
we have proposed will have the effect of strengthening the Federal 
Government's ability to protect the parties to collective bargaining, 
labor union members, and employee benefit plan participants from 
corrupt elements while at the same time maintaining an appropri­
ate balance and division of responsibilities among the agencies 
which are charged with enforcement of the Federal laws affecting 
those groups. 

Let me make a final comment upon this issue of division of re­
sponsibilities. I have tried to address that in a very specific fashion 
as to why we have taken the position that a need for a statutory 
change in the area of enforcement responsibility is not necessary. I 
hope I also make it clear that we are not attempting to abolish any 
kind of investigative activities. We are not attempting to take over 
any kind of investigative responsibilities of the Department of 
Labor. We do not want to take over ERISA. 

Senator NICKLES. I do not blame you for that. 
Mr. J1pNSEN. What we are addressing, however, is basically the 

same thmg as the thrust of the legislation. However, our point is 
that we recognize that there is an absolute need for an effective 
mix of investigative resources. Under the current memorandum of 
understanding, that mix, we think, is fairly defined and it is sub­
ject to the control of the Strike Force attorneys where it precisely 
ought t~ be, and investigative responsibility can be assigned on 
that baSIS so that we have no quarrel at all with the thrust of the 
legi~lation in the sense .that i~ re~ponds to the need for close coop­
eratIOn and control of mvestIgatIOns. What we are saying is that 
we think the legislation could interfere with that. It could create 
situations in terms of the interpretation of the memorandums of 
understandi~g and the authority for investigations that would 
create conflIcts rather than resolve them. So we agree with the 
thrust. We think that it can best be addressed under the current 
kind of commitment that exists in the Department of Justice and 
the pepartment. of La,bor .to s~are investigative responsibilities and 
to dIrect those mvestIgatIOns m the most appropriate fashion. We 
think that is what is expressed now in the memorandum of under­
standing. We recognize there always has to be review. That is pre­
cisely what we will undertake. 

: :."; 

" 

91 

What we are saying is the current definition of responsibili~ies 
and the way it is managed by the memorandum of understandmg 
and by the Strike Force participation in that, gives us the best pos­
sible world for investigative and prosecutive results. I hope I am 
making it clear. We do not .inten~ to. diminish or less~n t~e c0D?-­
mitment or resources for mvestIgatIOn and prosecutIOn m thIS 
area. On the contrary. We have in place priorities with the Orga­
nized Crime Strike Force and with the FBI investigators that labor 
racketeering is clearly a priority for their efforts, and that remains 
in place and that remains ?ur commitment. . . 

What I am trying to do m terms of respondmg to the sentIments 
expressed here this morning is we share the thrust. V-Ie think ,,!e 
are saying it is best addressed not by attempts to amend the legIS­
lation but keeping close watch on the memorandum of understand-
ing. b 

Separate from that I would make a quick comment on the su -
ject that Mr. Ryan spoke t?, and t~at is tJ:e di~cussi?ns .about th~ 
possible shift of resources m orgamzed CrIme mvestIgatIOns. As I 
pointed out, and I WOUld. second everythin~ said, those were ~re­
liminary kinds of discussIOns. They were dIrected at very specIfic 
investigative resources that now exist in the Department of Labor, 
and that is the 90 agents. It is an investigative kind of assignment 
to the Strike Forces within the Office of Inspector General. The 
only contemplation is it may be the better part of wisdom in terms 
of centralizing and focusing their attention to make tha.t pa:r:t. of 
the FBI within the Department rather than two separate IdentItI~s 
or, as Mr. Ryan said, we close the emp.loyment loop and make .It 
direct supervision. Our purpose in lookmg at that under any CIr­
cumstance was to strengthen the activities of the Strike Force and 
the investigators that work with the~ in this area. T~e word "abo­
lition" was used at one time. There IS no contemplatIon that that 
resource would disappear. We understand it is. a cl~arly necessary 
resource. We have no idea and no thought m mmd that there 
would be a lessening of that resource at all.. . . 

The only discussion was as to whether It mIght. more approprI­
ately be within the supervision of the FBI. We thmk perhaps the 
problems in terms of the shift of personnel and the areas that are 
concerned with that are perhaps insuperable. ~t may not c0D?-e 
about but I want to make clear there was nothm~ .whatsoe.ve~ m 
the series of discussions that had in mind the abolItIOn or dlmmu­
tion of' any kind of commitment of either resolve or r~sources. . 

Senator NICKLES. I appreciate your comment. I thmk th~ ma]o! 
thrust of my colleagues is one with the num~rous hours of mve~tI­
gation particularly done by PSI, and Labor IS not really followmg 
through as far as their practices in the last few years. I alluded 
this to Mr. Ryan, and it was also brought forth to Secretary Dono­
van before. He reasserted, as did Mr. Ryan today, that they ~ould 
both be aggressively pursuing und~r ~RISA a~d ~andr~m-GrIf~n; 
that they were aggressively pursumg m coordmatIOn WIth JustIce 
to accomplish those means. . 

The preponderance of testImony before was that was not the 
case. h b 'th I might ask you, in the first place, how long ave you een WI 
Justice? 
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M,r. JENSEN. I h.ave been with the Justice Department since last 
Apnl. Mr. Mar~olIs ha.s been ~here during the whole period of time 
~hat t~e Orgamze4 9rIm~ St,rlke Force has had this responsibility. 

o he IS more famIlIar wIth It. But I am also familiar with exactly 
what you addressed and ~ne of the problems, of course, is as you 
~ook at the pro~lems aD;d Identify them, I think you have to put it 
In a d:ynamlc kmd of V.l~W, and the dynamic is that we have seri­
ously Improved the ablhty to communicate and the allocation of 
0hur resources. We ar~ at a stage now where some of the problems 
t at were addressed m the past, we feel, have been resolved. No 
Im~ can .be complaceI?-t where they are, and you have to continually 
00. at ~t. But we thmk we have moved forward and we now have 

a sItua~IOn ~her~ the flow of information, the actual carrying out 
of t.he mvc:stIgatr,:e ~esponsi~ility by the Department of Labor and 
theIr ~harmg theIr ;nformatIOn and participating with the Strike 
~orcde IS now at a hIgh level of cooperation. We think we have ar­
rIve at a level of whe~e those kinds of blockages have been re­
solved and we are becommg very productive in this area 

. SednaCt~r NICK~ES. Mr. Margolis, you have been head of the Orga­
nIze nme StrIke Force for how long? 

Mr. MARGOLIS. Three years. 
Se?nator NICKLES. How many people do you have working in that 

area. 
.~r: MARGOLIS. We have 147 attorneys who work for the C· . 1 

DIvIsIOn. nmIna 
Senator NICKLES. Is that under the FBI? 

. Mr. MARGCLIS. No. Just the attorneys that work for main Jus­
tICii We have sattorneys from every Federal investigative agency as 
",:,e as som~ ~ate and local investigative agencies and, on occa­
SIOn, local dlstnct attorney offices. And, for instance, if the case 
UNIRA~' we can call upon a.ll the resources of the FBI, as in the 

d' 2c6ase't:Y°u were talkmg about. But the attorneys are 147 
sprea In CI Ies around the country. 

Senator NICKLES. As part of the strike force? 
Mr. MARGOLIS. Yes, sir. . 
Senator NICKLES. What kind of cooperation did you find over the 

fast 3t~eLs~ Hanve you seen an improvement over the past 3 years 
rom . e a or epartment? Did you feel you were getting an co-
~~erat~od a cobuple of years ago? Allegations have been made ~ha.t 

ere a not een ~uch. CaI?- you give us some insight? 
Mr. MARGOLIS .. I WIll try. FIrst of all, I will make a distinction. A 

iht of the .allega~IOns that have been made have nothing to do with 
e orga:il1zed cr~me program and we had nothing to do with them. 

rha~.I ~av~ notIced, and I think the Senate deserves a lot of credit 
or t IS, IS SInce the l?assage of the IG bill, where the Labor Depart­
me~t has ~ad to dedIcate approximately 85 investigators to the or­
gamzed cnme progr~m, there has been a magnificent improve­
men~. Furt.hermo~e! In the last year or so, going beyond that, our 
dea~mg~ wIth SohcItor Ryan and his staff-we meet on a regular 
basIs, hIS people and my people-the flow of information has been 
excellent. I have been at Justice for 17 years and things have never 
been be li er. 

Senat0r NICKLES. You probably see Mr. Dotson and that side 
quite often. Is that correct? 
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Mr. MARGOLIS. Not anywhere near as much as we do with the 
IG's office. If you will recall, the U.S. attorneys have a great deal 
of jurisdiction in the labor law area and handle many of them. In 
terms of Labor prosecutions, we primarily work with the IG's office 
from the Labor Department and, of course, the FBI even to a great-
er extent. 

Senator NICKLES. Do you actually see some progress? 
But just the idea of the inactivity. We would like to see that 

cleaned up as rapidly as possible. We have not seen that type 0f 
action happening in the past and we have a new administration. 
We do have a new Secretary and Attorney General and Solicitor, 
and IG people, and we are hoping to see some results. We want to 
help you in that area either through oversight or legislation. 

There was a reason for putting that last section in, and we had 
people say, yes, Labor basically has the authority to enforce var­
ious sections of Landrum-Griffin and ERISA, but they do not do 
anything. There seems to be a lot of things falling between the 
cracks at Justice and Labor. I know the intent of that last section 
which was basically a clarification of saying both, we want the job 
done, yes, and that is what WE' are looking for. 

Mr. MARGOLIS. Senator, ~ think the legislation on that point was 
directed at activities and attitudes that were well in place and 
which PSI brought out 4 years ago. Since the formation of the IG's 
office in the last 2 or 3 years, I think the present situation gives us 
flexibility, especially with the IG's office being there. We do not 
have the problems of IG's being called off to the union elections, to 
monitor union elections and pulled away from investigations. 

Senator NICKLES. Mr. Jensen, I appreciate the input you have 
given and also for clearing up your recommendations. We hope 
that our subcommittee can continue to work with Justice and 
Labor and PSI; and we would like to do that in a very short period 
of time. We have put a great deal of work into iegislation and, 
hopefully, we can come up with a vehicle that will be receptive to 
all concerned and be able to accomplish the goals we want to. We 
would like to eliminate the c.l.'ime and corruption that has been in­
volved and protect the assets and dues, et cetera, of the millions of 
workers throughout this country. 

I would like to keep the record open and submit additional ques-
tions, hopefully to delineate between Labor and Justice and various 
factions, to make sure we do not have anything fall between the 
cracks. 

Mr. JENSEN. We would respond to any questions that the com-
mittee would have. We do stand ready to work with the staff and 
with the committee to see that this bill gets moved expeditiously. 
We are in favor of it. We would like to move it. 

Senator NICKLES. We appreciate and share that concern. The full 
committee is scheduled to have a markup on the longshore bill, 
S. 1182 this coming Tuesday, which also relates to some extent to 
this type of legislation. If we get the legislation finalized, we would 
like to have markup on this bill at that time. Certainly before the 
February recess. 

We appreciate your assistance in that regard. We will keep the 
record open, and the subcommittee is adjourned. 

-~-------
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[Whereupon, at 12:30 p.m., the subcommittee adjourned, subject 
to the call of the Chair.]. 
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